Oneidas bringing several
hundred bags of corn to
Washington' s starving army
at Valley Forge, after the
colonists had consistently
refused to aid them.

Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin

BC Meeting Materials September 9, 2015
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CERTIFICATION

UGWA DEMOLUM YATEHE
Because of the help of
this Oneida Chief in
cementing a friendship
between the six nations
and the colony of
Pennsylvania, a new
nation, the United States
was made possble.

I, the undersigned, as Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee, hereby certify that
the following 491 pages are the Open Session meeting materials presented at a

meeting duly called, noticed and held on the 9" day of SEPTEMBER, 2015.

Lisa Summers, T stary
Oneida Business Committee
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Oneida Business Committee

Executive Session
9:00 a.m. Tuesday, September 8, 2015
Executive Conference Room, 2nd floor, Norbert Hill Center

Regular Meeting
9:00 a.m. Wednesday, September 9, 2015
BC Conference Room, 2" floor, Norbert Hill Center

Agenda

VI.

VII.

To get a copy of the agenda, go to: http://oneida-nsn.gov/

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

OPENING

ADOPT THE AGENDA

OATHS OF OFFICE
A. Oneida Land Claims Commission and Oneida Land Commission — Jay Rasmussen

B. Oneida Arts Board — Patricia Moore

MINUTES

A. Approve August 26, 2015 regular meeting minutes

RESOLUTIONS

A. Adopt resolution titled Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance Amendments
Sponsor:  Brandon Stevens, Councilman

B. Adoptresolution titled Designating Representatives for the Wisconsin Tribal Conservation
Advisory Council (WTCAC)
Sponsor: Tehassi Hill, Councilman

APPOINTMENTS

A. Appoint John Brueninger to the Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee
Sponsor: Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman


http://oneida-nsn.gov/
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VIIl.  STANDING COMMITTEES

A.

C.

D.

Leqgislative Operating Committee
Sponsor: Councilman Brandon Stevens, Chair

1. Accept Legislative Operating Committee meeting minutes of August 19, 2015

Finance Committee
Sponsor: Treasurer Trish King, Chair

1. Approve Finance Committee meeting minutes of August 31, 2015

Community Development Planning Committee (No Requested Action)

Quality of Life

Sponsor:  Councilwoman Fawn Billie, Chair

1. Accept Quality of Life meeting minutes of June 11, 2015

IX. GENERAL TRIBAL COUNCIL

A.

Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Special GTC meeting to address six resolutions
1) Completed Scheduling General Tribal Council Meetings

2) Feeto Trust Process

3) In Progress Elder Services Means Testing

4) In Research Record Subcommittee Meetings

5) Governmental Services Chain of Command

6) Unclaimed Per Capita Payments

Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 26,2015: (1) Motion by Brandon Stevens to accept the legal analyses for
resolution 3) In Progress Elder Services Means Testing, resolution 4) In Research Record
Subcommittee Meetings, and resolution 6) Unclaimed Per Capita Payments, seconded by Lisa
Summers. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion by Lisa Summers to defer the legal analysis for
resolution 5) Governmental Services Chain of Command to be completed by the next September 9,
2015 Business Committee meeting and to defer the financial analyses for resolution 3) In Progress
Elder Services Means Testing, resolution 4) In Research Record Subcommittee Meetings, and
resolution 6) Unclaimed Per Capita Payments to the September 23, 2015 Business Committee
meeting, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM JULY 8, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to defer the remaining legal and financial
analyses to the second regular Business Committee meeting in August 2015, seconded by Brandon
Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM JUNE 24, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legal analysis for resolution 1
of the petition, regarding GTC meetings, and note that the remaining analyses are due back at the
July 8, 2015 regular Business Committee meeting, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried
unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM MAY 13, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legal analysis for resolution 2
of the petition, regarding Fee to Trust, seconded by Trish King. Motion carried unanimously.
EXCERPT FROM APRIL 22, 2015: Motion by Motion by Lisa Summers to accept the legislative
analyses for Resolutions 1-6 and provide an additional 60 days for the Law and Finance offices to
complete their portions of the analyses, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.
EXCERPT FROM FEBRUARY 25, 2015: (1) Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept the verified petitions
from Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Request Special GTC meeting to address 6 resolutions seconded
by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion by Tehassi Hill to send the verified
petitions to the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference and Direct Report offices for the legal, financial,
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legislative, and administrative analyses to be completed, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried
unanimously. (3) Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct Law Office, Finance, and Legislative Reference
Offices to submit the analyses to the Secretary’s office within 60 days and that a progress report be
submitted in 45 days, seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried unanimously. (4) Motion by Lisa
Summers to direct our Direct Report offices to submit appropriate administrative analyses to the
Secretary’s office within 30 days, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Special GTC meeting to address three resolutions
1) Oneida Business Committee Accountability

2) Repeal Judiciary Law

3) Open Records and Open Meetings Law

Sponsor:  Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

EXCERPT FROM JUNE 24, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legislative analyses for
resolutions 1-3 of the petition and to provide an additional 60 days for the Law and Finance Offices to
submit the appropriate analyses, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM JUNE 10, 2015: Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept the status report from the LOC as
information, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM APRIL 8, 2015: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the verified petition submitted
by Madelyn Genskow; to send the verified petition to the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference and
Direct Report offices for the legal, financial, legislative and administrative analyses to be completed; to
direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference offices to submit the analyses to the Tribal
Secretary’s office within 60 days, and that a progress report is submitted in 45 days; to direct the
Direct Report offices to submit the appropriate administrative analyses to the Tribal Secretary’s office
within 30 days, seconded by Lisa Summers.

Petitioner Frank Cornelius: Special GTC meeting to address four resolutions

1) Audit of Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

2) Oneida Seven Generations Corporation Return Money to Tribe

3) Freedom of the Press, Tax OBC for failure to dissolve Oneida Seven Generations
Corporation

4) Tax Oneida Business Committee for Failure to Dissolve Oneida Seven Generations
Corporation

Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 26, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legislative analyses for
resolution 1) Audit of Oneida Seven Generations Corporation, resolution 2) Oneida Seven
Generations Corporation Return Money to Tribe, resolution 3) Freedom of the Press, resolution 4) Tax
Oneida Business Committee for Failure to Dissolve Oneida Seven Generations Corporation, seconded
by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 17, 2015: (1) Motion by Lisa Summers to take this item from the table,
seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion by Jennifer Webster to forward
the four resolutions to the Legislative, Law, Finance offices for the appropriate analyses and for those
analyses to be due at the September 9, 2015 regular Business Committee meeting, seconded by Lisa
Summers. Motion carried unanimously. (3) Motion by Lisa Summers to request the Law Office provide
a legal opinion about what occurs when a petition is submitted which does not have all the appropriate
documentation that would go with the petition, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried with one
abstention.

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 12, 2015: Motion by Lisa Summers to adjourn at 2:06 p.m. and to direct
the Tribal Secretary to coordinate Business Committee special meeting date for the remainder of this
agenda, seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM JULY 22, 2015: Motion by Brandon Stevens to table this item to next regular
Business Committee meeting, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM JULY 8, 2015: Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept the update as information and defer
this item to the July 22, 2015, regular Business Committee meeting as agreed upon by the Business
Committee members and the petitioner, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.
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EXCERPT FROM JUNE 24, 2015: Motion by Fawn Billie to defer this item to the next regular Business
Committee meeting and direct the Secretary to work with the petitioner to find a solution to the
concerns, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM MAY 27, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to direct the Secretary to reach out to
Petitioner Frank Cornelius to request the four resolutions mentioned in the petition be submitted in 30
days, seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM MAY 13, 2015: (1) Motion by Trish King to acknowledge receipt of the petition
submitted by Frank Cornelius, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion by
Trish King to send the verified petition to the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference and Direct Report
Offices for legal, financial, legislative and administrative analyses to be completed; to direct the Law,
Finance and Legislative Offices to submit the analyses to the Secretary within 60 days and a that a
progress report is submitted in 45 days, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously. (3)
Motion by David Jordan to direct the Direct Report Offices to submit the appropriate administrative
analyses to the Secretary within 30 days, seconded by Trish King. Motion carried unanimously.

Petitioner John E. Powless Jr: Per capita payments
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 17, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legislative analysis for the
regarding per capita payments submitted by petitioner John E. Powless Jr., seconded by Trish King.
Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 12, 2015: Motion by Lisa Summers to adjourn at 2:06 p.m. and to direct
the Tribal Secretary to coordinate Business Committee special meeting date for the remainder of this
agenda, seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

EXCERPT FROM JUNE 24, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to acknowledge receipt of the verified
petition submitted by John E. Powless, Jr.; to send the verified petition to the Law, Finance, Legislative
Reference and Direct Report Offices for the legal, financial, legislative and administrative analyses to
be completed; to direct the Law, Finance and Legislative Reference Offices to submit the analyses to
the Tribal Secretary's office within 60 days, and that a progress report be submitted in 45 days; and to
direct the Direct Report Offices to submit the appropriate administrative analyses to the Tribal
Secretary's office within 30 days, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

Accept Legislative Operating Committee update on Tribal Hearing Bodies/Administrative Court
Sponsor: Brandon Stevens, Councilman

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 12, 2015: (1) Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the action plan for the
Tribal Hearing Bodies/Administrative Court and to direct the Oneida Child Protective Board, the
Oneida Election Board, the Oneida Environmental Resource Board, the Oneida Land Commission, the
Oneida Personnel Commission, the Oneida License Commission and the Oneida Trust/Enroliment
Committee to retrieve their financial expenses for the last three (3) years (including, but not limited to,
the amount of stipends received, training costs and other expenses) and turn the information over to
OBC to help in evaluating which entities should retain their hearing body authority, seconded by David
Jordan. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Amendment to the main motion by Lisa Summers that the
information be provided by Friday, September 4, 2015, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried
unanimously.

TABLED BUSINESS (No Requested Action)
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NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity — LexisNexis — Time Matters Maintenance
contract # 2015-0837
Sponsor: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

B. Approve Oneida Personnel Commission one (1) vacancy post and for the term to be carried out
until July 27, 2016
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

C. Approve Anna John Resident Centered Care Community Board one (1) vacancy post and for
the term to be carried out until November 12, 2017
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

D. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity — EFI PrintSmith contract # 2015-0823
Sponsor:  Joanie Buckley, Division Director/Internal Services

E. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity — Solar Deployment on Tribal Facilities Project
contract # 2015-0692
Sponsor:  Tehassi Hill, Councilman

F. Approve authorization to utilize information from the Governmental Services Division-Transit
in regards to Master's program Capstone project titled "The Oneida Nation of WI Transit
System: Effect of change from a Demand-Response/Dial-a-Ride service to a Point Deviation
Service"
Sponsor:  Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

G. Enter E-poll results into the record for approval of amended FY '16 Budget meeting packet
which includes corporate audits
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

H. Request Governmental Services Division Director bring forward Standard Operating
Procedures for Southeastern Oneida Tribal Services at the October 14, 2015 Business
Committee meeting
Sponsor:  Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

TRAVEL

A. Travel Reports
1. Councilman Tehassi Hill — Meijer Ladies Professional Golf Association event — Belmont, Ml

—July 20-23, 2015
B. Travel Requests

1. Councilman Tehassi Hill — National Tribal Energy Summit — Washington, DC — September
23-24, 2015

2. Secretary Lisa Summers and Councilwoman Fawn Billie — Inter-tribal Criminal Justice
Organizational meeting — Lac du Flambeau, WI — October 5-6, 2015

3. Vice-Chairwoman Melinda J. Danforth — ACF Litigation — Chicago, IL — September 30, 2015
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XIV. REPORTS (This section of the agendais scheduled at 1:30 p.m.)

A. Operational Reports

1.

Accept Organizational Development Specialist FY '15 3 guarter report — Melanie Burkhart,
Organizational Development Specialist

Accept Self-Governance FY '15 3" guarter report — Chis Johns, Self-Governance Coordinator

Accept Internal Services FY '15 3" guarter report — Joanie Buckley, Division Director/Internal
Services

Accept Emergency Management FY '15 1% guarter report — Kaylynn Gresham,
Director/Emergency Management

Accept Emergency Management FY '15 2" guarter report — Kaylynn Gresham,
Director/Emergency Management

Accept Emergency Management FY '15 3" guarter report — Kaylynn Gresham,
Director/Emergency Management

B. Corporate Reports

1.

Accept Bay Bancorporation Inc. FY '15 3" quarter report — Jeff Bowman, President
Liaison: Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

Accept Oneida Seven Generations Corporation FY ’'15 3" quarter report — Pete King, Agent
Liaison: Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

Accept Oneida Golf Enterprise FY '15 3" guarter report — Janice Skenandore Hirth, Agent
Liaison: Trish King, Tribal Treasurer

Accept Oneida Airport Hotel Corporation FY '15 3 guarter report — Janice Skenandore Hirth,
President
Liaison: Trish King, Tribal Treasurer

Accept Oneida Total Integrated Enterprise FY '15 3" guarter report — Butch Rentmeester,
Chair
Liaison: Tehassi Hill, Councilman

Accept Oneida Engineering Science & Construction Group, LLC FY '15 3" quarter report —
Jacquelyn Zalim, Board Chair
Liaison: Tehassi Hill, Councilman

C. Boards, Committees, and Commissions

1.

Accept Environmental Resource Board’s revisions/additions to Prohibitions under Public
Use of Tribal Lands Law
Liaison: Tehassi Hill, Councilman
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XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. Reports

1. Accept Bay Bancorporation Inc. FY ’15 3" quarter report — Jeff Bowman, President
Liaison: Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

2. Accept Oneida Seven Generations Corporation FY '15 3" quarter report — Pete King, Agent
Liaison: Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

3. Accept Oneida Golf Enterprise FY '15 3" guarter report — Janice Skenandore Hirth, Agent
Liaison: Trish King, Tribal Treasurer

4. Accept Oneida Airport Hotel Corporation FY '15 3 guarter report — Janice Skenandore Hirth,

President
Liaison: Trish King, Tribal Treasurer

5. Accept Oneida Total Integrated Enterprise FY '15 3" guarter report — Butch Rentmeester,
Chair
Liaison: Tehassi Hill, Councilman

6. Accept Oneida Engineering Science & Construction Group, LLC FY '15 3" quarter report —
Jacquelyn Zalim, Board Chair
Liaison: Tehassi Hill, Councilman

7. Chief Counsel Report — Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

8. Intergovernmental Affairs & Communication Report — Nathan King, Intergovernmental Affairs
& Communications Director (This item is scheduled at 1:30 p.m. on September 8, 2015)

B. Standing Items

1. Land Claims Strategy (No updates)
Sponsor: Nathan King, Intergovernmental Affairs & Communications Director

2. Goldwater suit — Indian Child Welfare case (No updates)
Sponsor: Nathan King, Intergovernmental Affairs & Communications Director

3. Stadium Tax Update
Sponsor: Melinda J. Danforth, Tribal Vice-Chairwoman

C. Audit Committee

D. Unfinished Business

1. Review complaint # 2015-CC-07
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 26, 2015: Motion by Lisa Summers to defer complaint dated August 3,
2015 to the September 9, 2015 Business Committee meeting, seconded by David Jordan. Motion
carried unanimously.
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2. Review concern # 2015-CC-08
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

EXCERPT FROM AUGUST 26, 2015: Motion by Lisa Summers to defer concern dated August 18,
2015 to the September 9, 2015 Business Committee meeting, seconded by David Jordan. Motion
carried unanimously.

E. Tabled Business

F. New Business

1. Approve 62 new enrollments
Sponsor: Brandon Stevens, Councilman

2. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity — LocatePlus.com contract # 2015-0622
Sponsor: Louise Cornelius, Gaming General Manager

3. Approve First Amendment to contract # 2015-0831 (This item is scheduled at 9:30 a.m. on
September 8, 2015)
Sponsor: Tina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

4. Review complaint # 2015-CC-09
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

5. Approve update and memo regarding complaint # 2015-CC-06
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

6. Review Print Shop — Mail Center Operational plan
Sponsor: Melinda J. Danforth, Tribal Vice-Chairwoman

7. Assign OBC Members to investigate complaint # 2015-DR13-01
Sponsor: Melinda J. Danforth, Tribal Vice-Chairwoman

8. Accept Judiciary interpretation of case #14-AC-013

Sponsor: Melinda J. Danforth, Tribal Vice-Chairwoman

XVI.  ADJOURN

Posted on the Tribe’s official website, www.oneida-nsn.gov, at 3:00 p.m. Friday, September 4, 2015, pursuant to
the Open Records and Open Meetings Law, section 7.17-1. For additional information, please call the Business
Committee Support Office at (920) 869-4364.

The meeting packet of the open session materials for this meeting is available to Tribal members by going to the
Members-Only section of the Tribe’s official website at: www.oneida-nsn.gov/MembersOnly

For information about this meeting, please call the Business Committee Support Office at (920) 869-4364 or (800)
236-2214.


http://www.oneida-nsn.gov/
http://www.oneida-nsn.gov/MembersOnly
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
IV.A. Oneida Land Claims Commission and Oneida Land Commission — Jay Rasmussen

1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: [Oaths of Office

[[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Administer Oath of Office to Jay Rasmussen to the Oneida Land Claims Commission and Oneida Land
Commission. He was elected at the July 11, 2015 elections.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1. 3.
2 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[ ] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: Kathleen M. Metoxen, Executive Tribal Clerk

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

The elections were held on July 11, 2015. There was a recount request on July 13, 2015, the recount was done on
July 14, 2015 with the results staying the same. The results of the election were accepted and approved on the
August 17,2015 Special BC meeting. The following people:

Oneida Land Commission:
Amelia Cornelius

Racquel Hill

Jay Rasmussen

Oneida Land Claims Commission:
Jay Rasmussen

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
IV.B. Oneida Arts Board - Patricia Moore

1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header:

Oaths of Office

[[] Accept as Information only

Action - please describe:

Administer Oath of Office to Patricia Moore to the Oneida Arts Board.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1, 3.
2. 4,
[] Business Committee signature required
4. Budget Information
[ ] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor:

Kathleen M. Metoxen, Executive Tribal Clerk

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2


hheuer
Typewritten Text
IV.B. Oneida Arts Board – Patricia Moore

hheuer
Typewritten Text

hheuer
Typewritten Text


Page 12 of 488

Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

The posting was in the June 4, 2015 issue of the Kalihwisaks for one (1) vacancy on the Oneida Arts Board for a
three (3) year term with the deadline of July 2, 2015. There was one (1) applicant for the one (1) vacancy on the
Oneida Arts Board. The appointment was made on the July 22,2015 BC Agenda. She couldn't make it the last to
BC meetings in August.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
V.A. Approve August 26, 2015 regular meeting minutes
1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 /[ 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |Minutes

[]1 Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Approve August 26, 2015 regular meeting minutes

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

Other:

—_

JAugust 26, 2015 regular meeting minutes 3]

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: Heather Heuer, Information Management Specialist/BC Support Staff

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee

Executive Session
2:20 p.m. Thursday, August 27, 2015
BC Conference Room, 2" floor, Norbert Hill Center

Regular Meeting
9:00 a.m. Wednesday, August 26, 2015
BC Conference Room, 2nd floor, Norbert Hill Center

Minutes — DRAFT

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Present: Chairwoman Tina Danforth, Treasurer Trish King, Secretary Lisa Summers, Council members:
Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster;

Not Present: Vice-Chairwoman Melinda J. Danforth;

Arrived at: ;

Others present: ;

REGULAR MEETING

Present: Treasurer Trish King, Secretary Lisa Summers, Council members: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill,
David Jordan, Jennifer Webster;

Not Present: Vice-Chairwoman Melinda J. Danforth;

Arrived at: Councilman Brandon Stevens arrives at 9:06 a.m., Chairwoman Tina Danforth arrives at 9:07
am.;

Others present: Jo Anne House, Chris Johnson, Mike Debraska, Madelyn Genskow, Danelle Wilson,
Jessica Wallenfang, MaryAnn Kruckeberg, Patricia Lassila, Lois Powless, Sunshine Wheelock, Debra
Powless, Todd Hill, Racquel Hill, Geraldine Danforth, Bev Summers, Louann Green, Carol EIm, Amelia
Cornelius, Nancy Barton, Mike Troge, Melinda K. Danforth, Carole Liggins, Sue Johnson, Reynold
Danforth, Tracy Metoxen, Debra Danforth, Sandra Schuyler, Frank Cornelius, Fred Muscavitch, Vicki
Cornelius, Mary Graves, Larry Barton, Chad Wilson, Cathy Metoxen, Fawn Cottrell, Ed Delgado, Doug
Mclntyre, Taniquelle Thurner, Bill Graham, Brad Graham, Troy Parr, James Wildenberg, Rhiannon
Metoxen, Paul Witek, Heather Heuer, Lisa Liggins, Gene Schubert, Tom Danforth, Pat Pelky, Don White,
Marsha Danforth, Matt W. Denny, Leanne Doxtator, Melissa Nuthals, Jeff Witte, Michele Doxtator, Nicolas
Reynolds, Nate King;

For the record: Chairwoman Tina Danforth stated Vice Chairwoman Melinda J. Danforth
is out on funeral time/person time. She will be out for the rest of the
week. Again, thank you for your patience this morning. At 1:30 p.m.,
there is a storm water litigation hearing in Green Bay and | will also need
to be excused at 1:30 p.m. for a doctor appointment. So, we will recess
probably from 1:30-3:30 p.m. So, if any committee members are
interested you can attend that 1:30 p.m. hearing in Green Bay.

I Call to Order and Roll Call by Chairwoman Tina Danforth at 9:09 a.m.

1. Opening by Councilman Tehassi Hill
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Motion by Trish King to adopt the agenda with one deletion (VI.B. resolution titled No Trade Back for
Cash for Fiscal Year 2016), one addition (XV.F.03. Approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for
Service Stations Computer Systems, Inc. contract # 2015-0844), and to go into Executive Session at
11:45 a.m. to address item XV.F.03. Approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Service Stations
Computer Systems, Inc. contract # 2015-0844, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried with one

opposed:
Ayes:

Opposed:
Not Present:
For the record:

Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Jennifer Webster

Lisa Summers

Melinda J. Danforth

Lisa Summers stated my first comment for the record is that | just
generally oppose additions to the agenda regardless of the nature of
them. So, just making it sure it is known that | am sticking to my no
additions position for the Business Committee agenda, even though | do
understand the nature of the request and it's important. My second for
the record comment is in regards to my intent around today’s Business
Committee meeting. For the past several Business Committee meetings,
there have been individuals in attendance who have chosen to go
beyond a reasonable approach to presenting questions or concerns
about issues to the government; these individuals have chosen a
disposition that creates an unwelcome atmosphere of discord. My intent
at today's Business Committee meeting and each meeting forward for
the remainder of my term is to ensure there is a safe meeting
environment for all staff and participants of the government’s meetings. |
am 1 of 9 persons at this table who has this responsibility. Therefore, |
am making it known up front that | will not tolerate any further deliberate
behaviors which purposefully undermine the Good Mind principles or the
established principles we as a Business Committee committed to uphold
throughout our term; for those who do not know what they are, they are
located here on the wall to my left.

Oaths of Office administered by Secretary Lisa Summers

A. Oneida Land Commission — Amelia Cornelius, Racquel Hill , and Jay Rasmussen (Jay
Rasmussen not present)

m © o

n

Oneida Land Claims — Jay Rasmussen (Not present)

Oneida Nation Commission on Aging — Carol EIm, Lois Powless, and Patricia Lassila
Oneida Election Board — Racquel Hill, Vicki Cornelius, and Sunshine Wheelock
Oneida Gaming Commission — Reynold Danforth

Oneida Trust/Enroliment Committee — Debra Powless, Carole Liggins, and Tracy Metoxen

G. Oneida School Board-At-Large — Fred Muscavitch and Melinda K. Danforth

H. Oneida School Board-Parent — Todd Hill and Debra Danforth
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V. Minutes
A. Approve August 12, 2015 regular meeting minutes

Motion by Lisa Summers to approve minutes from the August 12, 2015 regular meeting, seconded by
Trish King. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

B. Approve August 17, 2015 special meeting minutes

Motion by Lisa Summers to approve minutes from the August 17, 2015 regular meeting, seconded by
Jennifer Webster. Motion carried with one abstention:

Ayes: Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Abstained: Fawn Billie
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

VI. Resolutions

A. Adopt resolution titled Special Diabetes Program for Indians (SDPI) for CY2016 and
beyond through CY2020
Sponsor: Melinda J. Danforth, Tribal Vice-Chairwoman

Motion by Lisa Summers to adopt resolution 08-26-15-A Special Diabetes Program for Indians (SDPI) for
CY2016 and beyond through CY2020 with the following corrections; replace “Oneida Nation” with
“Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin”, twice in the fourth ‘Whereas’, and once in the final resolve,
seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Item deleted upo.n adoption of the :;lgenda.

Secretary Lisa Summers departs at 10:06 a.m.
Secretary Lisa Summers returns at 10:11 a.m.
Treasurer Trish King departs at 10:24 a.m.
Treasurer Trish King returns at 10:27 a.m.
Councilman David Jordan departs at 10:42 a.m.

C. Adopt resolution titled Amending Resolution 09-29-14-A Supporting the Application for a
U.S. Department of Energy Grant: Deployment of Clean Energy Efficiency Projects on
Indian Lands Funding Opportunity Announcement #: DE-FOA-0001021
Sponsor: Tehassi Hill, Councilman

Motion by Tehassi Hill to adopt resolution 08-26-15-B Amending Resolution 09-29-14-A Supporting the
Application for a U.S. Department of Energy Grant: Deployment of Clean Energy Efficiency Projects on
Indian Lands Funding Opportunity Announcement #: DE-FOA-0001021, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion
carried unanimously:
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Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, Trish King, Brandon Stevens, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, David Jordan

Councilman Tehassi Hill departs at 10:46 a.m.
Councilman Tehassi Hill returns at 10:53 p.m.
Councilman David Jordan returns at 10:55 a.m.

D. Adopt resolution titled Administrative Procedures Act Amendments Emergency Adoption
Extension
Sponsor: Brandon Stevens, Councilman

Motion by Brandon Stevens to adopt resolution 08-26-15-C Administrative Procedures Act Amendments
Emergency Adoption Extension, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Appointments (No Requested Action)

Standing Committees

A. Legislative Operating Committee
Sponsor: Councilman Brandon Stevens, Chair

1. Accept Legislative Operating Committee meeting minutes of August 5, 2015

Motion by Trish King to accept Legislative Operating Committee meeting minutes of August 5, 2015,
seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

B. Finance Committee
Sponsor: Treasurer Trish King, Chair

1. Approve Finance Committee meeting minutes of August 21, 2015

Motion by David Jordan to approve Finance Committee meeting minutes of August 21, 2015, seconded
by Trish King. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Councilwoman Jennifer Webster departs at 11:06 a.m.
Councilman Tehassi Hill departs at 11:06 a.m.
Councilwoman Jennifer Webster returns at 11:09 a.m.
Councilman Brandon Stevens departs at 11:09 a.m.
Councilman Brandon Stevens returns at 11:19 a.m.
Councilman Tehassi Hill returns at 11:26 a.m.
Secretary Lisa Summers departs at 11:53 a.m.



Page 18 of 488

C. Community Development Planning Committee (This item is scheduled at 11:00 a.m.)
Sponsor: Vice-Chairwoman Melinda J. Danforth, Chair

1. Receive Economic Development presentation and dialogue about recommendations

Motion by Trish King to accept the presentation regarding the economic component of the Community
Development Planning Committee initiative and to defer the item to a Business Committee work meeting
to set the next steps for community input meetings, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Lisa Summers
For the record: Chairwoman Tina Danforth stated | really feel that the Community

Development Planning Committee plan needs to have more community
efforts than it does economic development efforts.

Motion by Tehassi Hill to go into Executive Session to address add-on item XV.F.03. Approve limited
waiver of sovereign immunity for Service Stations Computer Systems, Inc. contract # 2015-0844 at 12:13
p.m., seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Lisa Summers

Secretary Lisa Summers returns at 12:14 p.m.

Motion by Lisa Summers to come out of Executive Session at 12:27 p.m., seconded by Trish King. Motion
carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Motion by Lisa Summers to recess at 12:30 p.m. and reconvene at 3:30 p.m., seconded by Tehassi Hill.
Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Called to order by Chairwoman Tina Danforth at 3:34 p.m.

D. Quality of Life (No Requested Action)

IX. General Tribal Council

A. Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Special GTC meeting to address six resolutions
1) Completed Scheduling General Tribal Council Meetings
2) Feeto Trust Process
3) In Progress Elder Services Means Testing
4) In Research Record Subcommittee Meetings
5) Governmental Services Chain of Command
6) Unclaimed Per Capita Payments
Sponsor; Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary
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Excerpt from July 8, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to defer the remaining legal and financial
analyses to the second regular Business Committee meeting in August 2015, seconded by
Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from June 24, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legal analysis for resolution 1
of the petition, regarding GTC meetings, and note that the remaining analyses are due back at
the July 8, 2015 regular Business Committee meeting, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried
unanimously.

Excerpt from May 13, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to accept the legal analysis for resolution 2
of the petition, regarding Fee to Trust, seconded by Trish King. Motion carried unanimously.
Excerpt from April 22, 2015: Motion by Motion by Lisa Summers to accept the legislative analyses
for Resolutions 1-6 and provide an additional 60 days for the Law and Finance offices to
complete their portions of the analyses, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

Excerpt from February 25, 2015: (1) Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept the verified petitions from
Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Request Special GTC meeting to address 6 resolutions seconded
by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion by Tehassi Hill to send the verified
petitions to the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference and Direct Report offices for the legal,
financial, legislative, and administrative analyses to be completed, seconded by Fawn Billie.
Motion carried unanimously. (3) Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct Law Office, Finance, and
Legislative Reference Offices to submit the analyses to the Secretary’s office within 60 days and
that a progress report be submitted in 45 days, seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried
unanimously. (4) Motion by Lisa Summers to direct our Direct Report offices to submit
appropriate administrative analyses to the Secretary’s office within 30 days, seconded by Fawn
Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Brandon Stevens to accept the legal analyses for resolution 3) In Progress Elder Services
Means Testing, resolution 4) In Research Record Subcommittee Meetings, and resolution 6) Unclaimed
Per Capita Payments, seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Motion by Lisa Summers to defer the legal analysis for resolution 5) Governmental Services Chain of
Command to be completed by the September 9, 2015 Business Committee meeting and to defer the
financial to the September 23, 2015 Business Committee meeting, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion
carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

B. Petitioner Frank Cornelius: Special GTC meeting to address four resolutions
1) Audit of Oneida Seven Generations Corporation
2) Oneida Seven Generations Corporation Return Money to Tribe
3) Freedom of the Press
4) Tax Oneida Business Committee for Failure to Dissolve Oneida Seven Generations
Corporation
Sponsor; Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Excerpt from August 17, 2015: (1) Motion by Lisa Summers to take this item from the table,
seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion by Jennifer Webster to
forward the four resolutions to the Legislative, Law, Finance offices for the appropriate analyses
and for those analyses to be due at the September 9, 2015 regular Business Committee meeting,
seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried unanimously. (3) Motion by Lisa Summers to request
the Law Office provide a legal opinion about what occurs when a petition is submitted which does
not have all the appropriate documentation that would go with the petition, seconded by Tehassi
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Hill. Motion carried with one abstention.

Excerpt from August 12, 2015: Motion by Lisa Summers to adjourn at 2:06 p.m. and to direct the
Tribal Secretary to coordinate Business Committee special meeting date for the remainder of this
agenda, seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from July 22, 2015: Motion by Brandon Stevens to table this item to next regular
Business Committee meeting, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from July 8, 2015: Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept the update as information and defer
this item to the July 22, 2015, regular Business Committee meeting as agreed upon by the
Business Committee members and the petitioner, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried
unanimously.

Excerpt from June 24, 2015: Motion by Fawn Billie to defer this item to the next regular Business
Committee meeting and direct the Secretary to work with the petitioner to find a solution to the
concerns, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from May 27, 2015: Motion by David Jordan to direct the Secretary to reach out to
Petitioner Frank Cornelius to request the four resolutions mentioned in the petition be submitted
in 30 days, seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from May 13, 2015: (1) Motion by Trish King to acknowledge receipt of the petition
submitted by Frank Cornelius, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously. (2) Motion
by Trish King to send the verified petition to the Law, Finance, Legislative Reference and Direct
Report Offices for legal, financial, legislative and administrative analyses to be completed; to
direct the Law, Finance and Legislative Offices to submit the analyses to the Secretary within 60
days and a that a progress report is submitted in 45 days, seconded by David Jordan. Motion
carried unanimously. (3) Motion by David Jordan to direct the Direct Report Offices to submit the
appropriate administrative analyses to the Secretary within 30 days, seconded by Trish King.
Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by David Jordan to accept the legislative analyses for resolution 1) Audit of Oneida Seven
Generations Corporation, resolution 2) Oneida Seven Generations Corporation Return Money to Tribe,
resolution 3) Freedom of the Press, resolution 4) Tax Oneida Business Committee for Failure to Dissolve
Oneida Seven Generations Corporation, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Unfinished Business (No Requested Action

Tabled Business (No Requested Action)
Secretary Lisa Summers departs at 4:28 p.m.
Treasurer Trish King departs at 4:29 p.m.
Treasurer Trish King returns at 4:31 p.m.

New Business

A. Accept Oneida Health Center No Show policy as information

Sponsor: Debra Danforth, Division Director/Comprehensive Health

Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept Oneida Health Center No Show policy as FYI, seconded by
Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Lisa Summers
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Secretary Lisa Summers returns at 4:33 p.m.
Councilwoman Jennifer Webster excused at 4:34 p.m.

B. Approve the Oneida Golf Enterprise Remodel-Phase Il CIP # 14-014 and activate $235,000
Sponsor: Troy Parr, Asst. Development Division Director/Development

Motion by Tehassi Hill to approve the Oneida Golf Enterprise Remodel-Phase Il CIP # 14-014 and
activate $235,000, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Jennifer Webster

C. Approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Dentemax contract # 2014-0880
Sponsor: Debra Danforth, Division Director/Comprehensive Health

Motion by David Jordan to approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Dentemax contract # 2014-
0880, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Jennifer Webster

D. Approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Faronic Technologies USA contract #
2015-0779
Sponsor: Fawn Billie, Councilwoman

Motion by David Jordan to approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Faronic Technologies USA
contract # 2015-0779, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Jennifer Webster

E. Approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for rSchoolToday contract # 2015-0790
Sponsor: Fawn Billie, Councilwoman

Motion by David Jordan to approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for rSchoolToday contract #
2015-0790, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Jennifer Webster

F. Approve November 11, 2015 Business Committee meeting options or alternatives
Sponsor: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Motion by David Jordan to approve Option A: to reschedule the November 11, 2015 Business Committee
Executive Session meeting to November 9, 2015 and the Business Committee Regular Session to
Tuesday November 10, 2015, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Jennifer Webster

Motion by David Jordan to recess at 4:45 p.m. until tomorrow August 27, 2015 at 1:30 p.m., seconded by
Fawn Billie. Motion carried with one opposed and one abstention:
Ayes: Fawn Billie, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers
Opposed: Tehassi Hill
Abstained: Brandon Stevens
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Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Jennifer Webster

Called to order by Chairwoman Tina Danforth at 1:34 p.m. on August 27, 2015.
Vice-Chairwoman Melinda J. Danforth and Councilman Brandon Stevens not present.

XIII. Travel

A. Travel Reports
1. Councilman Brandon Stevens — Haskell Board of Regents Spring 2015 meeting —
Lawrence, KS — May 6-9, 2015

Motion by David Jordan to accept travel report for Councilman Brandon Stevens — Haskell Board of
Regents Spring 2015 meeting — Lawrence, KS — May 6-9, 2015, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried
unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

2. Councilman Brandon Stevens — Board of Regents/Southwestern Indian Polytechnic
Institute joint meeting — July 14-17, 2015

Motion by David Jordan to accept travel report for Counciiman Brandon Stevens — Board of
Regents/Southwestern Indian Polytechnic Institute joint meeting — July 14-17, 2015, seconded by Trish
King. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

3. Chairwoman Tina Danforth — WEWIN Conference — Quapaw, OK — August 16-21, 2015
Motion by Lisa Summers to accept travel report for Chairwoman Tina Danforth — WEWIN Conference —
Quapaw, OK — August 16-21, 2015, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

B. Travel Requests
1. Councilman Brandon Stevens — United Tribes 19" Annual Tribal Leaders Summit —
Bismarck, ND — September 8-11, 2015

Motion by David Jordan to accept travel request for Councilman Brandon Stevens — United Tribes 19th
Annual Tribal Leaders Summit — Bismarck, ND — September 8-11, 2015, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion
carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

XIV. Reports
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A. Operational Reports

1.

Governmental Services Division FY '15 3" guarter report

Sponsor:  Don White, Division Director/Governmental Services Division

Excerpt from August 17, 2015: Motion by Jennifer Webster to defer the Governmental
Services Division FY 15 3rd quarter report to the next regular Business Committee meeting,
seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from August 12, 2015: Motion by Lisa Summers to adjourn at 2:06 p.m. and to direct
the Tribal Secretary to coordinate Business Committee special meeting date for the
remainder of this agenda, seconded by Brandon Stevens. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by David Jordan to accept Governmental Services Division FY '15 3rd quarter report, seconded by
Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

B. Corporate Reports (No Requested Action)

Treasurer Trish King departs at 2:01 p.m.

C. Boards Committees and Commissions

1.

Oneida Nation Arts Board FY '15 3" quarter report — Nicolas Reynolds, Chairman
Liaison: Jennifer Webster, Councilwoman

Excerpt from August 17, 2015: Motion by Brandon Stevens to defer the Oneida Nation Arts
Board FY '15 3" quarter report to the next regular Business Committee meeting, and direct
the Oneida Nation Arts Board liaison, Councilwoman Jennifer Webster, to follow up with the
Board, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from July 22, 2015: Motion by Jennifer Webster to defer the rest of the agenda items
to the next regularly scheduled Business Committee meeting, seconded by Brandon Stevens.
Motion carried unanimously.

Excerpt from July 8, 2015: Motion by Fawn Billie to defer the Oneida Nation Arts Board FY
'15 3 quarter report to the next regular Business Committee meeting and direct the Oneida
Nation Arts Board liaison, Councilwoman Jennifer Webster, to follow up with the Board,
seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by David Jordan to accept Oneida Nation Arts Board FY '15 3rd quarter report, seconded by Lisa
Summers. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens, Trish King

Treasurer Trish King returns at 2:08 p.m.

2.

School Board FY 15 3" guarter report — Debbie Danforth, Chairwoman
Liaison: Fawn Billie, Councilwoman

Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept School Board FY '15 3rd quarter report, seconded by Lisa
Summers. Motion carried unanimously:

3.

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

Land Claims Commission FY '15 3" quarter report — Amelia Cornelius, Chairwoman
Liaison: Brandon Stevens, Councilman
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Motion by David Jordan to accept Land Claims Commission FY 15 3rd quarter report, seconded by Trish
King. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

Motion by David Jordan to go into Executive Session at 2:20 p.m., seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion
carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth, Brandon Stevens

Councilman Brandon Stevens arrives at 2:35 p.m.

Motion by David Jordan to come out of Executive Session at 4:44 p.m., seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion
carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

XV. Executive Session

A. Reports
1. Chief Counsel report — Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept Chief Counsel report, seconded by Trish King. Motion carried
unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Motion by Lisa Summers to reject the presented settlement offer and to add the information to the
litigation update at the September 12, 2015 General Tribal Council meeting, seconded by Tehassi Hill.
Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

2. Intergovernmental Affairs and Communications report — Nathan King, Director/
Intergovernmental Affairs & Communications

Motion by Lisa Summers to accept Intergovernmental Affairs and Communications report and that the tax
guestion identified be a standing item until noted otherwise, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried
unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

3. Chief Financial Officer report — Larry Barton, Chief Financial Officer

Motion by David Jordan to accept Chief Financial Officer report, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion
carried unanimously:
Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
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Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

B. Standing Items
1. Land Claims Strategy
Sponsor:  Nathan King, Intergovernmental Affairs & Communications Director

Motion by Lisa Summers to approve the Land Claims Strategy update and have Intergovernmental Affairs
& Communications office work with Chairwoman Tina Danforth’s office to finalize the proposed
correspondence, seconded by Trish King. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

2. Goldwater suit — Indian Child Welfare case (No Requested Action)
Sponsor:  Nathan King, Intergovernmental Affairs & Communications Director

C. Audit Committee
Sponsor: Councilman Tehassi Hill, Chair

1. Accept Audit Committee meeting minutes of June 11, 2015

Motion by David Jordan to accept Audit Committee meeting minutes of June 11, 2015, seconded by
Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

2. Accept Audit Committee meeting minutes of August 13, 2015

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve Audit Committee meeting minutes of August 13, 2015, seconded
by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

3. Accept Table Games Compliance audit and lift confidentiality requirement

Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept Table Games Compliance audit and lift confidentiality requirement,
seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

4. Accept Surveillance (All Tiers) Compliance audit and lift confidentiality requirement

Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept Surveillance (All Tiers) Compliance audit and lift confidentiality
requirement, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

5. Accept Let it Ride Rules of Play audit and lift confidentiality requirement
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Motion by Brandon Stevens to accept Let it Ride Rules of Play audit and lift confidentiality requirement,
seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

6. Accept Golf Enterprises Final Summary report and lift confidentiality requirement

Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept Golf Enterprises Final Summary report and lift confidentiality
requirement, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

7. Accept Land Management/Land Commission Real Estate Acquisition Function Final
Summary Report, lift confidentiality requirement, and lift land acquisition moratorium

Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept Land Management/Land Commission Real Estate Acquisition Function
Final Summary Report, lift confidentiality requirement, and lift land acquisition moratorium, seconded by
Trish King. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

D. Unfinished Business (No Requested Action)

E. Tabled Business (No Requested Action)

F. New Business
1. Review complaint dated August 3, 2015
Sponsor:  Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Motion by Lisa Summers to defer complaint dated August 3, 2015 to the September 9, 2015 Business
Committee meeting, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Lisa Summers,
Jennifer Webster
Abstained: Brandon Stevens
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

2. Review concern dated August 18, 2015
Sponsor:  Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Motion by Lisa Summers to defer concern dated August 18, 2015 to the September 9, 2015 Business
Committee meeting, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously:
Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth
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3. Approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Service Stations Computer Systems,
Inc. contract # 2015-0844
Sponsor:  Michele Doxtator, Area Manager/Retail Profits

Motion by Trish King to approve limited waiver of sovereign immunity for Service Stations Computer
Systems, Inc. contract # 2015-0844 with the procedural exception for the finance committee to approve
contract next, seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried with one opposed:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Jennifer Webster
Opposed: Lisa Summers
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

XVI. Adjourn

Motion by David Jordan to adjourn meeting at 4:51 p.m., seconded by Trish King. Motion carried
unanimously:

Ayes: Fawn Billie, Tehassi Hill, David Jordan, Trish King, Brandon Stevens,
Lisa Summers, Jennifer Webster
Not Present: Melinda J. Danforth

Minutes prepared by Heather Heuer, Information Management Specialist
Minutes approved as presented/corrected on

Lisa Summers, Secretary
ONEIDA BUSINESS COMMITTEE
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
VI.A. Adopt resolution titled Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance Amendments

1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: [Resolutions

[[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Approve Resolution: ONGO Amendments

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report Resolution [] Contract

Other:
1/Memo 3|Fiscal Impact Statement
2/Statement of Effect 4 |Draft (Redline) & Draft (Clean)

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[ ] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [ ] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison: Brandon Stevens, Council Member

Primary Requestor: Krystal John, Staff Attorney/Legislative Reference Office

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2


hheuer
Typewritten Text
VI.A. Adopt resolution titled Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance Amendments

hheuer
Typewritten Text
Krystal John, Staff Attorney/Legislative Reference Office
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WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,
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BC Resolution
Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance Amendments

the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin is a federally recognized Indian government and
a treaty tribe recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and

the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Tribe of Indians of
Wisconsin; and

the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1,
of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and

Resolution GTC-07-05-04-A adopted the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance (ONGO) and
it was subsequently amended by the following Resolutions: BC-10-06-04-D, BC-03-23-
05-C, BC-09-23-09-D, and BC-06-25-14-B; and

the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA) authorizes the Oneida Business Committee to
enact legislation on an emergency basis, to be in effect for a period of six (6) months,
renewable for an additional six (6) months; and

the Oneida Business Committee adopted the latest emergency amendments to ONGO
that brought it into compliance with the National Indian Gaming Commission’s (NIGC)
regulations through Resolution BC-10-08-14-C and extended the said emergency
amendments for a six (6) month period through Resolution BC-04-22-15-B; and

the said emergency amendments to ONGO expire November 1, 2015 and no further
extensions are available pursuant to the LPA; and

the LPA requires that a law be permanently adopted in the emergency law’s place before
the emergency law expires in order for the contents of said emergency law to remain in
effect; and

the permanent amendments to ONGO are required to keep it in compliance with the
NIGC's regulations; and

the permanent ONGO amendments (1) add requirements to keep the identity of each
person interviewed in the course of a background investigation confidential; (2) require
certain documents from the Oneida Gaming Commission to be retained for at least three
years from the date of an employee’s employment being terminated; (3) require that if the
Oneida Gaming Commission suspends, conditions or revokes a license based on
information from NIGC, the Commission must forward that decision to NIGC within forty-
five (45) days of NIGC's notification that an employee is not eligible for a License; (4)
identify the Oneida Gaming Commission as the agency that will take fingerprints; (5)
include the process for determining an applicant’s eligibility for a license and notice to
NIGC; (6) clarify when an applicant may be issued a License; (7) include a section that
allows for NIGC review of a License and actions that will or may be taken based on that
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review; (8) require the Oneida Gaming Commission to forward a hearing decision
regarding a License to NIGC if the License was suspended, conditioned or revoked
based on a notification from NIGC; (9) require an approved revenue allocation plan
before per capita payments are made using gaming revenues; and (10) clarify how the
Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls are adopted and when they
become effective; and

WHEREAS, a public meeting on the amendments was held on July 30, 2015 in accordance with the
requirements of the LPA; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the attached amendments to ONGO are hereby adopted on
a permanent basis pursuant to the LPA’s requirements in order to allow the Tribe to partake in gaming
activities in compliance with the NIGC'’s regulations and that any current rules, standards or regulations
currently promulgated pursuant to ONGO remain in effect until revisions are sought, at which time to new
procedures contained in these ONGO amendments must be followed.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the attached amendments are effective immediately.
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wete sent to the NIGC for approval. On September 9, 2014, NIGC sent notice to the Commission
identifying discrepancies between ONGO and NIGC regulations. NIGC provided a deadline of
October 21, 2014, to submit the necessary amendments or to withdraw the request to amend
ONGO.

Section 16.9-5 of the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA) allows the Onecida Business Committee
(OBC) to take emergency action to amend a law where it is “necessary for the immediate
preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare of the reservation population™ and
when enactment or amendment of legislation is required sooner than would be possible under the
LPA. Through Resolution BC-10-08-14-C, the OBC enacted emergency amendments to ONGO
to obtain compliance with NIGC regulations, which were extended by Resolution BC-04-22-14-
B. These emergency amendments expire November 1, 2015,

The emergency amendments brought ONGO into compliance with NIGC’s regulations by
implementing the following revisions suggested by NIGC:

1. Requiring that the identity of any person interviewed in order to conduct a background
investigation shall be confidential [see ONGO§ 21.10-2],

2. Requiring that all applications, background investigations, investigative reports,
suitability determinations, findings and decisions of the Commission shall be retained in
the Commission’s files for a period of at least three (3) years from the date the applicant’s
employment is terminated /see ONGO §21,12-5(e)]; and

3. Requiring that if the license was suspended, conditioned or revoked based on information
from the NIGC under 21.12-8(a)(1), the Commission shall forward a copy of its decision
to NIGC within forty-five (45) days of NIGC’s notification that an employee shall not be
eligible for a license [see ONGO §21.12-8(e)].

Since the emergency amendments were adopted, NIGC submitted six (6) additional
recommendations for revisions to ONGO which would allow it to comply with NIGC
regulations. The additional six (6) recommendations:

1. Identify the agency (the Oneida Gaming Commission) that will take fingerprints [see
ONGO §21.12-2(m)];

2. Require the Oneida Gaming Commission to create and maintain an investigative repott
on each background investigation [see ONGO §21.12-5(c)];

3. Require the Oneida Gaming Commission to submit a notice of results of the applicant’s
background investigation to the NIGC no later than sixty (60) days after the applicant
begins work /[see ONGO §21.12-5(d)];

4. Require the Oneida Gaming Commission to notify the NIGC of the issuance of a license
to a primary management official of key employee within thirty (30) days [see ONGO
§21.12-6],

5. 1If the Oneida Gaming Commission decides not to issue a license to an applicant, require
the Oneida Gaming Commission to forward copies of its eligibility determination and
notice of results to the NIGC for inclusion in the Indian Gaming Individual Record
System [see ONGO §21.12-5(d)]; and

6. Upon receipt of notification from NIGC that a primary management official or a key
employee is not eligible for employee, require the Oneida Gaming Commission to
immediately suspend the license, provide the licensee with written notification of the

Page 2 of 3



Page 35 of 488

suspension and proposed revocation, and provide the licensee with notice of a time and
place for a hearing on the proposed revocation of the license [see ONGO §21.12-8(d)].

The permanent amendments to ONGO include all nine (9) revisions suggested by the NIGC to
attain compliance with their regulations. In addition, the amendments also (1) require that an
approved revenue allocation plan is in place before per capita payments are made using gaming
revenues [see ONGO §21.12-8(d)] and (2) clarify how the Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming
Minimum Internal Controls are adopted and when they become effective [see ONGO §21.6-
14(d)].

Conclusion :
The adoption of this Resolution does not conflict with any current law or policy of the Tribe,
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OF WISCONSIN

ONEIDA FINANCE OFFICE
Office: (920) 869-4325 e Toll Free: 1-800-236-2214
FAX # (920) 869-4024

MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 27, 2015
FROM: Rae Skenandore, Project Manager
TO: Larry Barton, Chief Financial Officer
Ralinda Ninham-Lamberies, Assistant Chief Financial Officer
RE: Fiscal Impact of the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance (ONGO) Amendments
I. Background

The Oneida Tribal Judicial System was created by GTC Resolution # 01-07-13-B. Transitioning from the
Appeals Commission to the Judiciary required changes to the terminology in ONGO. Amendments to
ONGO were submitted to the National Indian Gaming Commission (NIGC) for approval and
discrepancies between ONGO, Federal Law and NIGC regulations were brought to Oneida’s attention.
Emergency amendments were adopted on October 8, 2014 and extended on April 22, 2015. The
amendments will expire on November 1st, 2015.

The amendments to ONGO are;
1. To comply with Federal law and NIGC regulations.
2. Requested by the Gaming Commission to clarify existing processes.

I1. Executive Summary of Findings

The amendments appear to simply reinforce and clarify existing practices, correct terminology and
identify appropriate authorities for reviews and approvals. According to the Gaming Commission
Chairman, there are no financial effects associated with implementing the amendments. There are no
startup costs, additional personnel needed, office space added or expenses needed for documentation.
The legislation can be implemented immediately upon approval utilizing existing in-house resources.

I11.Financial Impact
No fiscal impact

IV. Recommendation

The Finance Department does not make a recommendation in regards to course of action in this matter.
Rather, it is the purpose of this report to disclose potential financial impact of an action, so that General
Tribal Council has sufficient information to render a decision.
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Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance
Thatiwi*?Stunya‘tha Olihwa ke

Matters of interest to where they make the money
21.1. Purpose and Policy 21.11. Licenses, Generaly
21.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 21.12. Gaming Employee License
21.3. Jurisdiction 21.13. Gaming Services Licensing and Non-Gaming Services
21.4. Definitions Permitting
21.5. Oneida Business Committee: Powers and Duties 21.14. Gaming Facility License
21.6. Oneida Gaming Commission 21.15. Gaming Operator License
21.7. Gaming Surveillance: Powers, Duties and Limitations 21.16. Games
21.8. [Reserved for future use.] 21.17. Allocation of Gaming Funds
21.9. Gaming Security Department 21.18. Audits
21.10. Background Investigations 21.19. Enforcement and Penalties

21.1. Purpose and Policy

21.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance is to set forth the laws of the Oneida Tribe of
Indians of Wisconsin regarding all Gaming Activities conducted within the jurisdiction set forth
in this Ordinance. It is intended to govern the Gaming Activities of all persons, Gaming
Employees, consultants, business entities, vendors, boards, committees, commissions and
hearing bodies. This Ordinance does not authorize the operation of Gaming by a private person
or private entity for gain. This Ordinance shall govern al Gaming Activities occurring on lands
under the jurisdiction set forth in this Ordinance and all individuals or entities engaged in
Gaming Activities, including those providing goods or services to any person or entity engaged
in Gaming Activities.

21.1-2. Policy. Itisthe policy of this Ordinance to ensure that the Oneida Tribe is the primary
beneficiary of its Gaming Operations and has the sole proprietary interest, and that Gaming
Activities within the jurisdiction set forth in this Ordinance are conducted fairly and honestly,
and that all internal departments, enterprises, officials and employees of the Oneida Tribe work
cooperatively to advance the best interests of the Oneida Tribe to protect the Tribe's gaming
resources, protect the integrity of all Gaming Activities operated under the jurisdiction set forth
in this Ordinance and to ensure fairness of all games offered to the Tribe' s gaming patrons.

21.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal
21.2-1. Adoption. This Ordinance was adopted by the Oneida General Tribal Council by
resolution GTC-07-05-04-A and amended by resolutions BC-10-06-04-D, BC-3-23-05-C, BC-9-
23-09-D, BC-06-25-14-B and :
21.2-2. Amendment. This Ordinance may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business
Committee or the Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the
Legidative Procedures Act.
21.2-3 Severability. Should a provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any
person or circumstances be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of
this Ordinance which are considered to have legal force without the invalid portions.
21.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this Ordinance and a provision of
another law, the provisions of this Ordinance shall control. Provided that, this Ordinance repeals
the following:
(a) BC-04-21-89-D (Adoption of the Oneida Gaming Control Ordinance);
(b) GTC-03-04-91-A (Establishing 7 elected Gaming Commissioners and Bingo
standards);

21-1
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(c) GTC-07-06-92-A (Amendments to Gaming SOP Manual);

(d) GTC-07-06-92-B (Adoption of the Comprehensive Gaming Ordinance);

(e) BC-03-16-94-A; (Comprehensive Gaming Ordinance Interpretation); and

(f) BC-04-5-95-D (Amendments to the Comprehensive Gaming Ordinance).
21.2-5. This Ordinance is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Tribe of
Indians of Wisconsin.
21.2-6. Name. This Ordinance is to be known as the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance or
ONGO.
21.2-7. Preemptive Authority. The Gaming Commission shall be the origina hearing body
authorized to hear licensing decisions as set forth in this Ordinance.

21.3. Jurisdiction
21.3-1. Territorial Jurisdiction. This Ordinance extends to al land within the exterior
boundaries of the Reservation of the Tribe, as established pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the
Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law.
21.3-2. Subject Matter Jurisdiction. This Ordinance appliesto all Gaming conducted within the
territorial jurisdiction of the Oneida Tribe as set forth in section 21.3-1.
21.3-3. Personal Jurisdiction. This Ordinance governs.
(@) the Tribe;
(b) tribal members; and
(c) individuals and businesses leasing, occupying, or otherwise using Tribal Fee Land on
the Reservation and al Tribal Trust Land.

21.4. Definitions
21.4-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this
Ordinance. Words and phrases capitalized throughout this document refer to the defined words
and phrases in this section. All words or phrases not defined herein shall be used in their
ordinary and everyday sense.
21.4-2. Applicant means any person or entity who has applied for a License from the Oneida
Gaming Commission or the Oneida Business Committee.
21.4-3. Background Investigation means a standard and thorough investigation conducted by the
Oneida Tribe in compliance with this Ordinance, Commission regulations, Oneida Gaming
Minimum Internal Controls, the IGRA and the Compact. Such investigations may be in
cooperation with federal, state, or Tribal law enforcement agencies.
21.4-4. Class | Gaming means social games solely for prizes of minimal value or traditional
forms of Indian gaming engaged in by individuals as a part of, or in connection with, Tribal
ceremonies or celebrations.
21.4-5. Class Il Gaming means:
(& The game of chance commonly known as bingo (whether or not electronic, computer
or other technologic aids are used in connection therewith) in which:
(1) The game is played for prizes, including monetary prizes, with cards bearing
numbers or other designations.
(2) The holder of the card covers such numbers or designations when objects,
similarly numbered or designated, are drawn or electronically determined.
(3 The game is won by the first person covering a previously designated
arrangement of numbers or designation on such cards, including (if played in the
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same location) pull-tabs, lotto, punch boards, tip jars, instant bingo and other
games similar to bingo.
(b) Card gamesthat:
(1) Areexplicitly authorized by the laws of the State; or
(2) Are not explicitly prohibited by the laws of the State and are played at any
location in the State, but only if such card games are played in conformity with
laws and regulations (if any) of the State regarding hours or periods of operation
of such card games or limitations on wagers or pot sizes in such card games.
Class Il Gaming does not include any banking card games, including baccarat,
chemin de fer, or blackjack (twenty-one), or electronic or electro-mechanical
facsimiles of any game of chance or slot machines of any kind.
21.4-6. Class Il Gaming means all forms of Gaming that are not Class| or Class|I.
21.4-7. Commission means the Oneida Gaming Commission as established by this Ordinance.
21.4-8. Commissioner means aduly elected member of the Oneida Gaming Commission.
21.4-9. Compact means the 1991 Tribe-State Gaming Compact between the Tribe and the State
of Wisconsin as amended and any future amendments or successor compact entered into by the
Tribe and State and approved by the Secretary of the United States Department of Interior.
21.4-10. Compliance Certificate means a certificate issued by an agency with the authority and
responsibility to enforce applicable environmental, health or safety standards, which states that a
Gaming Facility complies with these standards.
21.4-11. Environmental Assessment means a document prepared and issued in compliance with
the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 42 U.S.C. sec. 4321 et seq., and al related
Federal regulations.
21.4-12. Fraud means any act of trickery or deceit used to or intended to gain control or
possession of the property of another.
21.4-13. Games, Gaming, or Gaming Activity means all forms of any activity, operation, or
game of chance that is considered Class || or Class |1l Gaming, provided that this definition does
not include Class | Gaming.
21.4-14. Gaming Employee means any person employed by a Gaming Operation.
21.4-15. Gaming Facility or Gaming Facilities means any location or structure, stationary or
movable, wherein Gaming is permitted, performed, conducted, or operated. Gaming Facility
does not include the site of afair, carnival, exposition, or similar occasion.
21.4-16. Gaming Operation means the conduct of Gaming Activities and related business
activities in Gaming Facilities and areas where Gaming Employees are employed or assigned.
21.4-17. Gaming Operator means the Tribe, an enterprise owned by the Tribe, or such other
entity of the Tribe as the Tribe may from time to time designate as the wholly-owned entity
having full authority and responsibility for the operation and management of Gaming
Operations.
21.4-18. Gaming Services means the provision of any goods and services, except legal services
and accounting services, to a Gaming Operation, including, but not limited to, equipment,
transportation, food, linens, janitorial supplies, maintenance, or security services.
21.4-19. Indian Gaming Regulatory Act or IGRA means Public Law 100-497, 102 Stat. 2426, 25
U.S.C. sec. 2701, et seq., as amended.
21.4-20. Judiciary means the judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal
Council resolution GTC #1-07-13-B to administer the judicial authorities and responsibilities of
the Tribe.
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21.4-21. License means a certificate or other document that represents the grant of a revocable
authorization to conduct the licensed activity. A License must be supported by a physical
document, badge, certification or other physical manifestation of the issuance of the revocable
authorization to conduct the licensed activity.

21.4-22. Licensee means a person or entity issued avalid License.

21.4-23. NIGC means the National Indian Gaming Commission.

21.4-24. Oneida Business Committee means the elected governing body of the Tribe exercising
authority delegated from the Oneida General Tribal Council of the Oneida Tribe of Indians of
Wisconsin under Article IV of the Constitution and By-laws for the Oneida Tribe of Indians of
Wisconsin, approved December 21, 1936, as thereafter amended.

21.4-25. Oneida General Tribal Council means the governing body of the Oneida Tribe of
Indians of Wisconsin as determined by the Tribe’ s Constitution.

21.4-26. Ordinance or ONGO means the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance as it may from time
to time be amended.

21.4-27. Regulatory Incident means the occurrence of any event giving rise to a potential or
alleged non-compliance with a gaming regulation, ordinance, law or policy involving any person
or Licensee on the premises of a Gaming Facility.

21.4-28. Remediation means efforts taken to reduce the source and migration of environmental
contaminants at a site.

21.4-29. Reservation means all lands within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation of the
Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin, as created pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the Oneida, 7
Stat. 566, and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law.

21.4-30. Senior Gaming Management means the gaming general manager, assistant gaming
general managers, gaming directors and assistant gaming directors.

21.4-31. State meansthe State of Wisconsin, its authorized officials, agents and representatives.
21.4-32. Tribe meansthe Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin.

21.4-33. Tribal Fee Land means al land to which the Tribe holds title in fee simple.

21.4-34. Tribal Trust Land means all land to which the United States holds title for the benefit
of the Tribe pursuant to federal law.

21.5. Oneida Business Committee: Powers and Duties

21.5-1. The Oneida Business Committee retains the power and duty to enter into agreements or
compacts with the State under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.

21.5-2. The Oneida Business Committee retains the power and duty to enter into agreements
with local governments and other Tribal governments for services or cooperative ventures for the
Gaming Operations.

21.5-3. The Oneida Business Committee has the exclusive power and duty to enter into
contracts and agreements affecting the assets of the Tribe, except for those assets that were
placed under the responsibility of the Oneida Land Commission under Chapter 67, Real Property
Law.

21.5-4. The Oneida Business Committee delegates to the Commission, as set out in section 21.6-
14, certain authorities and responsibilities for the regulation of Gaming Activities, Gaming
Operations, Gaming Operators, Gaming Employees, Gaming Facilities, Gaming Services, and
enforcement of laws and regulations, as identified in this Ordinance.

21.5-5. The Oneida Business Committee retains the duty and responsibility to safeguard all
funds generated by the Gaming Operations and all other authorities and responsibilities not
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delegated by a specific provision of this Ordinance.

21.5-6. The Chairperson of the Tribe must be the designated and registered agent to receive
notice of violations, orders, or determinations which are issued pursuant to the Indian Gaming
Regulatory Act and the Compact.

21.6. Oneida Gaming Commission
21.6-1. Establishment and Purpose. The Oneida Business Committee has established the
Oneida Gaming Commission for the purpose of regulating all Gaming Activities. The
Commission is an elected body comprised of four (4) members, provided that, the Oneida
Business Committee may, upon request of the Commission, increase the number of
Commissioners by resolution without requiring amendment of this Ordinance.
21.6-2. Location and Place of Business. The Commission shall maintain its offices and
principal place of business within the Reservation.
21.6-3. Duration and Attributes. The Commission will have perpetual existence and succession
in its own name, unless dissolved by Tribal law. Operations of the Commission must be
conducted on behalf of the Tribe for the sole benefit of the Tribe and its members. The Tribe
reserves unto itself the right to bring suit against any person or entity in its own right, on behalf
of the Tribe, or on behalf of the Commission, whenever the Tribe considers it necessary to
protect the sovereignty, rights, and interests of the Tribe or the Commission.
21.6-4. Sovereign Immunity of the Tribe.
(@) All inherent sovereign rights of the Tribe with regard to the existence and activities of
the Commission are hereby expressly reserved.
(b) The Tribe confers upon the Commission sovereign immunity from suit as set forth in
the Tribe's Sovereign Immunity Ordinance.
(c) Nothing in this Ordinance nor any action of the Commission may be construed to be
awaiver of its sovereign immunity or that of the Tribe, or consent by the Commission or
the Tribe to the jurisdiction of the Judiciary, the United States, any state, or any other
tribe, or consent by the Tribe to any suit, cause of action, case or controversy, or the levy
of any judgment, lien, or attachment upon any property of the Commission or the Tribe.
21.6-5. Requirements of Commission Membership.
(8 Qualifications. Candidates for election or appointment to the Commission must be at
least twenty-one (21) years of age on the day of the election or on the day of
appointment. In addition, candidates for election to the Commission shall meet the
following qualifications within five (5) business days after a caucus for elected positions
on the Commission. Candidates for appointment to the Commission shall meet the
following qualifications on the day of appointment to a vacancy on the Commission
under section 21.6-13:
(1) Bean enrolled member of the Tribe;
(2) Have a minimum of three (3) years of education experience, employment
experience and/or regulatory experience in Gaming Operations related to Gaming
Activity, Gaming law, Gaming control or regulation, or Gaming accounting or of
any combination of the foregoing; and
(3) Meet al other qualifications set forth in this Ordinance.
(b) Conflict of Interest. No person may be considered for election or appointment as a
Commissioner until the candidate has disclosed all conflicts of interest as defined by the
Oneida Conflict of Interest Policy.
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(c) Background Investigation. No person may be considered for election or appointment
as a Commissioner until a preliminary Background Investigation has been completed and
the person has been found to meet all qualifications.
(d) Swearing into office is subject to a Background Investigation regarding the
qualifications set forth in sections 21.6-5 and 21.6-6 upon being elected or appointed to
office.
21.6-6. Unless pardoned for activities under subsection (@) and/or (d) by the Tribe, or pardoned
for an activity under subsection (a) and/or (d) by another Federally-recognized Indian Tribe for
an action occurring within the jurisdiction of the Federally-recognized Indian Tribe, or pardoned
for an activity under subsection (a) and/or (d) by the State or Federal government, no individual
may be eligible for election or appointment to, or to continue to serve on, the Commission, who:
(@ Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, any of the
following:*
(1) Any gambling-related offense;
(2) Any offense involving Fraud or misrepresentation;
(3) Any offense involving a violation of any provision of chs. 562 or 565, Wis.
Stats., any rule promulgated by the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration, Division of Gaming or any rule promulgated by the Wisconsin
Racing Board,
(4) A felony not addressed in paragraphs 1, 2, or 3, during the immediately
preceding ten (10) years; or
(5) Any offense involving the violation of any provision of Tribal law regulating
the conduct of Gaming Activities, or any rule or regulation promulgated pursuant
thereto.
(b) Has been determined by the Tribe to be a person whose prior activities, crimina
record if any, or reputation, habits, and associations pose a threat to the public interest or
to the effective regulation and control of Gaming, or create or enhance the dangers of
unsuitable, unfair, or illegal practices, methods, or activities in the operation of Gaming
or the carrying on of the business and financial arrangements incidental thereto;
(c) Possesses a financia interest in or management responsibility for any Gaming
Activity or Gaming Services vendor;
(d) Has been convicted of a crime involving theft, Fraud, or conversion against the
Tribe;
(e) Has been removed from any office pursuant to the Oneida Removal Law within the
past five (5) years; or
(f) Isasditting Commissioner whose term is not concluded at the time of that election or
appointment action.
21.6-7. Term of Office. Commissioners shall serve five (5) year terms and shall serve until a
successor takes the oath of office. Terms of office must be staggered.
21.6-8. Official Oath. Each Commissioner shall take the official oath at a regular or special
Oneida Business Committee meeting prior to assuming office. Upon being administered the oath

" This section taken substantially from Section IX of the Tribe-State Gaming Compact.
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of office, a Commissioner shall assume the duties of office and must be issued a security card
setting forth his or her title and term of office.
21.6-9. Full-time Status. The Commission shall identify the appropriate work schedule for its
members. Each Commissioner shall perform his or her duties and responsibilities on a full-time
basis and shall devote his or her entire work and professional time, attention and energies to
Commission business, and may not, during his or her tenure in office, be engaged in any other
profession or business activity that may impede the Commissioner’s ability to perform duties on
behalf of the Commission or that competes with the Tribe' sinterests.
21.6-10. Bylaws. The Commission shall adopt bylaws subject to review and approva by the
Oneida Business Committee.
21.6-11. Budget and Compensation. The Commission shall function pursuant to an annual
budget. The Oneida Business Committee shall submit the operating budget of the Commission
for approval in the same fashion as all other Tribal budgets. Compensation of Commissionersis
not subject to the Tribe's Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and
Commissions, but must be established by the Commission in a manner consistent with the
Commission's internal rules and bylaws. The Commission shall adopt internal rules consistent
with the existing Tribal accounting practicesto verify its budgetary expenditures.
21.6-12. Removal. Removal of Commissioners must be pursuant to the Oneida Removal Law.
21.6-13. Vacancies. Any vacancy in an unexpired term of office, however caused, must be
filled by appointment by the Oneida Business Committee of a person qualified pursuant to
sections 21.6-5 and 21.6-6 pursuant to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees and Commissions.
21.6-14. Authority and Responsibilities. Subject to any restrictions contained in this Ordinance
or other applicable law, the Commission is vested with powers including, but not limited to the
following:
(8 To exercise al power and authority necessary to effectuate the gaming regulatory
purposes of this Ordinance, IGRA, Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls, and the
Compact. Unless otherwise indicated in this Ordinance or Commission regulation, or
authorized by majority vote of the Commission, no Commissioner may act independently
of the Commission. Any such action may constitute grounds for removal.
(b) To promote and ensure the integrity, security, honesty, and fairness of the regulation
and administration of Gaming.
(c) To draft, and approve, subject to review and adoption by the Oneida Business
Committee, regulations pursuant to this Ordinance for the regulation of all Gaming
Activity, including processes for enforcement of such regulations consistent with Tribal
law.
(d) To draft and approve the Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls; provided that, Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
require review and comment by Senior Gaming Management prior to approval by the
Commission and are subject to review by the Oneida Business Committee.
(1) Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls are minimum
standards with which the Gaming Operations are required to comply and are
audited against.
(2) Comments received from Senior Gaming Management must be included in
any submission to the Oneida Business Committee.
(3) Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls are effective
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upon adoption by the Commission. The Commission shall provide notice of
adoption of the Rules of Play and/or Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
to the Oneida Business Committee at the next available regularly scheduled
Oneida Business Committee meeting following such adoption. If the Oneida
Business Committee has any concerns and/or requested revisions upon review of
the Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls, the
Commission shall work with the Oneida Business Committee to address such
concerns and/or requested revisions.
(A) Unless the Oneida Business Committee repeals the Rules of Play
and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls adopted by the
Commission, they will remain in effect while the Commission and the
Oneida Business Committee jointly work to amend the Rules of Play
and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls adopted by the
Commission.
(i) Should the Oneida Business Committee repeal the Rules of
Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission, the Rules of Play and/or the Oneida
Gaming Minimum Internal Controls that were in effect
immediately previous to those repealed will be automatically
reinstated and effective immediately upon the repeal of the Rules
of Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission.
(B) If the Commission does not receive written notice from the Oneida
Business Committee of intent to repeal or amend the Rules of Play and/or
the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls within thirty (30) days of
the date the Oneida Business Committee is provided notice of the Rules of
Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls adopted by
the Commission, they will remain in effect as adopted by the Commission.
(C) Should the Oneida Business Committee pursue amendments to the
Rules of Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission, the amendments must be completed through
one (1) of the following actions within six (6) months from the date the
amendments are initiated by the Oneida Business Committee:
(i) if the Commission and the Oneida Business Committee reach
an agreement as to the content of the amendments, the
Commission must adopt revised Rules of Play and/or the Oneida
Gaming Minimum Internal Controls that have been discussed with
and agreed upon by the Oneida Business Committee; or
(i) if the Commission and the Oneida Business Committee do not
reach an agreement as to the content of the amendments, the
Oneida Business Committee may adopt revised Rules of Play
and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls that
incorporate the amendments it deems necessary.
(D) If revised Rules of Play and/or Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls are not adopted by either the Commission or the Oneida Business
Committee within six (6) months from the date the amendments are
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initiated by the Oneida Business Committee, the Rules of Play and/or the
Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls originaly adopted by the
Commission will remain in effect.
(e) To prepare proposas, including budgetary and monetary proposals, which might
enable the Tribe to carry out the purpose and intent of this Ordinance, and to submit the
same for consideration by the Oneida Business Committee; provided, however, that no
such proposal shall have any force or effect unless it is approved by the Oneida Business
Committee.
(f) To monitor and enforce all laws and regulations governing the operation and conduct
of all Gaming Activities, including the ongoing monitoring of Licenses, subject to this
Ordinance and/or regulations setting forth hearing or enforcement processes.
(g) To monitor and investigate all Gaming Operators for compliance with internal audits,
and external audits.
(h) To inspect, examine, and photocopy all papers, books, and records of Gaming
Activities and any other matters necessary to carry out the duties pursuant hereto,
provided that, all photocopies of documents must be maintained in a confidential manner
or in the same manner asthe original.
(i) To grant, deny, revoke, condition, suspend or reinstate the Licenses of Gaming
Employees, Gaming Services vendors, and Gaming Operators.
(1) To conduct hearings relating to Licenses issued under this Ordinance by the
Commission.
(K) To review al vendors doing business with the Gaming Operator to verify that such
persons or entities hold a valid License, where required, to do business with a Gaming
Operator.
(I) To retain professional advisors such as attorneys, law enforcement specialists, and
Gaming professionals consistent with Tribal law and practices.
(m) To arbitrate, negotiate, or settle any dispute to which it is a party and which relates
to its authorized activities.
(n) To act asthe designated agent to receive all regulatory notices not included in section
21.5-6.
(o) Toinvestigate all Regulatory Incidents.
(p) Toissue warnings or notices of violation, in accordance with regulations, to Gaming
Operators and Licensees for non-compliance with the Compact, Oneida Gaming
Minimum Internal Controls, Rules of Play, IGRA, or this Ordinance.
(q) To make determinations regarding suitability for licensing.
() To establish an administrative structure by regulation to carry out its authority and
responsibilities.
(s) To establish, where needed, additional processes for conducting licensing hearings by
regulation.
(t) To establish and collect fees for processing License applications by regulation.
(u) To establish and impose a point system for findings of regulatory violations by any
Gaming Employee by regulation.
(v) To establish and impose a fine system for findings of regulatory violations by any
Gaming Services vendor or permittee by regulation.
(w) To approve procedures that provide for the fair and impartial resolution of patron
complaints.
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21.6-15. Reporting Requirements. The Commission shall adhere to the following reporting
requirements:
(@) A true, complete and accurate record of all proceedings of the Commission must be
kept and maintai ned;
(b) Complete and accurate minutes of all Commission meetings must be filed with the
Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee within thirty (30) days of their approval by
the Commission;
() Quarterly, or as may be directed by the Oneida Business Committee, reports of the
Commission’s activities, including information regarding funding, income and expenses
and any other matters to which the parties may agree, must be submitted to the Oneida
Business Committee.
21.6-16. Oneida Gaming Commission Personnel. The Commission shall hire an Executive
Director who is responsible for hiring and managing the personnel of the Commission. The
Executive Director shall hire such personnel asis necessary to assist the Commission to fulfill its
responsibilities under this Ordinance, the IGRA, and the Compact, and all regulations including
the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls. The Executive Director and personnel of the
Commission must be hired through the Tribe's regular personnel procedure and are subject to its
personnel policies and salary schedules. The Executive Director and personnel shall meet the
requirements set forth in section 21.12-3 at hiring and during employment.

21.7. Gaming Surveillance: Powers, Duties and Limitations
21.7-1. Purpose. The purpose of Gaming Surveillance is to observe and report Regulatory
Incidents to the Commission and Gaming General Manager to provide for the regulation,
operation, and compliance of Gaming Activities under this Ordinance. Gaming Surveillanceisa
department within the Commission’s administrative structure and supervision must be identified
within the organizational chart adopted by the Commission, provided that nothing in the
designation of supervisory responsibility may be deemed to prohibit the responsibility of Gaming
Surveillance to provide information and/or video and/or audio records to the parties identified in
section 21.7-3.
21.7-2. Gaming Surveillance shall be responsible for al Gaming surveillance activities
including, but not limited to, equipment and maintenance of equipment, observation and
reporting of all persons to include Gaming Employees, customers, consultants, and Gaming
Services vendors.
21.7-3. Surveillance personnel shall provide to Senior Gaming Management, the Commission,
or Gaming Security a copy of any time-recorded video and accompanying audio (if available)
within twenty-four (24) hours of request.
21.7-4. Gaming Surveillance shall:
(a8) Develop, implement and maintain written policies and procedures for the conduct and
integrity of the Surveillance Department.
(b) Develop, implement and maintain additional procedures governing the use and
release of the surveillance recordings or reports.
(c) Work cooperatively with the Gaming Security Department to carry out its official
duties and to coordinate its activities in order to effectuate the protection of patrons and
the assets of the Gaming Operation.
(d) Develop, implement and maintain written policies and procedures for implementation
of duties and responsibilities identified with the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
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Controls, subject to approval by the Commission.
21.8. [Reserved for future use.]

21.9. Gaming Security Department
21.9-1. Purpose. The Gaming Security Department is a department within the Oneida Police
Department. The purpose of the Gaming Security Department is to protect Gaming assets,
patrons and Gaming Employees from an activity, repeat activity, or ongoing activities which
could injure or jeopardize Gaming assets, patrons and Gaming Employees and report these
activities to the Oneida Police Department for further review and/or investigation. Provided that,
al reports of the Gaming Security Department must be copied to the Commission.
21.9-2. Reporting. The Oneida Police Department, Gaming Genera Manager and the
Commission shall enter into an agreement, subject to ratification by the Oneida Business
Committee, which describes their responsibilities and reporting requirements under this
Ordinance.
21.9-3. The Gaming Security Department shall:
(@) Develop, implement and maintain written policies and procedures for the conduct and
integrity of Gaming Security, asidentified in the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls and subject to approval by the Commission.
(b) Develop, implement and maintain additional procedures governing the use and
release of the investigation reports.
(c) Work cooperatively with Gaming Surveillance to carry out its official duties and to
coordinate activities between the departments.
21.9-4. Investigations. This section is intended to authorize report gathering, information
gathering, and preliminary review, to be conducted by the Gaming Security Department.

21.10. Background Investigations

21.10-1. The Human Resources Department and the Commission shall enter into an agreement,
subject to ratification by the Oneida Business Committee, for carrying out Background
Investigations for employees as required under this Ordinance.

21.10-2. Background Investigations must be conducted on all persons or entities as specified
under this Ordinance. All Background Investigations must be conducted to ensure that the Tribe
in its Gaming Operations may not employ or contract with persons whose prior activities, or
reputation, habits and associations pose a threat to the public interest or to the effective
regulation of Gaming, or create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair or illegal practices
and methods in the conduct of such Gaming. The identity of any person interviewed in order to
conduct a Background Investigation must be confidential.

21.11. Licenses, Generally

21.11-1. The Commission shall adopt procedures that ensure the efficient and orderly processing
of al applications for a License. All Gaming Employees, Gaming Services vendors, and
Gaming Operators shall apply for a License from the Commission prior to their participation in
any Gaming Activity. All Gaming Facilities must be licensed by the Oneida Business
Committee.

21.11-2. Temporary License. All Applicants, upon receipt by the Commission of a completed
application for a License and completion of a preliminary Background Investigation, may
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receive a temporary license for a ninety (90) day period, unless a Background Investigation of
the application demonstrates grounds to disqualify the Applicant. Such temporary license, as
defined in this section, permits the Licensee to engage in such activities and pursuant to any
terms and conditions imposed and specified by the Commission. The temporary license is valid
until either replaced by a License, the ninety (90) day temporary license period has concluded, or
the temporary license is cancelled by the Commission, whichever occursfirst.
21.11-3. Revocable. A Licenseisrevocable only in accordance with the procedures set forth in
this Ordinance. A Licensee has only those rights and protections regarding a License granted in
this Ordinance.
21.11-4. All Applicants:
(8 Consent to the release of any information relevant to the Applicant’s Background
Investigation by any person or entity in possession of such information.
(b) Consent to the jurisdiction of the Tribe and are subject to all applicable Tribal,
Federal, and State laws, regulations, and policies.
21.11-5. All Licensees are subject to ongoing review at least every two (2) years by the
Commission.
21.11-6. Status of Licenses. The Commission shall notify the Gaming Operation of the status of
al Licenses, whether temporary or permanent, including al Commission action to revoke,
suspend, or condition a License.
21.11-7. Commission Licensing Actions. The Commission may grant, deny, revoke, condition,
suspend or reinstate all Licenses, except for Gaming Facilities Licenses, in accordance with this
Ordinance. Authority to place conditions on a License may be exercised only upon
promulgation of regulations.
21.11-8. Noncompliance. The Commission may issue a notice of noncompliance when the
Commission has developed regulations that identify procedures that notices of noncompliance
may be issued to Licensees and permittees which provide an opportunity to correct actions. Such
regulations must include procedures for appea of such notices. Regulations may include the
ability to issue fines not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1000.00) per violation for Gaming
Services vendors and permittees.

21.12. Gaming Employee License
21.12-1. Scope of Section. This section applies only to Gaming Employee Licenses and
licensing actions.
21.12-2. License Application. Every Applicant for a License shall file with the Commission a
written application in the form prescribed by the Commission, duly executed and verified, which
must certify:
(@ Applicant’s full name and al other names used (oral or written), Social Security
Number(s), place of birth, date of birth, citizenship, gender, and all languages (spoken or
written).
(b) Currently, and for the previous five (5) years: business and employment positions
held, ownership interests in those businesses, business and residence addresses, and
driver’s license number(s).
() The names and current addresses, of at least three (3) personal references, including
one (1) personal reference, who were acquainted with the Applicant during each period of
residence listed in subsection (b) above.
(d) Current business and residence telephone numbers.
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(e) A description of any existing and previous business relationships with Indian Tribes,
including ownership interest in those businesses.
(f) A description of any existing and previous business relationship with the Gaming
industry generally, including ownership interest in those businesses.
(@ The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which the
Applicant has filed an application for a license or permit related to Gaming, whether or
not such license or permit was granted.
() The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which the
Applicant has filed an application for an occupational license or permit, whether or not
such license or permit was granted.
(i) For each felony conviction or ongoing prosecution or conviction, the charge, the
name and address of the court involved, and the date and disposition if any.
() For each misdemeanor or ongoing misdemeanor prosecution (excluding violations for
which jail time is not part of the potential sentence) within ten (10) years of the date of
the application, the name and address of the court involved, and the date and disposition.
(k) For each criminal charge (excluding charges for which jail time is not part of the
potential sentence) whether or not there is a conviction, if such crimina charge is within
ten (10) years of the date of the application and is not otherwise listed pursuant to
subsections (i) or (j) of this section, the criminal charge, the name and address of the
court involved and the date and disposition.
(1) A photograph.
(m) Fingerprints consistent with procedures adopted by the Commission which meet the
criteria set forth in 25 C.F.R. section 522.2(h). The Commission is the agency that takes
the fingerprints.
(n) Any other information the Commission deems relevant for a Gaming Employee
License.
(o) A statement that each Applicant has read and understands notices and NIGC
requirements relating to:

(1) The Privacy Act of 1974,

(2) Fraud and False Statements Act; and

(3) Fair Credit Reporting Act.

21.12-3. License Qualifications. No License may be granted if the Applicant:

(@ Isunder the age of eighteen (18).
(b) Unless pardoned for activities under this subsection by the Tribe, or pardoned for
activities under this subsection by another Federally-recognized Indian Tribe for an
action occurring within the jurisdiction of the Federaly-recognized Indian Tribe, or
pardoned for activities under this subsection by the state or Federal government, has been
convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, any of the following:
(1) Any gambling-related offense;
(2) Any offense involving Fraud or misrepresentation;
(3) Any offense involving a violation of any provision of chs. 562 or 565, Wis.
Stats,, any rule promulgated by the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration, Division of Gaming or any rule promulgated by the Wisconsin
Racing Board,
(4) A felony not addressed in paragraphs (1), (2), or (3), during the immediately
preceding ten (10) years; or
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(5 Any offense involving the violation of any provision of Tribal law regulating
the conduct of Gaming Activities, or any rule or regulation promulgated pursuant
thereto.
(c) Is determined to be a person whose prior activities, criminal record, reputation,
habits, or associations pose athreat to the public interest or to the effective regulation and
control of Gaming or create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair, or illegal
practices, methods, or activities in the operation of Gaming Activities or the carrying on
of the business and financial arrangements incidental thereto.
(d) Possesses a financial interest in or management responsibility for any Gaming
Activity or Gaming Services vendor, or he or she has any personal, business, or legal
relationship which places him or her in a conflict of interest as defined in this Ordinance
or the Conflict of Interest Policy.
(e) Each person licensed as a Gaming Employee has a continuing obligation to inform
the Commission immediately upon the existence of any circumstance or the occurrence
of any event which may disqualify him or her from being licensed as a Gaming
Employee. Failure to report any such occurrence may result in suspension or revocation
of the Gaming Employee’'s License.

21.12-4. Initial Eligibility Determination.

() Based on the results of the preliminary Background Investigation, the Commission
shall make an initial determination regarding an Applicant’s eligibility and either:
(1) Grant atemporary license, with or without conditions, to the Applicant; or
(2) Deny the License application and provide notice to the Applicant that he or
she may request a hearing regarding the decision consistent with subsection (b)
below.
(b) If the Commission determines that an Applicant is ineligible for a License, the
Commission shall notify the Applicant. The Commission shall set forth regulations for
an Applicant to review any information discovered during the preliminary Background
Investigation prior to scheduling a hearing under section 21.12-10. The suspension or
revocation hearing provisions set forth at section 21.12-9 do not apply to Initial
Eligibility Determinations.

21.12-5. Eligibility Determination and Notification to NIGC. When a Gaming Employee begins
employment at a Gaming Operation, the Commission shall:

(& Require the Gaming Employee to submit a completed application for employment
that contains the notices and information listed in section 21.12-2;

(b) Review the Background Investigation of the Gaming Employee. Within sixty (60)
days after a Gaming Employee begins employment at a Gaming Facility under a
temporary license, the Commission shall make an eligibility determination regarding
whether the Gaming Employee may receive a License based upon the results of the
Background Investigation.

(c) Create an investigative report based on each Background Investigation performed.
The investigative report must include the steps in conducting the Background
Investigation, results obtained, conclusions reached and the basis for those conclusions.
(d) Prior toissuing aLicense to a Gaming Employee and within sixty (60) days after the
Gaming Employee begins employment at a Gaming Facility, submit a notice of results of
the Background Investigation to the NIGC for inclusion in the Indian Gaming Individual
Record System. The notice of results must include the following, provided that any
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additional or alternate information must be forwarded as directed in regulations or rules
adopted by NIGC:
(1) The Gaming Employee’s name, date of birth and social security number.
(2) The date on which the Gaming Employee began employment.
(3 A summary of the information presented in the investigative report,
including:
(A) License(s) that have previously been denied,;
(B) Gaming licenses that have been revoked, even if subsequently
reinstated;
(C) Every known criminal charge brought against the Gaming Employee
within the last ten (10) years of the date of the application;
(D) Every felony of which the Gaming Employee has been convicted or
any ongoing prosecution.
(4) acopy of the eligibility determination made under section 21.12-5(b).
(e) All applications, Background Investigations, investigative reports, suitability
determinations, findings and decisions of the Commission must be retained in the
Commission’s files for a period of at least three (3) years from the date the Gaming
Employee’ s employment is terminated.
21.12-6. License Issuance. The Commission may issue a License to a Gaming Employee at any
time after providing NIGC with a notice of results as required under section 21.12-5(d);
however, a Gaming Employee who does not have a License ninety (90) days after the start of
employment must have his or her employment terminated. The Commission shall notify the
NIGC of the issuance or denial of a License to a Gaming Employee within thirty (30) days after
the License isissued or denied.
(@) Any Gaming Employee License issued under this section is effective from the date of
issuance and must contain the Gaming Employee’ s photograph, the Gaming Employee’s
name, and the date that the License became effective. If a Gaming Employee is
promoted, transferred, reassigned, or the position is reclassified, the Gaming Employee
shall notify in writing the Commission, and the Commission shall review the Gaming
Employee’s License. The Commission retains the right to grant, deny, revoke, condition,
suspend, or reinstate Licenses subject to the right to appea the decision under the
processes set forth in this Ordinance.
21.12-7. Requirement to Wear License. During working hours, all Licensees shall wear their
License in a conspicuous place that is plainly visible by all employees, the Nation's Gaming
patrons and surveillance.
21.12-8. NIGC Review.
(@) During athirty (30) day period, beginning when the NIGC receives a notice of results
submitted pursuant to section 21.12-5(d) above, the Chairman of the NIGC may request
additional information from the Commission concerning the Gaming Employee. Such a
request suspends the thirty (30) day period until the Chairman receives the additional
information.
(b) If, within the thirty (30) day period after NIGC receives the notice of results, the
NIGC notifies the Commission that it has no objection to the issuance of a License, and
the Commission has not yet issued a License to the Gaming Employee, the Commission
may grant the License to the Gaming Employee.
(c) If, within the thirty (30) day period after NIGC receives the notice of results, the
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NIGC provides the Commission with a statement itemizing objections to the issuance of
a License, the Commission shall reconsider the application, taking into account the
objections itemized by the NIGC. The Commission shall make the final decision whether
to issue a License to the Gaming Employee, or if the Gaming Employee has already been
licensed, whether to suspend or revoke the License in accordance with section 21.12-9.
(d) Upon receipt of notification from the NIGC that a Gaming Employee who has
aready been licensed is not eligible for employment, the Commission shall immediately
suspend the License in accordance with section 21.12-9.
21.12-9. Suspension or Revocation of Licenses. Except as provided in section 21.12-8(d) or
21.12-9(c), no License may be suspended or revoked except after notice and opportunity for
hearing.
(a) Basis for Licensing Action. The Commission may suspend, condition, or revoke any
Licenseissued under this Ordinance if:
(1) After the issuance of a License, the Commission receives from the NIGC or
other source reliable information indicating that a Gaming Employee is not
eligible for a License under section 21.12-3 or such information would justify the
denial of the renewal of any License, the Commission shall issue a written notice
of suspension;
(2) The Commission issues a written notice of suspension demonstrating that the
Licensee:
(A) Has knowingly made a materially false or misleading statement in
any application for a License, in any amendment thereto, or in response to
a request by the Commission for supplemental information or in
connection with any investigation of the Commission;
(B) Has knowingly promoted, played, or participated in any gaming
activity operated in violation of the Compact, Triba or federal law, and
this Ordinance;
(C) Has bribed or attempted to bribe, or has received a bribe from, a
Commissioner or any other person in an attempt to avoid or circumvent
any applicable law;
(D) Has falsified any books or records relating to any transaction
connected with the operation of Gaming Activity;
(E) Has refused to comply with any lawful directive of the Tribe, the
Federal government, or any court of competent jurisdiction; or
(F) Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, a
crime involving the sale of illegal narcotics or controlled substances.
(b) Suspension Notice. The Commission’s notice of suspension must be in writing and
must, at a minimum, notify the Licensee of the following:
(1) The Licensee sright to review afile prior to any hearing regarding the notice
of suspension, and to make copies of any documents contained in that file;
(2) The Licensee' s right to request a hearing on the proposed licensing action, to
present documents and witness testimony at that hearing to be represented by
counsel;
(3) The specific grounds upon which the proposed licensing action is based,
including citations to relevant sections of this Ordinance, the IGRA, any
applicable Regulations and/or the Compact; and
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(4) Thetime and place set by the Commission for the Licensee’ s hearing.
(c) Immediate Suspension. If, in the judgment of the Commission, the public interest,
and effective regulation and control of Gaming Activities requires the immediate
exclusion of aLicensee, the Commission may immediately suspend a License prior to the
conduct of a hearing on the matter. Such an immediate suspension may take effect upon
service of the notice of immediate suspension.
(d) Any notice of suspension or notice of immediate suspension must set forth the times
and dates for when the Licensee may review his or her file and the date for a hearing on
any proposed licensing action.
(e) Within fifteen (15) business days after a hearing, the Commission shall issue a final
written licensing decison and decide whether to suspend, uphold an immediate
suspension, revoke, or take other action concerning a License. If the License was
suspended, conditioned or revoked based on information from the NIGC or other source
under section 21.12-8(d) or 21.12-9(a)(1), the Commission shall forward a copy of its
decision to NIGC within forty-five (45) days of receiving NIGC's or the other source's
notification indicating that a Gaming Employeeis not eligible for aLicense.
(f) 1f aLicenseefailsto appear for hisor her hearing before the Commission, that right is
deemed to have been waived and the Commission will proceed on the proposed licensing
action by default.
(g) Unless identified in this Ordinance or regulations of the Commission, the hearing
processes set forth in the Tribe' s administrative procedures law apply.
21.12-10. Original Hearing Body. Any person aggrieved by a licensing decision of the
Commission may appea the decision by filing a request for an original hearing before the
Commission. The Licensee may file any such request with the Commission in writing on or
before the fifteenth (15th) day following receipt of the Commission’s decision. The Commission
shall certify the record, developed in section 21.12-4 or 21.12-9(a), within thirty (30) days of the
date of the filing of the request for an origina hearing. The Commissioners serving on the
original hearing body may not include the Commissioners who participated in the licensing
decision from which the original hearing is scheduled. The Commission may determine to
review the decision solely on the licensing decision record and briefs filed regarding the request
for reconsideration. The Commission may also, in its sole discretion, grant oral argument. The
Commission shall issue a written decision determining whether to uphold the Commission’s
licensing decision, including whether to revoke or reinstate a License, within one hundred twenty
(120) days from receipt of the request for the original hearing. The Commission’s decision is
considered an origina hearing decision and an appeal may be made to the Judiciary as an appeal
of an original hearing body.
21.12-11. Notice to Oneida Business Committee. Prior to any suspension or revocation of a
License of the gaming general manager, the Commission shall provide notice to the Oneida
Business Committee twenty-four (24) hours prior to the issuance of the suspension or revocation.
21.12-12. Record of Proceedings. The Commission shall maintain a complete and accurate
record of all licensure proceedings.
21.12-13. Revocation of a Licenseis solely limited to the licensing matter. Employment related
processes resulting from revocation of a License are determined solely through the personnel
processes and procedures of the Tribe and are not licensing matters governed by this Ordinance.
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21.13. Gaming Services Licensing and Non-Gaming Services Permitting
21.13-1. Scope of Section. This section applies to al individuals and entities providing Gaming
Services. The requirements of this Section are in addition to, and do not alter or amend any
requirements imposed by the Oneida VVendor Licensing Law.?
21.13-2. Gaming Services License or Non-Gaming Services Permit Required.
(8 Gaming Services License. Any Gaming Services vendor providing Gaming related
contract goods or services as defined under Article VII(A) of the Compact to the Gaming
Operation shall possess avalid Gaming Services License.
(b) Non-Gaming Services Permit. Any vendor providing non-gaming related goods or
services to the Gaming Operation shall possess a valid Non-Gaming Services permit.
(c) Determinations regarding the issuance of a License or permit under this section must
be made by the Commission which may be subject to requests for reconsideration by the
Gaming Services vendor within fourteen (14) business days of receipt by the Gaming
Services vendor of the notice of License or permit determination.
21.13-3. Approved Gaming Services Vendor List. The Commission shall maintain an updated
and complete list of all Gaming Services vendors that possess current and valid Gaming Services
Licenses or Non-Gaming Services permits from the Commission, which is known as the
Approved License and Permit List. Gaming Operations may only do business with vendors that
possess valid and current Gaming Services Licenses or Non-Gaming Services permits and who
appear on the Approved License and Permit List.
21.13-4. Gaming Services License/Permit Application. Every Applicant for a License or permit
shall file with the Commission a written application in the form prescribed by the Commission,
duly executed and verified which must provide and certify the following. Provided that, Non-
Gaming Services vendors with less than two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) in
services for the prior fiscal year are only required to file a notice of doing business with the
Commission.
(& The Applicant’s name and mailing address;
(b) The names and addresses of each officer or management official of the Applicant;
(c) A copy of the Applicant’s articles of incorporation and by-laws, or if not a
corporation, the Applicant’s organizational documents;
(d) Identification of an agent of service for the Applicant;
(e) The name and address of each person having a direct or indirect financial interest in
the Applicant;
(f) The nature of the License or permit applied for, describing the activity to be engaged
in under the License or permit;
(g) Explicit and detailed disclosure of any crimina record, including any delinquent
taxes owed to the United States, or any state, of the Applicant, any person involved in the
organization, and any person of interest whose name appears or is required to appear on
the application;
(h) Whether the Applicant is or has been licensed by the state of Wisconsin Office of
Indian Gaming Regulation and Compliance and, if applicable, proof of current licensure;

2 See also Appendix 1. Vendor Licensing/Permit.
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(i) Whether the Applicant has been licensed in the state of New Jersey, Nevada, or by
any other gaming jurisdiction, including any Indian Tribe or Tribal governmental
organization and, if so, proof of such licensure and the status of any such License;
(1) Whether the Applicant has been denied a License by any gaming jurisdiction and, if
so, the identity of the jurisdiction, the date of such decision and the circumstances
surrounding that decision;
(k) Whether any License held by the Applicant has been refused renewal, conditioned,
suspended or revoked by an issuing authority and, if so, the circumstances surrounding
that action;
() A statement of waiver alowing the Tribe to conduct a Background Investigation of
the Applicant and any person whose name appears or is required to appear on the
application;
(m) Whether the Applicant or any person whose name appears or is required to appear
on the application has or has had any business with the Tribe or any business or personal
relationship with any of the Tribe's officers or employees;
(n) The name and contact information for all Tribes or Tribal organizations with whom
the Applicant or any person whose name appears or is required to appear on the
application has done business;
(0) Whether the Applicant or any person whose name appears or is required to appear on
the application maintains any involvement in the business of wholesale distribution of
alcoholic beverages,
(p) A statement that the Applicant has read and understands notices and NIGC
requirements relating to:
(1) The Privacy Act of 1974,
(2) False statements; and
(3) TheFair Credit Reporting Act.
(@) All additional information necessary to allow the Commission to investigate the
Applicant and any person whose name appears or is required to appear on the application.
21.13-5. Signature on Application. Applications for Licenses or permits must be signed by the
following person:
(8 For companies and corporations (both for profit and non-profit), the highest ranking
official of the corporation, or another person to whom the authority to execute the
Application has been properly delegated.
(b) For asole proprietorship, the principal owner.
(c) For apartnership, al partners.
(d) For alimited partnership, the general partner or partners.
21.13-6. Incomplete Applications. Applications that do not contain al information requested,
including proper signatures, will be considered incomplete. Incomplete applications will not be
considered by the Commission. The Commission shall notify an Applicant if an application is
incomplete and what additional information is necessary to complete the application. If an
Applicant who has submitted an incomplete application, and been notified of the deficiency in
that application, fails to provide the information requested by the Commission, the application
will be returned to the Applicant and the file closed.
21.13-7.  Supplemental Information. The Commission may, in its discretion, request
supplemental information from the Applicant. Supplemental information requested by the
Commission must be promptly submitted by the Applicant. An Applicant’s failure or refusal to
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submit supplemental information requested by the Commission may constitute grounds for the
denial of the application.
21.13-8. Continuing Duty to Provide Information. Applicants, permittees, and Licensees owe a
continuing duty to provide the Commission with information and materials relevant to the
Applicant’s, permittee’s, or Licensee’s character or fithess to be licensed, including but not
limited to any change in the licensing or permitting status of the Applicant, permittee, or
Licensee in any foreign jurisdiction. An Applicant’s, permittee’s, or Licensee's failure to notify
the Commission promptly of inaccuracies on an application or new information or materias
relevant to the Applicant may constitute grounds to deny, suspend or revoke a License or permit.
21.13-9. Background Investigations. Background Investigations for Gaming Services vendors
must be conducted as follows.
(&) Gaming Related Equipment Gaming Services Vendors under Fifty Thousand Dollars
($50,000.00) in Goods and/or Services Annually. The Commission shall conduct the
Background Investigations that are sufficient to determine the igibility for licensing of
all Gaming Services vendors that provide or anticipate providing under fifty thousand
dollars ($50,000.00) in goods and services annually.
(b) Gaming Related Equipment Gaming Services Vendors over Fifty Thousand Dollars
($50,000.00) in Goods and/or Services Annually. The Commission shall review the
background investigation conducted by the Wisconsin Office of Indian Gaming
Regulation, and shall conduct any necessary additional Background Investigation to
ensure that the state background investigation is complete and current.
(c) Other Non-Gaming Related Goods and/or Services Gaming Services Vendors. The
Commission shall conduct Background Investigations on a sufficient number of
randomly selected applications in order to verify the accuracy of all applications. The
random selection process must be identified by regulation of the Commission.
21.13-10. Licensing Action in a Foreign Jurisdiction. If the states of Wisconsin, New Jersey,
Nevada or any other gaming jurisdiction refuses to renew a License or permit or conditions,
suspends, or revokes the License or permit of an Applicant, permittee, or Licensee, such action
may constitute grounds for similar action by the Commission.
21.13-11. Claim of Privilege. At any time during the licensing or permitting process, the
Applicant may claim any privilege afforded by law. An Applicant’s claim of privilege with
respect to the production of requested information or documents or the provision of required
testimony or evidence may constitute grounds for the denial, suspension or revocation of a
License or permit.
21.13-12. Withdrawal of an Application. An Applicant may request to withdraw an application
by submitting a written request to the Commission. The Commission retains the right, in its
exclusive discretion, to grant or deny a request for withdrawal. An Applicant who withdraws an
application is precluded from reapplying for a Gaming Services License or Non-Gaming
Services permit for a period of one (1) year from the date the application was withdrawn.
21.13-13. Suspension or Revocation of Gaming Services Licenses or Permits. Except as
provided in section 21.13-13(c), no License or permit may be suspended or revoked except after
notice and opportunity for hearing.
(a) Basis for Licensing or Permitting Action. The Commission may suspend, modify, or
revoke any Gaming Services License or Non-Gaming Services permit issued under this
Ordinance if, after issuance of the License or permit, the Commission receives reliable
information that would justify denial of the issuance or renewal of aLicense or permit, or
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if the Commission determines that the Licensee or permittee has:
(1) Knowingly made a materially false or misleading statement in any application
for aLicense or permit, in any amendment thereto, or in response to a request by
the Commission for supplemental information or in connection with any
investigation of the Commission;
(20 Knowingly promoted, played, or participated in any Gaming Activity
operated in violation of the Compact, or any Tribal or other applicable law;
(3) Bribed or attempted to bribe a Commissioner or any other person in an
attempt to avoid or circumvent any applicable law;
(4) Falsified any books or records relating to any transaction connected with
operation of Gaming Activity;
(5) Refused to comply with a lawful directive of the Tribe, the federal
government, or any court of competent jurisdiction; or
(6) Been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, a crime
involving the sale of illegal narcotics or controlled substances.
(b) Suspension Notice. The Commission shall provide a Licensee or permittee with
written notice of suspension, which must, at a minimum, notify the Licensee or permittee
of the following:
(1) The Licensee's or permittee’s right to conduct a file review prior to any
hearing regarding the notice of suspension, and to make copies of any documents
in that file;
(2) The Licensee's or permittee’s right to present documents and witness
testimony at the hearing and to be represented by counsel;
(3) The specific grounds upon which the suspension is based, including citations
to relevant sections of this Ordinance, the IGRA, any applicable regulations
and/or the Compact; and
(4) The time and place set by the Commission for the Licensee’'s or permittee’s
file review and hearing.
(c) Immediate Suspension. If, in the judgment of the Commission, the public interest,
and effective regulation and control of others require the immediate exclusion of a
Licensee or permittee, the Commission may immediately suspend a License or permit
prior to a hearing on the matter. Such an immediate suspension takes effect upon service
of the notice of immediate suspension.
(d) File Review and Hearing. Any notice of suspension or notice of immediate
suspension must set forth the time and date for the Licensee or permittee to conduct afile
review and for a hearing.
(e) Final Written Decision. Within fifteen (15) business days after a hearing, the
Commission shall issue afinal written decision and decide whether to suspend, uphold an
immediate suspension, revoke, or take other action concerning a License or permit.
(f) Default. If aLicensee or permittee fails to appear for his or her hearing before the
Commission, that right is deemed to have been waived and the Commission will proceed
on the proposed licensing action by default.
(g) Unless identified in this Ordinance or regulations of the Commission, the hearing
processes set forth in the Oneida Administrative Procedures Act apply.

21.13-14. Original Hearing Body. Any person aggrieved by a licensing or permitting decision
of the Commission may appeal the decision by filing a request for an original hearing before the
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Commission. The Applicant, Licensee or permittee may file such request with the Commission
in writing on or before the fifteenth (15™) day following the receipt of the Commission’s
decision. The Commission shall certify the record, developed in section 21.13-9 or 21. 13 -
13(a), within thirty (30) days of the date of the filing on the request for an original hearing. The
Commissioners participating in the initial licensing or permitting decision may not participate in
the original hearing. The Commission may determine to review the decision solely on the
licensing or permitting decision record and briefs filed regarding the request for reconsideration.
The Commission may also, in its sole discretion, grant oral argument. The Commission shall
issue a written decision within one hundred twenty (120) days from receipt of the request for the
original hearing. The Commission’s decision is considered an original hearing decision and an
appeal may be made to the Judiciary as an appeal of an original hearing body.

21.14. Gaming Facility License
21.14-1. The construction and maintenance of any Gaming Facility, and the operation of
Gaming Activities, must be conducted in a manner which adequately protects the environment
and the public health and safety, and must comply with requirements of the Compact and all
other applicable health, safety, and environmental standards.
21.14-2. The Oneida Business Committee must receive, review and grant or deny any
application for licensing any Gaming Facilities located within the Reservation. Applicants shall
provide the Oneida Business Committee sufficient information to show the following:
(@) The Gaming Facility meets all applicable Federal and Tribal headth and safety
standards.
(1) To show compliance with applicable health and safety standards, Gaming
Operator shall submit certified copies of Compliance Certificates issued by the
agencies responsible for the enforcement of the health and safety standards.
(2) If health and safety standards are not met, proof must be submitted by
Gaming Operator that the Gaming Facility is in the process of improvements
which will place the Gaming Facility in compliance with the applicable standards.
(b) The Gaming Facility meets applicable federal and Tribal environmental standards.
(1) To show compliance with applicable environmental standards, Gaming
Operator shall submit certified copies of an Environmental Assessment of the
Gaming Facility which were prepared by the agency responsible for the
enforcement of applicable environmental standards.
(2) If the applicable environmental standards are not met, proof must be
submitted by Gaming Operator that Remediation of the Gaming Facility is being
actively sought which will place the Gaming Facility in compliance with the
applicable standards.
21.14-3. Upon receipt and review of the above information, the Oneida Business Committee
shall deliberate and either grant or deny for failure to meet the requirements of protecting the
health and safety of patrons, public and employees of a Gaming Facility License to the
Applicant. The Oneida Business Committee shall submit to the NIGC a copy of each Gaming
Facility License issued.
21.14-4. If the Oneida Environmental, Headth and Safety Department notifies the Oneida
Business Committee that a Gaming Facility will be closed by a governmental agency with proper
authority due to environmental, health or safety concerns, the Oneida Business Committee shall
suspend the License of the Gaming Facility. The Oneida Business Committee shall re-License
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the Gaming Facility after receiving the information required in section 21.14-2.

21.15. Gaming Operator License
21.15-1. Consent to Jurisdiction. The application for License and the conduct of Gaming within
the jurisdiction of the Tribe is considered consent to the jurisdiction of the Tribe in all matters
arising from the conduct of Gaming, and all matters arising under any of the provisions of this
Ordinance or other Tribal laws.
21.15-2. License Required. No Gaming Operator may conduct Gaming Activity unless such
entity holds avalid and current Gaming Operator License issued by the Commission.
21.15-3. Types of Licenses. The Commission may issue each of the following types of Gaming
Operator Licenses:
(@ Tribally-Owned or Tribally-Operated Class Il. This License is required of all
Tribally-owned or Tribally-operated Gaming Operations operating one or more Class Il
Gaming Activities.
(b) Tribally-Owned or Tribally-Operated Class IlIl. This License is required for all
Tribally-owned or Tribally-operated Gaming Operations operating one or more Class Il
Gaming Activities.
21.15-4. Gaming Operator License Qualifications. The Commission shall issue a Gaming
Operator License to any Gaming Operation if:
(@ The Gaming Operation is to be located within the Reservation, or land taken into
trust after October 17, 1988, for Gaming purposes,
(b) The Gaming Activity proposed to be played at the Gaming Operation is Class Il or
Class 111 Gaming as defined by this Ordinance and IGRA; and
(c) The proposed Gaming Operation is authorized by a resolution of the Oneida Business
Committee.
21.15-5. Provisions of General Applicability to All Gaming Operators.
(@ Site and Gaming Operator Specified. Each Gaming Operator License may be
applicable only to one (1) Gaming Operation and the Gaming Facility named on the
License.
(b) License Not Assignable. No Gaming Operator License may be sold, lent, assigned or
otherwise transferred.
(c) Regulations Posted or Available. Each Gaming Operator must have a copy of this
Ordinance and any regulations promulgated thereunder available for inspection by any
person at each Gaming Facility.
(d) Display of License. Each Gaming Operator must prominently display its License at
each Gaming Facility.
21.15-6. Grandfathered Gaming Facilities. All Gaming Operators operating on the effective
date of July 5, 2007, are hereby granted a License under this section.
21.15-7. License Application Fees and License Taxes. No application fees or License taxes may
be required by the Tribe for a Gaming Operator License.
21.15-8. Closure of a Gaming Operation. If the Commission finds that any Gaming Operation
is operating in violation of this Ordinance, or otherwise presents a threat to the public, the
Commission shall immediately notify the Oneida Business Committee. The Oneida Business
Committee may close any Gaming Operation temporarily or permanently at any time with or
without cause, at its sole discretion.
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21.16. Games
21.16-1. Classll and Class |11 Games are hereby authorized by this Ordinance.
21.16-2. Gaming Procedures. Games operated under this Ordinance must be consistent with the
Compact and any amendments thereto and the Internal Control Standards and Rules of Play of
the Gaming Operation.
21.16-3. Who May Not Play. It isthe policy of the Tribe that particular Gaming Employees,
employees of the Commission, particular governmental officials, and consultants who directly
advise the Commission or employees at Gaming Facilities regarding gaming related activities
may not participate in Gaming Activities conducted at Gaming Operations. At a minimum,
members of the Oneida Business Committee, the Commission, the gaming general manager,
assistant gaming general managers, directors of individual Games and assistant directors of
individual Games may not participate in any Gaming Activity within the Reservation.
(@ The Oneida Business Committee may identify by resolution additional positions
restrictions on Gaming Activity conducted at Gaming Facilities. Such resolution must be
on file with the Commission.
(b) The Commission and Senior Gaming Management shall each develop and maintain
their own standard operating procedure identifying other positions and any applicable
restrictions on Gaming Activity conducted at Gaming Facilities. The standard operating
procedure and the list of positions must be on file with the Commission.

21.17. Allocation of Gaming Funds

21.17-1. Net Gaming revenues may only be used for the following purposes:
(@) Tofund Tribal government operations, programs, or services.
(b) To provide for the genera welfare of the Tribe and its members; provided that per
capita payments may only be made pursuant to an approved revenue allocation plan.
(c) To promote Tribal economic development.
(d) To contribute to charitable organizations.
(e) Toassist infunding operations of other local governments.
(f) To fund programs designed to provide education, referrals, and treatment of Gaming
addiction disorders.
(g0 Any other purpose as determined by the Oneida General Tribal Council or the
Oneida Business Committee which is not inconsistent with the Constitution of the Tribe
and IGRA.

21.18. Audits
21.18-1. Annual Audit. An annual audit of each Gaming Operation must be conducted by an
independent, certified public accounting firm according to generally accepted accounting
principles. Copies of the annual audit must be provided to the Oneida Business Committee, the
Oneida Audit Committee, the Commission, and the NIGC by said certified public accounting
firm.
(& All contracts for supplies, services, or concessions for the Gaming Operations in
excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) are subject to audit as prescribed in
this section. Contracts for legal services and accounting services are exempt from this
requirement.
21.18-2. Other Audits. All audits, other than the annual audit under section 21.18-1, must be
conducted pursuant to the Oneida Audit Law or any other applicable law of the Tribe, and other

21-24



1083
1084
1085
1086
1087
1088
1089
1090
1091
1092
1093
1094
1095

1096
1097
1098
1100

1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106
1107

Page 61 of 488

For OBC Consideration — Clean Version
09/02/15

audits authorized under the Compact.

21.18-3. Request for Audits. Any audit, except the annual audit which is mandated by IGRA,
may be authorized at any time by the Oneida General Tribal Council, the Oneida Business
Committee or the Oneida Audit Committee.

21.19. Enforcement and Penalties

21.19-1. No individua or entity may own or operate a Gaming Facility unless specifically
authorized to do so pursuant to this Ordinance.

21.19-2. Violations/Prosecutions. Violators of this Ordinance may be subject to disciplinary
action and civil and/or criminal prosecutions.

21.19-3. Remedies. The Oneida Business Committee may authorize commencement of an
action in any court of competent jurisdiction to recover losses, restitution, and forfeitures
resulting from violations of this Ordinance.

End.

Adopted GTC-7-05-04-A
Emergency Amended BC-7-14-04-A
Amendment BC-10-06-04-D

Emergency Amended BC-11-03-04-A

Permanent Adoption BC-3-23-05-C

Amended BC-9-23-09-D

Amended BC-06-25-14-C (effective 11 01 2014)
Emergency Amended BC-10-08-14-C (effective 11 01 2014)
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Chapter 21
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2110-Background-tavestigations 21.10. Background Investigations
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2012 Coming-Emplevesbiesnse 21.12. Gaming Employee License
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Permitting Permitting
24— Camngeetibbeehse 21.14. Gaming Facility License
2115 Caming-Operator-Lieense 21.15. Gaming Operator License
2116 Games 21.16. Games
24— AHeenton-of Camnat-unds 21.17. Allocation of Gaming Funds
2118 Audits 21.18. Audits
21.19. Enforcement and Penalties 21.19. Enforcement and Penalties
Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office
Title Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance (ONGO)
Lynn .
Requester (Tgr? e?:jz\é?;\nms?:grggmmission) Drafter | Franzmeier, | Analyst -.I[ﬂz'rcr‘]lfle
Krystal John
On June 25, 2014, the Oneida Business Committee (OBC) adopted minor terminology
amendments to ONGO, which replaced references to the Oneida Appeals
Commission/Tribal Judicial System with the Tribal Judiciary. Those amendments were
then submitted to the National Indian Gaming Commission (NIGC) for approval, as
required. However, NIGC returned the submission after three discrepancies were found
Reason for between ONGO and federal law/NIGC regulations. To address those discrepancies, the
Request OBC adopted emergency amendments to ONGO on October 8, 2014, and extended the
emergency adoption on April 22, 2015. The emergency amendments are Set to expire on
November 1%, 2015.
Now, this draft is being presented for permanent adoption. The amendments include the
changes adopted on an emergency basis, as well as additional changes made based on a
reguest from the Oneida Gaming Commission and based on public meeting comments.
Purpose Governs Oneida Tribal gaming
Authorized/
Affected NIGC, Oneida Gaming Commission, the Oneida Tribal Judiciary
Entities
Due Process | The Gaming Commission hears appeals of licensing decisions, then Judiciary
Related Gaming SOPs, an agreement between HRD and the Gaming Commission for conducting
Legislation background investigations (as required by ONGO 21.10-1)
Ay Licensing
Mechanism
Enforcement | Licensing Suspension, Revocation
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Overview
The proposed amendments make permanent the changes that were adopted on an
emergency basis in 2014 in order to comply with NIGC requirements. Additional changes are
made to one of those proposed amendments, and to:

e Clarify that the Oneida Gaming Commission (the Commission) may issue a Gaming License
(hereinafter: license) to new employees after they have notified the National Indian Gaming
Commission (NIGC) of the determination of eligibility, without needing to wait for approval,
objections, or any other aresponse from NIGC.

e Clarify requirements pertaining to Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls (Minimum Internal Controls), and how they are reviewed and adopted. The main
change in this section is that the OBC will no longer adopt the Rules of Play and Minimum
Internal Controls; instead the Commission would have authority to adopt those, subject to a
newly-added review process for the OBC.

e Add detail, and improve clarity and consistency throughout the Law.

Emergency Amendments
The proposed amendments permanently adopt the changes adopted on an emergency basis on

October 8, 2014, which were extended on April 22, 2015; which made in order to comply with

federal law and NIGC requirements. These changes include:

1. Clarifying that the identity of any person interviewed in order to conduct a background
investigation, is confidential. [21.10-2]

2. Requiring the Commission to retain various records for three years after a Gaming
Employee’'s (hereinafter: employee) employment is terminated, instead of for seven years
after the employee begins employment. [21.12-5(€)]

3. Adding that when the Commission makes a final decision to suspend, place a condition on or
revoke a license based on information from NIGC that the employee is not eligible; the
Commission must forward a copy of the decision to NIGC within 45 days. [21.12-9(€)].
These proposed permanent amendments also require the Commission to forward a copy of a
final decision to suspend, place a condition on, or revoke a license when that action was
taken based on information from another source besides NIGC. This additional change to
ONGO is being made to reflect the Commission’s current practice of doing so. [21.12-9(e)]

Eligibility Determinations and Notifying NIGC

When a new employee begins working at a Gaming Operation, his or her employment
application, along with specific other information listed in the Law, must be submitted by the
employee to the Commission, instead of from the Commission to the NIGC. [21.12-5(a)]

Within 60 days after a new employee starts, the Commission is still required to review
the employee’s background investigation, make a determination of whether the employee is
eligible for alicense, and to provide this information and determination to NIGC. However, the
amendments add more detail - instead of just requiring the Commission to submit a “report” to
NIGC, the amended Law requires the Commission to create an Investigative Report based on the
employee's background investigation, and then, to submit to NIGC a Notice of Results of
Background Investigation (Notice of Results). The amendments also identify the purpose for
submitting this notice/information to NIGC: it is submitted for inclusion in the Indian Gaming
Individual Record System. [21.12-5(b) and ()]

New language identifies specific information that must be included in the Investigative
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Report and/or Notice of Results:

e The Investigative Report must identify the steps taken in conducting the employee’'s
background investigation, the results obtained, the conclusions reached and the basis for
those conclusions. It must also identify:

0 License(s) that have previously been denied;

0 Gaming licenses that have been revoked, even if subsequently reinstated,;

o Every known criminal charge brought against the employee within the 10 years
before the application;

o Every felony conviction or any ongoing prosecution. [21.12-5(c) and (d)(3)]

e The Notice of Results must include a copy of the Commission’s eligibility determination
for that employee, a summary of the Investigative Report, and the employee’ s name, date
of birth, social security number, and start date. The amendments also add that additional
or aternate information will be forwarded as directed in NIGC regulations or rules.
[21.12-5(d)]

Issuing a License to New Employees
Amendments clarify that the Commission does not need to wait for a response from

NIGC before issuing a license to the employee — after submitting the Notice of Results to NIGC,

the Commission may issue the license at any time. [21.12-6] To support this, new language is

added to clarify that the Commission not only makes the final decision on whether to issue a

license, but also on whether to suspend or revoke a license, if one has already been issued.

[21.12-8]

New requirements are added to reflect this change:

e Now, whenever the Commission issues or denies the issuance of a license to an employee,
the Commission must notify NIGC within 30 days. [21.12-6]

e Any employee who does not have a license 90 days after the start of employment shall have
his or her employment terminated. [21.12-6]

e |f the NIGC notifies the Commission that an employee is not eligible for employment, the
Commission must immediately suspend the employee’s license and provide the employee
with written notice of the suspension and revocation, and notice of a time and place for a
hearing on the proposed revocation. [21.12-8(d).]

Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
The amendments change some of the requirements relating to Rules of Play and Oneida
Gaming Minimum Internal Controls (Minimum Internal Controls), as follows:

e Rulesof Play and Minimum Internal Controls are adopted by the Commission, instead of
by the OBC; and still become effective upon adoption. The amendments add that the
Rules of Play and Minimum Internal Controls adopted by the Commission are subject to
review by the OBC. [21.6-14(d)] Provisions are added to the law to set out a process for
that OBC review, asfollows:

0 After the Commission adopts the Rules of Play/Minimum Internal Controls, the
Commission must provide notice of the adoption to the OBC at the next available
regularly scheduled OBC meeting. [21.6-14(d)(3)]

o0 After reviewing the Rules of Play/Minimum Internal Controls, if the OBC has any
concerng/requested revisions, the Commission is required to “work with” the
OBC to address them. While doing so, the Rules of Play and Minimum Internal
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Controls adopted by the Commission remain in effect, unless the OBC repeds
them - in which case, the RulessMinimum Internal Controls that were previously
in effect immediately before those that were repeded, will be automatically
reinstated and effective.[21.6-14(d)(3)(A)]

o Within 30 days after the notice of adoption is provided to the OBC, if the
Commission does not receive written notice that the OBC intends to repeal or
amend the Rules of Play/ Minimum Internal Controls, then they will remain in
effect as adopted by the Commission. [21.6-14(d)(3)(A)]

o If the OBC pursues amendments to the Rules of Play and Minimum Internal
Controls, there are three possible outcomes:

= |If the Commission and OBC agree upon the amendments, the Commission
must adopt revised Rules of Play/Minimum Internal Controls as
discussed/agreed upon by the OBC.
= |If the Commission and OBC do not agree on what amendments to make,
the OBC may adopt revised Rules of Play/Minimum Internal Controls that
incorporate the amendments the OBC deems necessary.
= After six months have passed since the OBC initiates amendments, if
neither the Commission nor the OBC has adopted revised Rules of
Play/Minimum Internal Controls, the Rules of Play and Minimum Internal
Controls adopted by the Commission remain in effect. [21.6-14(d)(3)(C)]
To clarify responsibilities, the amended Law makes Senior Gaming Management, instead
of Gaming Operations, responsible for reviewing and providing comments on any
proposed Rules of Play or Minimum Internal Controls.
The amendments change the explanation of what Rules of Play and Minimum Internal
Controls are. Instead of “adopted and approved industry standards,” they are identified as
“minimum standards.” And instead of stating that these standards are “for Gaming
Operations,” the amendments identify them as standards “with which the Gaming
Operations are required to comply and are audited against.” [21.6-14]

Other

Additional changes made to the Law include:

Adding that when the OBC makes an appointment to fill a vacancy on the Commission
for an unexpired term of office, it must be done pursuant to the Comprehensive Policy
Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions. [21.6-13]

Deleting a reference to the Administrative Procedures Act (APA) and replacing it with a
reference to the Tribe's “administrative procedures law.” This would resolve potential
conflict with future changesto (or repeal of) the APA. [21.12-9(g)]

Clarifying responsibilities by identifying the Commission as responsible for taking the
fingerprints required for alicense application. [21.12-2(m)]

Specificaly identifying what must be included in the Commission’s written decision
when alicensing decision is appealed: a determination of whether to uphold their original
licensing decision, including whether to revoke or reinstate alicense. [21.12-10]

Adding that per capita payments can only be made pursuant to an approved revenue
alocation plan. [21.17-1(b)]

Miscellaneous
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Sections 21.2 and 21.4 were updated to comply with the requirements of the Legidative
Procedures Act. Various other minor amendments were made to ensure compliance with tribal
drafting and formatting standards. These changes did not affect the content of the Law.

A public meeting has not been held.

Considerations

1. Although both Federal Law [25 CFR 558.4] and this Law [21.12-9(e)] require certain
licensing/hearing decisions to be sent to NIGC within 45 days, 21.12-10 also provides that any
person aggrieved by alicensing decision of the Commission may appeal the decision by filing a
request for an original hearing before the Commission, within 15 days after receiving the
decision. The Commission must certify the record within 30 days, and issue a written decision
within 120 days after receiving the request, and then that decision may be appeaed to the
Judiciary on another timeline. These timelines exceed the 45 day-requirement and the Law does
not identify whether any later decision would also need to be submitted to NIGC.

Recommendation: The LOC may want to consider identifying a timeline for notifying NIGC of
any later decisions, and/or a requirement for notifying NIGC when any decisions that are
submitted to NIGC are appeal ed.

2. Currently, the after the Commission determines that an applicant is eligible to be licensed,
they notify NIGC, and then wait for a response from NIGC before issuing licenses. The Law sets
out a 30-day period for NIGC to respond after receiving notification. The current requirements
are that, within 30 days after receiving notice from the Commission about a new employee:

e The NIGC Charman may request additional information from the Commission
concerning the employee, and such a request suspends the 30-day period until the NIGC
Chairman receives the additional information.

e |If NIGC notifies the Commission that it has no objection to issuing the license, the
Commission may grant the license to the employee.

e |If the NIGC objects to issuing a license to the employee, the Commission must
reconsider, but still makes the final decision.

By comparison, under the amendments, the Commission may issue or suspend a license without
waiting for NIGC approval. However, the proposed amended Law till identifies this 30-day
period for NIGC to respond after being notified of the Commission’s determination of eligibility
for an employee to be licensed — specifically, it now says that if NIGC notifies the Commission
that it has no objection, the Commission may grant the licenseiif it hasn’t already done so. And if
NIGC objects to the issuance of alicense to the employee, the Commission still makes the final
decision as to whether to issue a license, or if a license has already been issued, whether to
suspend/revoke the license.

Now that the Commission does not have to wait for a response from NIGC before issuing a
license, this 30-day deadline does not serve a purpose. It was identified in the current law so that
there would be direction on what happens if NIGC does not respond in a timely manner. As
written, this amended section may be confusing - for example, the Chairman of NIGC may
request more information about an applicant during that 30 day period — but what happens if they
request that information after the 30 day period? This could be interpreted as meaning that the
Commission does not need to comply with arequest from the NIGC chair for more information,
after those 30 days. Also, a request from the Chairman “tolls’ (pauses) the 30 day period, and
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there does not seem to be a reason to toll a 30-day period since the Commission no longer has to
wait for aresponse from NIGC before making alicensing decision.

Recommendation: The LOC may want to consider deleting the 30-day requirement or more
clearly identifying when or how it is still necessary.

3. It may be beneficial to review the language regarding amendments to the Rules of Play and
Minimum Internal Controls, for consistency and clarity:

o [21.6-14(d)(3)(B)]- “within thirty (30) days of the date the Oneida Business Committeeis
provided notice of the Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission.” — to ensure there is no confusion, and so that readers don’t
have to refer to other sections to find out when this date might be, it may be beneficial to
revise that to clarify that it means within 30 days after the OBC meeting at which the
Commission provided such notice, or within 30 days after the Commission submits
notice of adoption.

o [21.6-14(d)(3)(C)] “the date the amendments are initiated by the Oneida Business
Committee” may not be sufficiently clear, because the Law does not identify specifically
how the OBC initiates amendments (i.e. does it mean the date the OBC gives a directive
to the LOC to process amendments, the date the OBC submits notice to the Commission
of intent to amend/repeal; or the date the item is added to the Legidative Operating
Committee's Active Files List?) To ensure clarity, it is recommended that this provision
be revised to refer to the date the Commission receives notice from the OBC of intent to
repeal; or any other date that might be intended.

Chapter 21
Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance

21.1. Purpose and Policy

21.1-1. Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance is to set forth the laws of the Oneida Tribe of
Indians of Wisconsin regarding all Gaming Activities conducted within the jurisdiction set forth
in this Ordinance. It is intended to govern the Gaming Activities of all persons, Gaming
Employees, consultants, business entities, vendors, boards, committees, commissions and
hearing bodies. This Ordinance does not authorize the operation of Gaming by a private person
or private entity for gain. This Ordinance shall govern al Gaming Activities occurring on lands
under the jurisdiction set forth in this Ordinance and all individuals or entities engaged in
Gaming Activities, including those providing goods or services to any person or entity engaged
in Gaming Activities.

21.1-2. Policy. Itisthe policy of this Ordinance to ensure that the Oneida Tribe is the primary
beneficiary of its Gaming Operations and has the sole proprietary interest, and that Gaming
Activities within the jurisdiction set forth in this Ordinance are conducted fairly and honestly,
and that all internal departments, enterprises, officials and employees of the Oneida Tribe work
cooperatively to advance the best interests of the Oneida Tribe to protect the Tribe's gaming
resources, protect the integrity of all gaming—activittesGaming Activities operated under the
jurisdiction set forth in this Ordinance and to ensure fairness of all games offered to the Tribe's
gaming patrons.
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21.2. Adoption, Amendment, Apphteabiity-Repeal

21.2-1. Adoption. This Ordinance swas adopted under-the-autherity-of-the Constitution-ef-by the

Oneida Fribe-oftndians-of Wisconsii—by—Onetda-General Tribal Council Resolution—+#—7by
resolution GTC-07-05-04-A and amended by resolutions BC-10-06-04-D, BC-3-23-05-C, BC-9-

23-09-D-and, BC-06-25-14-B- and

21.2-2. Amendment. This Ordinance may be amended or repeded by the Oneida Business
Committee or the Oneida General Triba Council pursuant to the procedures set out in
aceordanee with-Fribal-tawthe L egislative Procedures Act.

21.2-3: Severability. Should a provision of this Ordinance or the application ef-this-Ordinance
thereof to any person or circumstances be held as invalid, thesuch invalidity shall not effectaffect
other prows ons of this Ordl nance:

s—ml-tar—aetlens Wh| ch are consi dered to have qual force Wlthout the i nval i d Dortl ons.

21.2-4. ineonsistent-within the event of a conflict between a provision of thls Ordi nance and a
provision of ancther law-a aHhy 0
provisions of this Law%pe&ﬁea“y—Ordmance shall control Prowded that thIS Ordlnance
repeal s the following-reselutions-arerepealed-by-thistaw:

() BC-404-21-89-D (Adoption of the Oneida Gaming Control Ordinance);

(b) GTC-03-04-91-A (Establishing 7 elected Gaming Commissioners and Bingo

standards);

(c) GTC-#607-06-92-A (Amendments to Gaming SOP Manual);

(d) GTC-#607-06-92-B (Adoption of the Comprehensive Gaming Ordinance);

(e) BC-303-16-94-A; (Comprehensive Gaming Ordinance Interpretation); and

(f) BC-404-5-95-D (Amendments to the Comprehensive Gaming Ordinance).
21.2-5. Name—This Ordinance is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida
Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin.
21.2-6. Name. shalThis Ordinance is to be known as the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance or
ONGO.
| 21.2-67. Preemptive Authority. The Gaming Commission shall be the original hearing body
authorized to hear licensing decisions as set forth in this Ordinance.

21.3. Jurisdiction

21.3-1. Territorial Jurisdiction. This Ordinance extends to al land within the exterior
boundaries of the Reservation of the Tribe, as established pursuant to the 1838 Treaty with the
Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law.

21.3-2. Subject Matter Jurisdiction. This Ordinance appliesto all Gaming conducted within the
territorial jurisdiction of the Oneida Tribe as set forth in section 21.3-1.

21.3-3. Personal Jurisdiction. This Ordinance shaH-geverngoverns:

(a) the Tribe;

(b) tribal members; and

(c) individuals and businesses leasing, occupying, or otherwise using Tribal fee-tandFee
Land on the Reservation and all Tribal Trust LandsLand.

21.4. Definitions
| 21.4-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used Hwithin this
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Ordinance. Words and phrases capitalized threugh—eutthroughout this document refer to the
defined words and phrases in this section. All words or phrases not defined r-this-sectionherein

shall be irterpretedbased-on-used in their platr-ordinary and everyday meanigsense.

214-2—-(a)  Applicant means any person or entity who has applied for a License from
the Oneida Gaming Commission or the Oneida Business Committee.

| 2143 (b) Background Investigation means a standard and thorough investigation

conducted by the Oneida Tribe in compliance with this Ordinance, Commission
regulations, Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls, the IGRA and the Compact.
Such investigations may be in cooperation with federal, state, or Tribal law enforcement
agencies.
2+4-4—(c)  Class | Gaming means social games solely for prizes of minimal value or
traditional forms of Indian gaming engaged in by individuals as a part of, or in
connection with, Tribal ceremonies or celebrations.
214-5-(d)  Class Il Gaming means.
(&) The game of chance commonly known as bingo (whether or not electronic,
computer or other technologic aids are used in connection therewith) in which:
(#A) The gameis played for prizes, including monetary prizes, with cards
bearing numbers or other designations.
(2B) The holder of the card covers such numbers or designations when
objects, similarly numbered or designated, are drawn or electronically
determined.
(83C) The game is won by the first person covering a previously
designated arrangement of numbers or designation on such cards,
including (if played in the same location) pull-tabs, lotto, punch boards, tip
jars, instant bingo and other games similar to bingo.
b (2) Card gamesthat:
@ (A) Areexplicitly authorized by the laws of the State; or
(2B) Are not explicitly prohibited by the laws of the State and are played
at any location in the State, but only if such card games are played in
conformity with laws and regulations (if any) of the State regarding hours
or periods of operation of such card games or limitations on wagers or pot
sizesin such card games. Class Il Gaming does not include any banking
card games, including baccarat, chemin de fer, or blackjack (twenty-one),
or electronic or electro-mechanical facsimiles of any game of chance or
slot machines of any kind.
2+4-6—(e)  Class 111 Gaming means al forms of Gaming that are not Class | or Class

2+4-7—(f)  Commission means the Oneida Gaming Commission as established by this
Ordinance.
2+4-8—(g)  Commissioner means a duly elected member of the Oneida Gaming

Commission.

214-9—-(h)  Compact means the 1991 Tribe-State Gaming Compact between the Tribe
and the State of Wisconsin as amended and any future amendments or successor compact
entered into by the Tribe and State and approved by the Secretary of the United States
Department of Interior.

214-10—(i) Compliance Certificate means a certificate issued by an agency with the
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authority and responsibility to enforce applicable environmental, health or safety
standards, which states that a Gaming Facility complies with these standards.

214-11()) Environmental Assessment means a document prepared and issued in
compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 42 U.S.C. sec. 4321 et
seg., and all related Federal regulations.

214-12-(k) Fraud means any act of trickery or deceit used to or intended to gain
control or possession of the property of another.

214-13—(1) Games, Gaming, or Gaming Activity means al forms of any activity,
operation, or game of chance that is considered Class Il or Class IIl Gaming, provided
that this definition does not include Class | Gaming.

214-14—(m) Gaming Employee means any person employed by a Gaming Operation.
214-15-(n) Gaming Facility or Gaming Facilities means any location or structure,
stationary or movable, wherein Gaming is permitted, performed, conducted, or operated.
Gaming Facility does not include the site of a fair, carnival, exposition, or similar
occasion.

214-16—(0) Gaming Operation means the conduct of Gaming Activities and related
business activities in Gaming Facilities and areas where Gaming Employees are
employed or assigned.

2+4-17—(p) Gaming Operator means the Tribe, an enterprise owned by the Tribe, or
such other entity of the Tribe as the Tribe may from time to time designate as the wholly-
owned entity having full authority and responsibility for the operation and management
of Gaming Operations.

214-18—(g) Gaming Services means the provision of any goods and services, except
legal services and accounting services, to a Gaming Operation, including, but not limited
to, equipment, transportation, food, linens, janitorial supplies, maintenance, or security
services.

214-19(r) Indian Gaming Regulatory Act or IGRA means Public Law 100-497, 102
Stat. 2426, 25 U.S.C. sec. 2701, et seq., as amended.

214-20—(s) Judiciary> means the judicia system that was established by Oneida
General Tribal Council resolution GTC #1-07-13-B to administer the judicial authorities
and responsibilities of the Tribe.

214-21 (1) License means a certificate or other document that represents the grant of a
revocable authorization to conduct the licensed activity. A HeenselLicense must be
supported by a physical document, badge, certification or other physical manifestation of
the issuance of the revocable authorization to conduct the licensed activity.

214-22(u) Licensee means a person or entity issued avalid License.

214-23—(v) NIGC means the National Indian Gaming Commission.

214-24—(w) Oneida Business Committee means the elected governing body of the
Tribe exercising authority delegated from the Oneida General Tribal Council of the
Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin under Article IV of the Constitution and By-laws
for the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin, approved December 21, 1936, as thereafter
amended.

214-25-(x) Oneida General Tribal Council means the governing body of the Oneida
Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin as determined by the Tribe’'s Constitution.

214-26—(y) Ordinance or ONGO means the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance as it
may from time to time be amended.
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214-27—(z) Regulatory Incident means the occurrence of any event giving rise to a

potential or alleged non-compliance with a gaming regulation, ordinance, law or policy

involving any person or Licensee on the premises of a Gaming Facility.

214-28—(aa) Remediation means efforts taken to reduce the source and migration of

environmental contaminants at asite.

214-29(bb) Reservation means all lands within the exterior boundaries of the

Reservation of the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin, as created pursuant to the 1838

Treaty with the Oneida, 7 Stat. 566, and any lands added thereto pursuant to federal law.

214-30—(cc) Senior Gaming Management means the gaming general manager, assistant

gaming general managers, gaming directors and assistant gaming directors.

214-31(dd) State means the State of Wisconsin, its authorized officials, agents and

representatives.

214-32—(ee) Tribe meansthe Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin.

214-33—(ff) Tribal Fee Land means all land to which the Tribe holds title in fee
simple.

2134-34—(gg) Tribal Trust Land means al land to which the United States holds title for

the benefit of the Tribe pursuant to federal law.

21.5. Oneida Business Committee: Powers and Duties

21.5-1. The Oneida Business Committee retains the power and duty to enter into agreements or
compacts with the State under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.-

21.5-2. The Oneida Business Committee retains the power and duty to enter into agreements
with local governments and other Tribal governments for services or cooperative ventures for the
Gaming Operations.

21.5-3. The Oneida Business Committee has the exclusive power and duty to enter into
contracts and agreements affecting the assets of the Tribe, except for those assets that were
placed under the responsibility of the Oneida Land Commission under Chapter 67, Real Property
Law.-

21.5-4. The Oneida Business Committee delegates to the Commission, as set out in section 21.6-
14, certain authorities and responsibilities for the regulation of Gaming Activities, Gaming
Operations, Gaming Operators, Gaming Employees, Gaming Facilities, Gaming Services, and
enforcement of laws and regulations, as identified in this Ordinance.

21.5-5. The Oneida Business Committee retains the duty and responsibility to safeguard all
funds generated by the Gaming Operations and all other authorities and responsibilities not
delegated by a specific provision of this Ordinance.

21.5-6. The Chairperson of the Tribe shalhmust be the designated and registered agent to receive
notice of violations, orders, or determinations which are issued pursuant to the Indian Gaming
Regulatory Act and the Compact.

21.6. Oneida Gaming Commission

21.6-1. Establishment and Purpose. _The Oneida Business Committee has established the
Oneida Gaming Commission for the purpose of regulating all Gaming Activities. _The
Commission is an elected body comprised of four (4) members, provided that, the Oneida
Business Committee may, upon request of the Commission, increase the number of
Commissioners by resolution without requiring amendment of this Ordinance.

416 | 21.6-2. Location and Place of Business. The Commission shal maintain its offices and
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principal place of business within the Reservation.
21.6-3. Duration and Attributes. _The Commission shalwill have perpetual existence and
succession in its own name, unless dissolved by Tribal law. Operations of the Commission
shallmust be conducted on behalf of the Tribe for the sole benefit of the Tribe and its members.
The Tribe reserves unto itself the right to bring suit against any person or entity in its own right,
on behaf of the Tribe, or on behalf of the Commission, whenever the Tribe considers it
necessary to protect the sovereignty, rights, and interests of the Tribe or the Commission.
21.6-4. Sovereign Immunity of the Tribe.-
(@) All inherent sovereign rights of the Tribe with regard to the existence and activities of
the Commission are hereby expressly reserved.-
(b) The Tribe confers upon the Commission sovereign immunity from suit as set forth in
the Tribe's Sovereign Immunity Ordinance.—
(c) Nothing in this Ordinance nor any action of the Commission shaltmay be construed
to be a waiver of its sovereign immunity or that of the Tribe, or consent by the
Commission or the Tribe to the jurisdiction of the Judiciary, the United States, any state,
or any other tribe, or consent by the Tribe to any suit, cause of action, case or
controversy, or the levy of any judgment, lien, or attachment upon any property of the
Commission or the Tribe.
21.6-5. Requirements of Commission Membership.
(& Qualifications. Candidates for election or appointment to the Commission shalmust
be at least twenty-one (21) years of age on the day of the election or on the day of
appointment. In addition, Candidatescandidates for election to the Commission shall
meet the following qualifications within five (5) business days after a caucus for elected
positions on the Commission. Candidates for appointment to the Commission shall meet
the following qualifications on the day of appointment to a vacancy on the Commission
under section 21.6-13:
(1) Bean enrolled member of the Tribe;
(2) Have a minimum of three (3) years of education experience, employment
experience and/or regulatory experience in Gaming Operations related to Gaming
Activity, Gaming law, Gaming control or regulation, or Gaming accounting or of
any combination of the foregoing; and
(3) Meet all other qualifications set forth in this Ordinance.
(b) Conflict of Interest. No person shaltmay be considered for election or appointment as
a Commissioner until the candidate has disclosed all conflicts of interest as defined by the
Oneida Conflict of Interest Policy.
(c) Background Investigation. No person shallmay be considered for election or
appointment as a Commissioner until a preliminary background-irvestigationBackground
Investigation has been completed and the person has been found to meet all
gualifications.
(d) Swearing into office is subject to a Background Investigation regarding the
gualifications set forth in sections 21.6-5 and 21.6-6 upon being elected or appointed to
office.
21.6-6. Unless pardoned for activities under subsection (a) and/or (d) by the Tribe, or pardoned
for an activity under subsection (a) and/or (d) by another Federally-recognized Indian Tribe for
an action occurring within the jurisdiction of the Federally-recognized Indian Tribe, or pardoned
for an activity under subsection (a) and/or (d) by the State or Federal government, no individual
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463 | shallmay be eligible for election or appointment to, or to continue to serve on, the Commission,
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who:
(@) Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, any of the
following:*
(1) Any gambling-related offense;
(2) Any offense involving Fraud or misrepresentation;
(3) Any offense involving a violation of any provision of chs. 562 or 565, Wis.
Stats., any rule promulgated by the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration, Division of Gaming or any rule promulgated by the Wisconsin
Racing Board,
(4) A felony not addressed in paragraphs 1, 2, or 3, during the immediately
preceding ten (10) years; or
(5) Any offense involving the violation of any provision of Tribal law regulating
the conduct of Gaming Activities, or any rule or regulation promulgated pursuant
thereto.
(b) Has been determined by the Tribe to be a person whose prior activities, criminal
record if any, or reputation, habits, and associations pose a threat to the public interest or
to the effective regulation and control of Gaming, or create or enhance the dangers of
unsuitable, unfair, or illegal practices, methods, or activities in the operation of Gaming
or the carrying on of the business and financial arrangements incidental thereto;
(c) Possesses a financia interest in or management responsibility for any Gaming
Activity or Gaming Services vendor;
(d) Has been convicted of a crime involving theft, Fraud, or conversion against the
Tribe;
(e) Has been removed from any office pursuant to the Oneida Removal Law within the
past five (5) years; or
() Isasitting Commissioner whose term is not concluded at the time of that election or
appointment action.
21.6-7. Term of Office. Commissioners shall serve five (5) year terms and shall serve until a
successor takes the oath of office. Terms of office shalmust be staggered.
21.6-8. Official Oath. Each Commissioner shall take the official oath at a regular or specia
Oneida Business Committee meeting prior to assuming office. Upon being administered the oath
of office, a Commissioner shall assume the duties of office and shallmust be issued a security
card setting forth his or her title and term of office.
21.6-9. Full-time Status. The Commission shall identify the appropriate work schedule for its
members. Each Commissioner shall perform his or her duties and responsibilities on a full-time
basis and witshall devote his or her entire work and professional time, attention and energies to
Commission business, and wimay not, during his or her tenure in office, be engaged in any
other profession or business activity that may impede the Commissioner’s ability to perform
duties on behalf of the Commission or that competes with the Tribe's interests.

503 | 21.6-10. By-lawsBylaws. The Commission shall adopt bylaws subject to review and approval

" This section taken substantially from Section IX of the Tribe-State Gaming Compact.
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by the Oneida Business Committee.
21.6-11. Budget and Compensation. The Commission shall function pursuant to an annual
budget. The Oneida Business Committee shall submit the operating budget of the Commission
for approval in the same fashion as all other Tribal budgets. Compensation of Commissioners
shallis not-be subject to the Tribe's Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and
Commissions, but shaltmust be established by the Commission in a manner consistent with the
Commission's internal rules and by-tawsbylaws. The Commission shall adopt internal rules
consistent with the existing Tribal accounting practices to verify its budgetary expenditures.
21.6-12. Removal. Removal of Commissioners shahmust be pursuant to the Oneida Removal
Law.-
21.6-13. Vacancies. Any vacancy in an unexpired term of office, however caused, shaltmust be
filled by appointment by the Oneida Business Committee of a person qualified pursuant to
sections 21.6-5 and 21.6-6 pursuant to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees and Commissions.
21.6-14. Authority and Responsibilities. Subject to any restrictions contained in this Ordinance
or other applicable law, the Commission is vested with powers including, but not limited to the
following:
(8 To exercise al power and authority necessary to effectuate the gaming regulatory
purposes of this Ordinance, IGRA, Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls, and the
Compact. Unless otherwise indicated in this Ordinance or Commission regulation, or
authorized by majority vote of the Commission, no Commissioner shalmay act
independently of the Commission. Any such action may constitute grounds for removal.
(b) To promote and ensure the integrity, security, honesty, and fairness of the regulation
and administration of Gaming.
(c) To draft, and approve, subject to review and adoption by the Oneida Business
Commiittee, regulations pursuant to this Ordinance for the regulation of al Gaming
Activity, including processes for enforcement of such regulations consistent with Tribal
law.
(d) To draft; and approve al .
Committee; the Rules of Play and Onei da Gam ng M|n| mum Internal Controls prowded
that, Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls shal-require review
and comment by theSenior Gaming OperationManagement prior to approva by the

Commission; and these-comments-shal—be-ncluded-n—any—sdubmissionare subject to
review b¥ the One| da Business Commlttee—Rul&eef—PLay—and—Onad&Gammg—I\mﬂmHm

( 1) Rules of Play and One| da Gam ng M|n| mum Internal Controls are minimum
standards with which the Gaming Operations are required to comply and are
audited against.

(2)  Comments received from Senior Gaming Management must be included in
any submission to the Oneida Business Committee.

(3) Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls are effective
upon adoption by the Commission. The Commission shall provide notice of
adoption of the Rules of Play and/or Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
to the Oneida Business Committee at the next available regularly scheduled
Oneida Business Committee meeting following such adoption. |If the Oneida
Business Committee has any concerns and/or reqguested revisions upon review of
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the Rules of Play and Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls, the
Commission shall work with the Oneida Business Committee to address such
concerns and/or requested revisions.
(A) Unless the Oneida Business Committee repeals the Rules of Play
and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls adopted by the
Commission, they will remain in effect while the Commission and the
Oneida Business Committee jointly work to amend the Rules of Play

and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls adopted by the
Commission.

i) Should the Oneida Business Committee repeal the Rules of

Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission, the Rules of Play and/or the Oneida
Gaming  Minimum Internal  Controls that were in effect
immediately previous to those repealed will be automatically
reinstated and effective immediately upon the repeal of the Rules
of Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission.
(B) _If the Commission does not receive written notice from the Oneida
Business Committee of intent to repeal or amend the Rules of Play and/or
the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls within thirty (30) days of
the date the Oneida Business Committee is provided notice of the Rules of
Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls adopted by
the Commission, they will remain in effect as adopted by the Commission.
(C) Should the Oneida Business Committee pursue amendments to the
Rules of Play and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls
adopted by the Commission, the amendments must be completed through
one (1) of the following actions within six (6) months from the date the
amendments are initiated by the Oneida Business Committee:
(i)_if the Commission and the Oneida Business Committee reach
an agreement as to the content of the amendments, the
Commission must adopt revised Rules of Play and/or the Oneida
Gaming Minimum Internal Controls that have been discussed with
and agreed upon by the Oneida Business Committee; or
(ii) _if the Commission and the Oneida Business Committee do not
reach an agreement as to the content of the amendments, the
Oneida Business Committee may adopt revised Rules of Play
and/or the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls that
incorporate the amendments it deems necessary.
D) If revised Rules of Play and/or Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls are not adopted by either the Commission or the Oneida Business
Committee within _six (6) months from the date the amendments are
initiated by the Oneida Business Committee, the Rules of Play and/or the

Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls originaly adopted by the
Commission will remain in effect.

(e) To prepare proposals, including budgetary and monetary proposals, which might
enable the Tribe to carry out the purpose and intent of this Ordinance, and to submit the
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same for consideration by the Oneida Business Committee; provided, however, that no
such proposal shall have any force or effect unless it is approved by the Oneida Business
Committee.

(f) To monitor and enforce all laws and regulations governing the operation and conduct
of all Gaming Activities, including the ongoing monitoring of Licenses, subject to this
Ordinance and/or regulations setting forth hearing or enforcement processes.

(g) To monitor and investigate all Gaming Operators for compliance with internal audits,
and external audits.

(h) To inspect, examine, and photocopy all papers, books, and records of Gaming
Activities and any other matters necessary to carry out the duties pursuant hereto,
provided that, al photocopies of documents shalmust be maintained in a confidential
manner or in the same manner as the original.

(i) To grant, deny, revoke, condition, suspend or reinstate the Licenses of Gaming
Employees, Gaming Services vendors, and Gaming Operators.

()) To conduct hearings relating to Licenses issued under this Ordinance by the
Commission.

(k) To review al vendors doing business with the Gaming Operator to verify that such
persons or entities hold a valid License, where required, to do business with a Gaming
Operator.

() To retain professional advisors such as attorneys, law enforcement specialists, and
Gaming professionals consistent with Tribal law and practices.

(m) To arbitrate, negotiate, or settle any dispute to which it is a party and which relates
to its authorized activities.

(n) To act asthe designated agent to receive all regulatory notices not included in section
21.5-6.

(o) Toinvestigate all Regulatory Incidents.

(p) Toissue warnings or notices of violation, in accordance with regulations, to Gaming
Operators and Licensees for non-compliance with the Compact, Oneida Gaming
Minimum Internal Controls, Rules of Play, IGRA, or this Ordinance.

(9) To make determinations regarding suitability for licensing.

() To establish an administrative structure by regulation to carry out its authority and
responsibilities.

(s) To establish, where needed, additional processes for conducting licensing hearings by
regulation.

(t) To establish and collect fees for processing Heenselicense applications by regulation.

(u) To establish and impose a point system for findings of regulatory violations by any
Gaming Employee by regulation.

(v) To establish and impose a fine system for findings of regulatory violations by any
Gaming Services vendor or permittee by regulation.

(w) To approve procedures that provide for the fair and impartia resolution of patron
complaints.

21.6-15. Reporting Requirements. The Commission shall adhere to the following reporting
requirements:

(&) A true, complete and accurate record of all proceedings of the Commission shaHmust
be kept and maintained;
(b) Complete and accurate minutes of all Commission meetings shaltmust be filed with
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the Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee within thirty (30) days of their approval

by the Commission;

(c) Quarterly, or as may be directed by the Oneida Business Committee, reports of the

Commission’s activities, including information regarding funding, income and expenses

and any other matters to which the parties may agree, shalhmust be submitted to the

Oneida Business Committee.
21.6-16. Oneida Gaming Commission Personnel. The Commission shall hire an Executive
Director who shal-beis responsible for hiring and managing the personnel of the Commission.
The Executive Director shall hire such personnel as is necessary to assist the Commission to
fulfill its responsibilities under this Ordinance, the IGRA, and the Compact, and all regulations
including the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal Controls. The Executive Director and
personnel of the Commission shalimust be hired through the Tribe's regular personnel procedure
and shal-beare subject to its personnel policies and salary schedules. The Executive Director
and personnel shall berequiredto-meet the requirements set forth in section 21.12-3 at hiring and
during employment.

21.7. Gaming Surveillance: Powers, Duties and Limitations
21.7-1. Purpose. The purpose of Gaming Surveillance is to observe and report Regulatory
Incidents to the Commission and Gaming General Manager to provide for the regulation,
operation, and compliance of Gaming Activities under this Ordinance. Gaming Surveillanceisa
department within the Commission’s administrative structure and supervision shalmust be
identified within the organizationa chart adopted by the Commission, provided that nothing in
the designation of supervisory responsibility shaltmay be deemed to prohibit the responsibility of
Gaming Surveillance to provide information and/or video and/or audio records to the parties
identified in section 21.7-3.
21.7-2. Gaming Surveillance shall be responsible for all Gaming surveillance activities
including, but not limited to, equipment and maintenance of equipment, observation and
reporting of all persons to include Gaming Employees, customers, consultants, and Gaming
Services vendors.
21.7-3. Surveillance personnel shall provide to Senior Gaming Management, the Commission,
or Gaming Security a copy of any time-recorded video and accompanying audio (if available)
within twenty-four (24) hours of request.
21.7-4. Gaming Surveillance shall:
() Develop, implement and maintain written policies and procedures for the conduct and
integrity of the Surveillance Department.
(b) Develop, implement and maintain additional procedures governing the use and
release of the surveillance recordings or reports.
(c) Work cooperatively with the Gaming Security Department to carry out its official
duties and to coordinate its activities in order to effectuate the protection of patrons and
the assets of the Gaming Operation.
(d) Develop, implement and maintain written policies and procedures for implementation
of duties and responsibilities identified with the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls, subject to approval by the Commission.

21.8. [Reserved for future use.]
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21.9. Gaming Security Department
21.9-1. Purpose. The Gaming Security Department is a department within the Oneida Police
Department. The purpose of the Gaming Security Department is to protect Gaming assets,
patrons and Gaming Employees from an activity, repeat activity, or ongoing activities which
could injure or jeopardize Gaming assets, patrons and Gaming Employees and report these
activities to the Oneida Police Department for further review and/or investigation. Provided that,
al reports of the Gaming Security Department shalimust be copied to the Commission.
21.9-2. Reporting. The Oneida Police Department, Gaming Genera Manager and the
Commission shall enter into an agreement, subject to ratification by the Oneida Business
Committee, which describes their responsibilities and reporting requirements under this
lawOrdinance.
21.9-3. The Gaming Security Department shall:
(@) Develop, implement and maintain written policies and procedures for the conduct and
integrity of Gaming Security, asidentified in the Oneida Gaming Minimum Internal
Controls and subject to approval by the Commission.
(b) Develop, implement and maintain additional procedures governing the use and
release of the investigation reports.
(c) Work cooperatively with Gaming Surveillance to carry out its official duties and to
coordinate activities between the departments.
21.9-4. Investigations. This Seetionsection is intended to authorize report gathering,
information gathering, and preliminary review, to be conducted by the Gaming Security
Department.

21.10. Background Investigations

21.10-1. The Human Resources Department and the Commission shall enter into an agreement,
subject to ratification by the Oneida Business Committee, for carrying out Background
Investigations for employees as required under this faw—Ordinance.

21.10-2. Background Investigations shalmust be conducted on al persons or entities as
specified under this faw—Ordinance. All Background Investigations shaimust be conducted to
ensure that the Tribe in its Gaming Operations shaltmay not employ or contract with persons
whose prior activities, or reputation, habits and associations pose a threat to the public interest or
to the effective regulation of gamingGaming, or create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable,
unfair or illegal practices and methods in the conduct of such gaming—Gaming. The identity of
any person interviewed in order to conduct a Background Investigation must be confidential.

21.11. Licenses, Generally

21.11-1. The Commission shall adopt procedures that ensure the efficient and orderly processing
of al applications for a License. All Gaming Employees, Gaming Services vendors, and
Gaming Operators shall apply for a License from the Commission prior to their participation in
any Gaming Activity. All Gaming Facilities must be licensed by the Oneida Business
Committee.

21.11-2. Temporary License. All Applicants, upon receipt by the Commission of a completed
application for a License and completion of a preliminary Background Investigation, may
receive a temporary license for a ninety (90) day period, unless a Background Investigation of
the application demonstrates grounds to disqualify the Applicant. Such temporary license, as

| defined in this section, shalt-permitpermits the Licensee to engage in such activities and pursuant
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to any terms and conditions imposed and specified by the Commission. The temporary license
shall-beis valid until either replaced by a License, the ninety (90) day temporary license period
has concluded, or the temporary license is cancelled by the Commission, whichever occurs first.
21.11-3. Revocable. A Licenseisrevocable only in accordance with the procedures set forth in
this Ordinance. A Licensee shal-havehas only those rights and protections regarding a License
granted in this Ordinance.
21.11-4. All Applicants:
(8 Consent to the release of any information relevant to the Applicant’s Background
Investigation by any person or entity in possession of such information.
(b) Consent to the jurisdiction of the Tribe and are subject to al applicable Tribal,
Federal, and State laws, regulations, and policies.
21.11-5. All Licensees are subject to ongoing review at least every two (2) years by the
Commission.
21.11-6. Status of Licenses. The Commission shall notify the Gaming Operation of the status of
al Licenses, whether temporary or permanent, including al Commission action to revoke,
suspend, or condition a License.
21.11-7. Commission Licensing Actions. The Commission may grant, deny, revoke, condition,
suspend or reinstate all Licenses, except for Gaming Facilities Licenses, in accordance with this
Ordinance. _Authority to place conditions on a heenseLicense may be exercised only upon
promulgation of regulations.
21.11-8. Noncompliance. The Commission may issue a notice of noncompliance when the
Commission has developed regulations that identify procedures that notices of noncompliance
may be issued to Licensees and permiteespermittees which provide an opportunity to correct
actions. Such regulations shalmust include procedures for appeal of such notices. Regulations
may include the ability to issue fines not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1000.00) per violation
for Gaming Services vendors and permiteespermittees.

21.12. Gaming Employee License

21.12-1. Scope of Section. This Seetionsection applies only to Gaming Employee Licenses and
licensing actions.

21.12-2. License Application. Every Applicant for a License shall file with the Commission a
written application in the form prescribed by the Commission, duly executed and verified, which

| shalhmust certify:

(& Applicant’s full name and al other names used (oral or written), Social Security
Number(s), place of birth, date of birth, citizenship, gender, and all languages (spoken or
written).

(b) Currently, and for the previous five (5) years: business and employment positions
held, ownership interests in those businesses, business and residence addresses, and
driver’s license number(s).

() The names and current addresses, of at least three (3) personal references, including
one (1) personal reference, who were acquainted with the Applicant during each period of
residence listed in subsection (b) above.

(d) Current business and residence telephone numbers.

(e) A description of any existing and previous business relationships with Indian Tribes,
including ownership interest in those businesses.

(f) A description of any existing and previous business relationship with the Gaming
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industry generally, including ownership interest in those businesses.
(9 The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which the
Applicant has filed an application for a license or permit related to gamigGaming,
whether or not such Heenseslicense or permit was granted.
(h) The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which the
Applicant has filed an application for an occupational license or permit, whether or not
such Heenseslicense or permit was granted.
(i) For each felony conviction or ongoing prosecution or conviction, the charge, the
name and address of the court involved, and the date and disposition if any.
() For each misdemeanor or ongoing misdemeanor prosecution (excluding violations for
which jail time is not part of the potential sentence) within ten (10) years of the date of
the application, the name and address of the court involved, and the date and disposition.
(k) For each criminal charge (excluding charges for which jail time is not part of the
potential sentence) whether or not there is a conviction, if such crimina charge is within
ten (10) years of the date of the application and is not otherwise listed pursuant to
subsections (i) or (j) of this section, the criminal charge, the name and address of the
court involved and the date and disposition.
() A photograph.
(m) Fingerprints consistent with procedures adopted by the Commission which meet the
criteria set forth in 25 C.F.R. section 522.2(h)._ The Commission is the agency that takes
the fingerprints.
(n) Any other information the Commission deems relevant for a Gaming Employee
License.
(o) A statement that each Applicant has read and understands notices and NIGC
requirements relating to:

(1) The Privacy Act of 1974,

(2) Fraud and False Statements Act; and

(3) Fair Credit Reporting Act.

| 21.12-3. License Qualifications. No License shatmay be granted if the Applicant:

(8 Isunder the age of eighteen (18).
(b) Unless pardoned for activities under this subsection by the Tribe, or pardoned for
activities under this subsection by another Federally-recognized Indian Tribe for an
action occurring within the jurisdiction of the Federally-recognized Indian Tribe, or
pardoned for activities under this subsection by the state or Federal government, has been
convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, any of the following:
(1) Any gambling-related offense;
(2) Any offense involving Fraud or misrepresentation;
(3) Any offense involving a violation of any provision of chs. 562 or 565, Wis.
Stats.,, any rule promulgated by the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration, Division of Gaming or any rule promulgated by the Wisconsin
Racing Board,
(4) A felony not addressed in paragraphs (1), (2), or (3), during the immediately
preceding ten (10) years, or
(5) Any offense involving the violation of any provision of Tribal law regulating
the conduct of Gaming Activities, or any rule or regulation promulgated pursuant
thereto.
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(c) Is determined to be a person whose prior activities, criminal record, reputation,
habits, or associations pose athreat to the public interest or to the effective regulation and
control of Gaming or create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair, or illegal
practices, methods, or activities in the operation of Gaming Activities or the carrying on
of the business and financial arrangements incidental thereto.
(d) Possesses a financial interest in or management responsibility for any Gaming
Activity or Gaming Services vendor, or he or she has any personal, business, or legal
relationship which places him or her in a conflict of interest as defined in this Ordinance
or the Conflict of Interest Policy.
| (e) Each person Licensedlicensed as a Gaming Employee shal-havehas a continuing
obligation to inform the Commission immediately upon the existence of any
circumstance or the occurrence of any event which may disqualify him or her from being
licensed as a Gaming Employee. Failure to report any such occurrence may result in
suspension or revocation of the Gaming Employee's License.
21.12-4. Initial Eligibility Determination.
(8) Based on the results of the preliminary Background Investigation, the Commission
shall make aninitial determination regarding an Applicant’s eligibility and either:
(1) Grant atemporary license, with or without conditions, to the Applicant; or
| (2) Deny the heenselicense application and provide notice to the Applicant that
he or she may request a hearing regarding the decision consistent with subsection
(b) below.
(b) If the Commission determines that an Applicant is ineligible for a License, the
Commission shall notify the Applicant. The Commission shall set forth regulations for
an Applicant to review any information discovered during the preliminary Background
Investigation prior to scheduling a hearing under section 21.12-910. The suspension or
revocation hearing provisions set forth at section 21.12-89 do not apply to Initial
Eligibility Determinations.
| 21.12-5. Eligibility Determination and Notification to NIGC—Review. When a Gaming
Employee begins employment at a Gaming Operation, the Commission shall:
(8) FerwardRequire the Gaming Employee to the-NHGCsubmit a completed application
for employment that contains the notices and information listed in section 21.12-2-and

any-other necessary reports.

(b) Review the Background Investigation of the Appheant—BasedGaming Employee.
Within sixty (60) days after a Gaming Employee begins employment at a Gaming
Facility under a temporary license, the Commission shall make an eligibility
determination regarding whether the Gaming Employee may receive a License based

upon the results of the Background Investlgatlon—theLGanmmsen—shaH—detemeeJehe

al HGC-(c) Create an
mvesthatlve renort based on each Bacquound Investhatlon performed.  The
investigative report must include the steps in conducting the Background Investigation,
results obtained, conclusions reached and the basis for those conclusions.

(d) Prior toissuing a License to a Gaming Employee and within sixty (60) days after the
AppheantGaming Employee begins employment at a Gaming Facility-

)
G O G G O o
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873 an . Hrma
874 he Bac kground Investhatlon to the NIGC for inclusion in the Indian Gaming Individual
875 Record System. The notice of the NHGC+ray+equestresults must include the following,
876 Drowded that any addltlonal or aternate mformatlon #em—the—@emmlesen—eeneemng
877 At 2y
878 Feewes—theaeldmenal—mtemqaneemust be forwarded as dlrected in requlatlons or rules
879 adopted by NIGC:
880 s
881
882
883
884
885
886
887 .
888 {4(1) The Gaming Employee's name, date of birth and social security number.
889 (2) The date on which the Gaming Employee began employment.
890 (3 A summary of the information presented in the investigative report,
891 including:
892 (A) License(s) that have previously been denied;
893 (B) Gaming licenses that have been revoked, even if subsequently
894 reinstated;
895 (C) Every known criminal charge brought against the Gaming Employee
896 within the last ten (10) years of the date of the application;
897 (D) Every felony of which the Gaming Employee has been convicted or
898 any ongoing prosecution.
899 (4) acopy of the eligibility determination made under section 21.12-5(b).
900 (e) All applications, Background Investigations, investigative reports, suitability
901 determinations, findings and decisions of the Commission shalimust be retained in the
902 Commission’s files for a period of at least seven{fthree (3) years from the date the
903 Gaming Employee’ s employment is terminated.
904 | 21.12-6. License Issuance. The Commission may issue a License to a Gaming Employee at any
905 | time after providing NIGC with a notice of results as required under section 21.12-5(d);
906 | however, a Gaming Employee who does not have a License ninety (90) days after the start of
907 | employment must have his or her employment terminated. The Commission shall notify the
908 | NIGC of the issuance or denial of a License to a Gaming Employee within thirty (30) days after
909 | thelLicenseisissued or denied.
910 (a) Any Gaming Employee License issued under this section shaH-bel s effective from the
911 date of issuance and shalmust contain the Gaming Employee’s photograph, the Gaming
912 Employee’'s name, and the date that the License became effective. If a Gaming
913 Employee is promoted, transferred, reassigned, or the position is reclassified, the Gaming
914 Employee shall notify in writing the Commission, and the Commission shall review the
915 Gaming Employee’s License. The Commission retains the right to grant, deny, revoke,
916 condition, suspend, or reinstate Licenses subject to the right to appeal the decision under
917 the processes set forth in this Ordinance.

21-21



Page 84 of 488

For OBC Consideration — Redline to Current
09/02/15

918 | 21.12-7. Requirement to Wear License._ During working hours, all Licensees shall wear their

919
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License in a conspicuous place that is plainly visible by al employees, the Nation's
gamingGaming patrons and surveillance.
21.12-8. NIGC Review.
(a) During athirty (30) day period, beginning when the NIGC receives a notice of results
submitted pursuant to section 21.12-5(d) above, the Chairman of the NIGC may request
additional information from the Commission concerning the Gaming Employee. Such a
request suspends the thirty (30) day period until the Chairman receives the additional
information.
(b) If, within the thirty (30) day period after NIGC receives the notice of results, the
NIGC notifies the Commission that it has no objection to the issuance of a License, and
the Commission has not yet issued a License to the Gaming Employee, the Commission
may grant the License to the Gaming Employee.
(c) If, within the thirty (30) day period after NIGC receives the notice of results, the
NIGC provides the Commission with a statement itemizing objections to the issuance of
a License, the Commission shall reconsider the application, taking into account the
objections itemized by the NIGC. The Commission shall make the final decision whether
to issue a License to the Gaming Employee, or if the Gaming Employee has already been
licensed, whether to suspend or revoke the License in accordance with section 21.12-9.
(d) Upon receipt of notification from the NIGC that a Gaming Employee who has
already been licensed is not eligible for employment, the Commission shall immediately
suspend the License in accordance with section 21.12-9.
21.12-9. Suspension or Revocation of Licenses. Except as provided in section 21.12-8(d) or
21.12-9(c), no License eanmay be suspended or revoked except after notice and opportunity for
hearing.
(a) Basis for Licensing Action. The Commission may suspend, condition, or revoke any
License issued under this Ordinance if:
(1) After the issuance of a License, the Commission receives from the NIGC or
other source reliable information indicating that a Gaming Employee is not
eligible for a License under section 21.12-3 or such information would justify the
denial of the renewal of any License, the Commission shall issue a written notice
of suspension;
(2) The Commission issues a written notice of suspension demonstrating that the
Licensee:
(A) Has knowingly made a materially false or miseading statement in
any application for a License, in any amendment thereto, or in response to
a request by the Commission for supplemental information or in
connection with any investigation of the Commission;
(B) Has knowingly promoted, played, or participated in any gaming
activity operated in violation of the Compact, Tribal or federal law, and
this Ordinance;
(C) Has bribed or attempted to bribe, or has received a bribe from, a
Commissioner or any other person in an attempt to avoid or circumvent
any applicable law;
(D) Has falsified any books or records relating to any transaction
connected with the operation of Gaming Activity;
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(E) Has refused to comply with any lawful directive of the Tribe, the
Federal government, or any court of competent jurisdiction; or
(F) Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, a
crimeinvolving the sale of illegal narcotics or controlled substances.
(b) Suspension Notice. The Commission’s notice of suspension shalkmust be in writing
and shalhmust, at a minimum, notify the Licensee of the following:
(1) The Licensee sright to review afile prior to any hearing regarding the notice
of suspension, and to make copies of any documents contained in that file;
(2) The Licensee's right to request a hearing on the proposed licensing action, to
present documents and witness testimony at that hearing to be represented by
counsel;
(3) The specific grounds upon which the proposed licensing action is based,
including citations to relevant sections of this Ordinance, the IGRA, any
applicable Regulations and/or the Compact; and
(4) Thetime and place set by the Commission for the Licensee’ s hearing.
(c) Immediate Suspension. If, in the judgment of the Commission, the public interest,
and effective regulation and control of Gaming Activities requires the immediate
exclusion of aLicensee, the Commission may immediately suspend a License prior to the
conduct of a hearing on the matter. Such an immediate suspension may take effect upon
service of the notice of immediate suspension.
(d) Any notice of suspension or notice of immediate suspension shakmust set forth the
times and dates for when the Licensee may review theirhis or her filereview and the date
for a hearing on any proposed licensing action.
(e) Within fifteen (15) business days after a hearing, the Commission shall issue a final
written licensing decison and decide whether to suspend, uphold an immediate
suspension, revoke, or take other action concerning a License. If the License was
suspended, conditioned or revoked based on information from the NIGC or other source
under section 21.12-8(d) or 21.12-9(a)(1), the Commission shall forward a copy of its
decision to NIGC within forty-five (45) days of receiving NIGC's or the other source's
notification indicating that a Gaming Employeeis not eligible for aLicense.
(f) If aLicensee failsto appear for his or her hearing before the Commission, that right
shall-beis deemed to have been waived and the Commission will proceed on the proposed
licensing action by default.
(9) Unless identified in this Ordinance or regulations of the Commission, the hearing
processes set forth in the Onelda—Administrative—Procedures—Aect—shallTribe's
administrative procedures |aw apply.
21.12-910. Original Hearing Body. Any person aggrieved by a licensing decision of the
Commission may appea the decision by filing a request for an original hearing before the
Commission. The Licensee mustmay file any such request with the Commission in writing on or
before the fifteenth (15th) day following receipt of the Commission’s decision. The Commission
shall certify the record, developed in section 21.12-4 or 21.12-89(a), within thirty (30) days of
the date of the filing of the request for an original hearing. The Commissioners serving on the
original hearing body shaltmay not include the Commissioners who participated in the licensing
decison from which the origina hearing is scheduled. The Commission may determine to
review the decision solely on the licensing decision record and briefs filed regarding the request
for reconsideration. The Commission may also, in its sole discretion, grant oral argument. The
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Commission shall issue a written decision determining whether to uphold the Commission’s
licensing decision, including whether to revoke or reinstate a License, within one hundred twenty
(120) days from receipt of the request for the original hearing. The Commission’s decision shat
beis considered an original hearing decision and an appeal may be made to the Judiciary as an
appeal of an original hearing body.

21.12-1011. Notice to Oneida Business Committee. Prior to any suspension or revocation of a
License of the gaming general manager, the Commission shall provide notice to the Oneida
Business Committee twenty-four (24) hours prior to the issuance of the suspension or revocation.

21.12-1212. Record of Proceedings. The Commission shall maintain a complete and accurate
record of all Lieensurelicensure proceedings.

21.12-1213. Revocation of a License is solely limited to the licensing matter. Employment
related processes resulting from revocation of a leenselicense are determined solely through the
personnel processes and procedures of the Tribe and are not licensing matters governed by this
Ordinance.

21.13. Gaming Services Licensing and Non-Gaming Services Permitting
21.13-1. Scope of Section. This section applies to al individuals and entities providing Gaming
Services. The requirements of this Section are in addition to, and do not alter or amend any
requirements imposed by the Oneida Vendor Licensing Law.?
21.13-2. Gaming Services License or Non-Gaming Services Permit Required.
(8 Gaming Services License. Any Gaming Services vendor providing gamigGaming
related contract goods or services as defined under Article VII(A) of the Compact to the
Gaming Operation mustshall possess avalid Gaming Services License.
(b) Non-Gaming Services Permit. Any vendor providing non-gaming related goods or
services to the Gaming Operation maustshall possess a valid Non-Gaming Services permit.
(c) Determinations regarding the issuance of a License or permit under this section
shallmust be made by the Commission which may be subject to requests for
reconsideration by the Gaming Services vendor within fourteen (14) business days of
receipt by the Gaming Services vendor of the notice of License or permit determination.
21.13-3. Approved Gaming Services Vendor List. The Commission shall maintain an updated
and complete list of all Gaming Services vendors that possess current and valid Gaming Services
Licenses or Non-Gaming Services permits from the Commission, which saal-beis known as the
Approved License and Permit List. Gaming Operations may only do business with vendors that
possess valid and current Gaming Services Licenses or Non-Gaming Services permits and who
appear on the Approved License and Permit List.
21.13-4. Gaming Services License/Permit Application. Every Applicant for a License or permit
shall file with the Commission a written application in the form prescribed by the Commission,
duly executed and verified which shaltmust provide and certify the following. Provided that,
nen-gaming-servicesNon-Gaming Services vendors with less than two thousand five hundred
dollars ($2,500.00) in services for the prior fiscal year shaltare only-be required to file a notice of
doing business with the Commission.

2 See also Appendix 1. Vendor Licensing/Permit.
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(8 The Applicant’s name and mailing address;
(b) The names and addresses of each officer or management official of the Applicant;
(c) A copy of the Applicant’s articles of incorporation and by-laws, or if not a
corporation, the Applicant’ s organizational documents;
(d) Identification of an agent of service for the Applicant;
(e) The name and address of each person having a direct or indirect financial interest in
the Applicant;
(f) The nature of the License or permit applied for, describing the activity to be engaged
in under the License or permit;
(g) Explicit and detailed disclosure of any crimina record, including any delinquent
taxes owed to the United States, or any state, of the Applicant, any person involved in the
organization, and any person of interest whose name appears or is required to appear on
the application;
(h) Whether the Applicant is or has been licensed by the state of Wisconsin Office of
Indian Gaming Regulation and Compliance and, if applicable, proof of current licensure;
(i) Whether the Applicant has been licensed in the state of New Jersey, Nevada, or by
any other gaming jurisdiction, including any Indian Tribe or Tribal governmental
organization and, if so, proof of such licensure and the status of any such heensel icense;
(1) Whether the Applicant has been denied a Heenselicense by any gaming jurisdiction
and, if so, the identity of the jurisdiction, the date of such decision and the circumstances
surrounding that decision;
(K) Whether any hleenselicense held by the Applicant has been refused renewal,
conditioned, suspended or revoked by an issuing authority and, if so, the circumstances
surrounding that action;
() A statement of waiver alowing the Tribe to conduct a Background Investigation of
the Applicant and any person whose name appears or is required to appear on the
application;
(m) Whether the Applicant or any person whose name appears or is required to appear
on the application has or has had any business with the Tribe or any business or personal
relationship with any of the Tribe' s officers or employees;
(n) The name and contact information for all Tribes or Tribal organizations with whom
the Applicant or any person whose name appears or is required to appear on the
application has done business;
(0) Whether the Applicant or any person whose name appears or is required to appear on
the application maintains any involvement in the business of wholesale distribution of
alcoholic beverages;
(p) A statement that the Applicant has read and understands notices and NIGC
requirements relating to:

(1) The Privacy Act of 1974,

(2) False statements; and

(3) TheFair Credit Reporting Act.
(q) All additional information necessary to alow the Commission to investigate the
Applicant and any person whose name appears or is required to appear on the application.

21.13-5. Signature on Application. Applications for Licenses or permits must be signed by the
following person:

(8 For companies and corporations (both for profit and non-profit), the highest ranking
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officia of the corporation, or another person to whom the authority to execute the

Application has been properly delegated.

(b) For asole proprietorship, the principal owner.

(c) For apartnership, al partners.

(d) For alimited partnership, the general partner or partners.
21.13-6. Incomplete Applications. Applications that do not contain al information requested,
including proper signatures, will be considered incomplete. Incomplete applications will not be
considered by the Commission. The Commission shall notify an Applicant if an application is
incomplete and what additional information is necessary to complete the application. If an
Applicant who has submitted an incomplete application, and been notified of the deficiency in
that application, fails to provide the information requested by the Commission, the application
will be returned to the Applicant and the file closed.
21.13-7. Supplemental Information. The Commission may, in its discretion, request
supplemental information from the Applicant. Supplemental information requested by the
Commission shalmust be promptly submitted by the Applicant. An Applicant’s failure or
refusal to submit supplemental information requested by the Commission may constitute grounds
for the denia of the application.
21.13-8. Continuing Duty to Provide Information. Applicants, permiteespermittees, and
Licensees owe a continuing duty to provide the Commission with information and materials
relevant to the Applicant’s, permittee’s, or Licensee’'s character or fitness to be licensed,
including but not limited to any change in the licensing or permitting status of the Applicant,
permittee, or Licensee in any foreign jurisdiction. An Applicant’s, permittee’s, or Licensee's
failure to notify the Commission promptly of inaccuracies on an application or new information
or materials relevant to the Applicant may constitute grounds to deny, suspend or revoke a
License or permit.
21.13-9. Background Investigations. Background Investigations for Gaming Services vendors

| shalbmust be conducted as follows.

(8) Gaming Related Equipment Gaming Services Vendors under Fifty Thousand Dollars
($50,000.00) in Goods and/or Services Annually. The Commission shall conduct the
Background Investigations that are sufficient to determine the eligibility for licensing of
all Gaming Services vendors that provide or anticipate providing under fifty thousand
dollars ($50,000.00) in goods and services annually.
(b) Gaming Related Equipment Gaming Services Vendors over Fifty Thousand Dollars
($50,000.00) in Goods and/or Services Annually. The Commission shall review the
background investigation conducted by the Wisconsin Office of Indian Gaming
Regulation, and shall conduct any necessary additional Background Investigation to
ensure that the state background investigation is complete and current.
(c) Other Non-Gaming Related Goods and/or Services Gaming Services Vendors. The
Commission shall conduct Background Investigations on a sufficient number of
randomly selected applications in order to verify the accuracy of all applications. The
random selection process shalimust be identified by regulation of the Commission.
21.13-10. Licensing Action in a Foreign Jurisdiction. If the states of Wisconsin, New Jersey,
Nevada or any other gaming jurisdiction refuses to renew a HeenselLicense or permit or
conditions, suspends, or revokes the HeenseLicense or permit of an Applicant,
permiteepermittee, or Licensee, such action may congtitute grounds for similar action by the
Commission.
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21.13-11. Claim of Privilege. At any time during the licensing or permitting process, the
Applicant may claim any privilege afforded by law. An Applicant’s claim of privilege with
respect to the production of requested information or documents or the provision of required
testimony or evidence may constitute grounds for the denial, suspension or revocation of a
HeenselLicense or permit.
21.13-12. Withdrawal of an Application. An Applicant may request to withdraw an application
by submitting a written request to the Commission. The Commission retains the right, in its
exclusive discretion, to grant or deny a request for withdrawal. An Applicant who withdraws an
application shal-beis precluded from reapplying for a Gaming Services License or Non-Gaming
Services permit for aperiod of one (1) year from the date the application was withdrawn.
21.13-13. Suspension or Revocation of Gaming Services Licenses or Permits. Except as
provided in section 21.13-13(c), no License or permit eanmay be suspended or revoked except
after notice and opportunity for hearing.
(a) Basis for Licensing or Permitting Action. The Commission may suspend, modify, or
revoke any Gaming Services License or Non-Gaming Services permit issued under this
Ordinance if, after issuance of the License or permit, the Commission receives reliable
information that would justify denial of the issuance or renewal of a License or permit, or
if the Commission determines that the Licensee or permiteepermittee has:
(1) Knowingly made a materially false or misleading statement in any application
for a License or permit, in any amendment thereto, or in response to a request by
the Commission for supplemental information or in connection with any
investigation of the Commission;
(20 Knowingly promoted, played, or participated in any Gaming Activity
operated in violation of the Compact, or any Tribal or other applicable law;
(3) Bribed or attempted to bribe a Commissioner or any other person in an
attempt to avoid or circumvent any applicable law;
(4) Falsified any books or records relating to any transaction connected with
operation of Gaming Activity;
(5) Refused to comply with a lawful directive of the Tribe, the federal
government, or any court of competent jurisdiction; or
(6) Been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to, a crime
involving the sale of illegal narcotics or controlled substances.
(b)——_Suspension Notice. The Commission shall provide a Licensee or
permiteepermittee with written notice of suspension, which shaltmust, at a minimum,
notify the Licensee or permiteepermittee of the following:
(1) The Licensee's or permitee-spermittee’ s right to conduct afile review prior to
any hearing regarding the notice of suspension, and to make copies of any
documentsin that file;
(2) The Licensee's or permitee spermittee’s right to present documents and
witness testimony at the hearing and to be represented by counsel;
(3) The specific grounds upon which the suspension is based, including citations
to relevant sections of this Ordinance, the IGRA, any applicable regulations
and/or the Compact; and
(4) The time and place set by the Commission for the Licensee's or
permitee-spermittee’ sfile review and hearing.
(c) Immediate Suspension. If, in the judgment of the Commission, the public interest,
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and effective regulation and control of others require the immediate exclusion of a

Licensee or permiteepermittee, the Commission may immediately suspend a License or

permit prior to a hearing on the matter. Such an immediate suspension shal-taketakes

effect upon service of the notice of immediate suspension.

(d) File Review and Hearing. Any notice of suspension or notice of immediate

suspension shalkmust set forth the time and date for the Licensee or permiteepermittee to

conduct afile review and for a hearing.

(e) Final Written Decision. Within fifteen (15) business days after a hearing, the

Commission shall issue afinal written decision and decide whether to suspend, uphold an

immediate suspension, revoke, or take other action concerning a License or permit.

(f) Default. If a Licensee or permiteepermittee fails to appear for his or her hearing

before the Commission, that right shall—-beis deemed to have been waived and the

Commission will proceed on the proposed licensing action by default.

(g) Unless identified in this Ordinance or regulations of the Commission, the hearing

processes set forth in the Onelda Administrative Procedures Act shal-apply.
21.13-14. Original Hearing Body. Any person aggrieved by alicensing or permitting decision
of the Commission may appeal the decision by filing a request for an original hearing before the
Commission. The Applicant, Licensee or permittee mustmay file such request with the
Commission in writing on or before the fifteenth (15") day following the receipt of the
Commission’s decision. The Commission shall certify the record, developed in section 21.13-9
or 21. 13 -13(a), within thirty (30) days of the date of the filing on the request for an original
hearing. The Commissioners participating in theinitial licensing or permitting decision shalimay
not participate in the origina hearing. The Commission may determine to review the decision
solely on the licensing or permitting decision record and briefs filed regarding the request for
reconsideration. The Commission may also, in its sole discretion, grant oral argument. The
Commission shall issue awritten decision within one hundred twenty (120) days from receipt of

| the request for the original hearing. The Commission’s decision shalt-beis considered an original

hearing decision and an appeal may be made to the Judiciary as an appeal of an origina hearing
body.

21.14. Gaming Facility License
21.14-1. The construction and maintenance of any Gaming Facility, and the operation of
Gaming Activities, shallmust be conducted in a manner which adequately protects the
environment and the public health and safety, and shaltmust comply with requirements of the
Compact and all other applicable health, safety, and environmental standards.
21.14-2. The Oneida Business Committee shaltmust receive, review and grant or deny any
application for licensing any Gaming Facilities located within the Reservation. Applicants shall
provide the Oneida Business Committee sufficient information to show the following:
(& The Gaming Facility meets all applicable Federal and Tribal health and safety
standards.
(1) To show compliance with applicable health and safety standards, Gaming
Operator shall submit certified copies of Compliance Certificates issued by the
agencies responsible for the enforcement of the health and safety standards.
(2) If health and safety standards are not met, proof must be submitted by
Gaming Operator that the Gaming Facility is in the process of improvements
which will place the Gaming Facility in compliance with the applicable standards.
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(b) The Gaming Facility meets applicable federal and Tribal environmental standards.
(1) To show compliance with applicable environmental standards, Gaming
Operator shall submit certified copies of an Environmental Assessment of the
Gaming Facility which were prepared by the agency responsible for the
enforcement of applicable environmental standards.
(2) If the applicable environmental standards are not met, proof must be
submitted by Gaming Operator that remediationRemediation of the Gaming
Facility is being actively sought which will place the Gaming Facility in
compliance with the applicable standards.
21.14-3. Upon receipt and review of the above information, the Oneida Business Committee
shall deliberate and either grant or deny for faillure to meet the requirements of protecting the
health and safety of patrons, public and employees of a Gaming Facility License to the
Applicant. The Oneida Business Committee shall submit to the NIGC a copy of each Gaming
Facility License issued.
21.14-4. If the Oneida Environmental, Health and Safety Department notifies the Oneida
Business Committee that a Gaming Facility will be closed by a governmental agency with proper
authority due to environmental, health or safety concerns, the Oneida Business Committee shall
suspend the License of the Gaming Facility. The Oneida Business Committee shall re-License
the Gaming Facility after receiving the information required in section 21.14-2.

21.15. Gaming Operator License
21.15-1. Consent to Jurisdiction. The application for License and the conduct of Gaming within
the jurisdiction of the Tribe shalkbeis considered consent to the jurisdiction of the Tribe in al
matters arising from the conduct of Gaming, and all matters arising under any of the provisions
of this Ordinance or other Tribal laws.
21.15-2. License Required. No Gaming Operator shalhmay conduct Gaming Activity unless
such entity holds avalid and current Gaming Operator License issued by the Commission.
21.15-3. Types of Licenses. The Commission may issue each of the following types of Gaming
Operator Licenses:
(&) Tribally-Owned or Tribally-Operated Class Il. This License shal-beis required of all
Tribally-owned or Tribally-operated Gaming Operations operating one or more Class ||
Gaming Activities.
(b) Tribally-Owned or Tribally-Operated Class I1l. This License shal-beis required for
al Tribally-owned or Tribally-operated Gaming Operations operating one or more Class
Il Gaming Activities.
21.15-4. Gaming Operator License Qualifications. The Commission shall issue a Gaming
Operator License to any Gaming Operation if:
(& The Gaming Operation is to be located within the Reservation, or land taken into
trust after October 17, 1988, for Gaming purposes;
(b) The Gaming Activity proposed to be played at the Gaming Operation is Class Il or
Class |11 Gaming as defined by this Ordinance and IGRA; and
(c) The proposed Gaming Operation is authorized by a resolution of the Oneida Business
Committee.
21.15-5. Provisions of General Applicability to All Gaming Operators.
(&) Site and Gaming Operator Specified. Each Gaming Operator License shalimay be
applicable only to one (1) Gaming Operation and the Gaming Facility named on the
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License.
(b) License Not Assignable. No Gaming Operator License shalhmay be sold, lent,
assigned or otherwise transferred.
(c) Regulations Posted or Available. Each Gaming Operator shaltmust have a copy of
this Ordinance and any regulations promulgated thereunder available for inspection by
any person at each Gaming Facility.
(d) Display of License. Each Gaming Operator shaltmust prominently display its
License at each Gaming Facility.
21.15-6. Grandfathered Gaming Facilities. All Gaming Operators operating on the effective
date of July 5, 2007, are hereby granted a License under this section.
21.15-7. License Application Fees and License Taxes. No application fees or License taxes
shaltmay be required by the Tribe for a Gaming Operator License.
21.15-8. Closure of a Gaming Operation. If the Commission finds that any Gaming Operation
is operating in violation of this Ordinance, or otherwise presents a threat to the public, the
Commission shall immediately notify the Oneida Business Committee. The Oneida Business
Committee may close any Gaming Operation temporarily or permanently at any time with or
without cause, at its sole discretion.

21.16. Games
21.16-1. Classll and Class |11 Games are hereby authorized by this Ordinance.
21.16-2. Gaming Procedures. Games operated under this Ordinance shalmust be consistent
with the Compact and any amendments thereto and the Internal Control Standards and Rules of
Play of the Gaming Operation.
21.16-3. Who May Not Play. It is the policy of the Tribe that particular Gaming Employees,
employees of the Gaming-Commission, particular governmental officials, and consultants who
directly advise the Commission or employees at Gaming Facilities regarding gaming related
activities may not participate in Gaming Activities conducted at Gaming Operations. At a
minimum, members of the Oneida Business Committee, the Commission, the gaming general
manager, assistant gaming general managers, directors of individual Games and assistant
directors of individual Games may not participate in any Gaming Activity within the
Reservation.
(@ The Oneida Business Committee may identify by resolution additional positions
restrictions on Gaming Activity conducted at Gaming Facilities. Such resolution
shallmust be on file with the Commission.
(b) The Commission and Senior Gaming Management shall each develop and maintain
their own standard operating procedure identifying other positions and any applicable
restrictions on Gaming Activity conducted at Gaming Facilities. The standard operating
procedure and the list of positions shaltmust be on file with the Commission.

21.17. Allocation of Gaming Funds
21.17-1. Net Gaming revenues may only be used for the following purposes:
(8 Tofund Tribal government operations, programs, or services.
(b) To provide for the general welfare of the Tribe and its members; provided that per
capita payments may only be made pursuant to an approved revenue allocation plan.
(c) To promote Tribal economic development.
(d) To contribute to charitable organizations.
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(e) Toassistinfunding operations of other local governments.

(f) To fund programs designed to provide education, referrals, and treatment of Gaming
addiction disorders.

(g0 Any other purpose as determined by the Oneida General Tribal Council or the
Oneida Business Committee which is not inconsistent with the Constitution of the Tribe
and IGRA.

21.18. Audits
21.18-1. Annual Audit. An annual audit of each Gaming Operation shaltmust be conducted by
an independent, certified public accounting firm according to generally accepted accounting
principles. Copies of the annua audit wimust be provided to the Oneida Business Committee,
the Oneida Audit Committee, the Commission, and the NIGC by said certified public accounting
firm.
(& All contracts for supplies, services, or concessions for the Gaming Operations in
excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) are subject to audit as prescribed in
this section. Contracts for legal services and accounting services are exempt from this
requirement.
21.18-2. Other Audits. All audits, other than the annual audit under section 21.18-1, shaltmust
be conducted pursuant to the Oneida Audit Law or any other applicable law of the Tribe, and
other audits authorized under the Compact.
21.18-3. Request for Audits. Any audit, except the annual audit which is mandated by IGRA,
may be authorized at any time by the Oneida General Tribal Council, the Oneida Business
Committee or the Oneida Audit Committee.

21.19. Enforcement and Penalties

21.19-1. No individua or entity may own or operate a Gaming Facility unless specifically
authorized to do so pursuant to this Ordinance.

21.19-2. Violations/Prosecutions. Violators of this Ordinance may be subject to disciplinary
action and civil and/or criminal prosecutions.

21.19-3. Remedies. The Oneida Business Committee may authorize commencement of an
action in any court of competent jurisdiction to recover losses, restitution, and forfeitures
resulting from violations of this Ordinance.

End.

Adopted GTC-7-05-04-A
Emergency AmendmentAmended BC-7-14-04-A
Amendment BC-10-06-04-D

Emergency AmendmentAmended BC-11-03-04-A

Permanent Adoption BC-3-23-05-C

Amended BC-9-23-09-D

Amended BC-06-25-14-BC (effective 11 01 2014)
Emergency Amended BC-10-08-14-C (effective 11 01 2014)
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
VI.B Adopt resolution titled Designating Representatives for the Wisconsin Tribal Conservation Advisory Council (WTCAC)
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: [ | Open [ | Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: [Resolutions

[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Adopt resolution Designating Representatives for the Wisconsin Tribal Conservation Advisory Council
(WTCACQ)

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1. 3.
2 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[ ] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  [Tehassi Hill, Council Member

Primary Requestor: Danelle Wilson, Legislative Assistant/Office of Tehassi Hill
Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2


hheuer
Typewritten Text
VI.B Adopt resolution titled Designating Representatives for the Wisconsin Tribal Conservation Advisory Council (WTCAC)

hheuer
Typewritten Text
Danelle Wilson, Legislative Assistant/Office of Tehassi Hill


Page 96 of 488

BC Resolution

Resolution Designating Representatives for the Wisconsin Tribal Conservation Advisory Council

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

(WTCAC)

the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin is a federally recognized Indian government and
a treaty tribe recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and

the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Tribe of Indians of
Wisconsin; and

the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article 1V, Section 1,
of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and

the Wisconsin Tribal Conservation Advisory Council (WTCAC) was established for the
purpose of assisting American Indian Tribes with environmental issues, as is more fully
set out in the WTCAC By-Laws, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by
this reference; and

the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin is a Member Tribe of the Wisconsin Tribal
Conservation Advisory Council; and

WTCAC By-Laws require each Member Tribe to designate up to two representatives to
serve on the Council of Representatives of the Association and allow Member Tribe’s to
designate an alternate, should neither representative be able to attend a meeting of the
Council of Representatives of the Association; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin designates
Tehassi Hill, Business Committee Council Member, and Patrick Pelky, Oneida Environmental, Health &
Safety Director, to serve as the Tribe’s Council Representatives and designates Jeff Mears, Oneida
Environmental Area Manager Director, to serve as the alternate representative to the Wisconsin Tribal
Conservation Advisory Council.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

VILA. Appoint John Brueninger to the Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2, General Information:
Session: Open [7] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: [New Business

[] Accept as Information only

Action - please describe:

Business Committee approval to appoint John Brueninger to the Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee
(ONVACQ).

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [T] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1{Memo 3]
2 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4, Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison: Cristina Danforth, Tribal Chairwoman

Primary Requestor: ; . ;
- "Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin
BUSINESS COMMITTEE

P.O. Box 365 * Oneida, WI 54155
Telephone: 920-869-4364 » Fax: 920-869-4040

MEMORANDUM

Oneida Business Committee

Chairwoman Tina Danforth 05@

August 26, 2015

Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee

UGWA DEMOLUM YATEHE
Because of the help of
this Oneida Chief in
cementin%a friendship
between the six nations
and the colony of
Pennsylvania, a new
nation, the United States
was made possible,

[V Va Ve VI Vi Vi Vo W Ve VI W Ve W Vo Vg Vo VA VA Ve VI VI VI Vo Vi V2 VI V7 W e Vo Vo VAV Ve Vo W W Vi V7o WA V7 Vo W70 Ve Ve W Vi W Wi V7 Vi Ve Ve Ve W VA VAV W VA VA W Ve VA VA YA Va Ve Vo VA VAVE VA VA Ve VA VA Vi

There was one (1) applicant for one (1) vacancy on the Oneida Nation Veterans
Affairs Committee (ONVAC). The applicant was John Brueninger.

Qualifications for ONVAC are:

a) The Veterans Affairs Committee will be made up of members of the Oneida
Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin who have served honorably on active duty in
. the Armed Forces of the United States of America.
b) Members shall have been inducted into, or voluntarily entered, active duty in
one of the service branches of the Armed Forces of the United States of
America and who did not receive a discharge from active duty with that
branch of the Armed Forces of the United States of America due to “less than
honorable conditions.”
¢) Must have been on active duty by serving one hundred eighty-one (181) days
or more of continuous active duty unless discharged early, with less than one
hundred eighty-one (181) days active duty, for a service connected disability.
d) Served as a member of the Selected Reserve and who has completed at least
six (6) years in the Reserves or National Guard, or who was discharged early
because of a service connected disability.
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e) Shall be a citizen in good standing in the Oneida Community.
- ) Terms of office shall be for a period of three (3) years.

The candidate is currently a member of ONVAC and this is his vacancy. He is not
currently serving on any other Boards, Committees, or Commissions.

The candidate is qualified to serve. In accordance with Article VI., Section 6-2(c)
of the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions, I
recommend John Brueninger be appointed to serve on the Oneida Nation Veterans

Affairs Committee.

Thank You.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
VIILA.O1. Accept Legislative Operating Committee meeting minutes of August 19, 2015

1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: [Standing Committees

[[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Accept August 19, 2015 LOC Meeting Minutes

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

Other:
1/Minutes 3.
2 4,

[[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[ ] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [ ] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison: Brandon Stevens, Council Member

Primary Requestor: Krystal John, Staff Attorney

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

The purpose of this request is to ask the OBC to accept the attached August 19, 2015 LOC meeting minutes. In
accordance with the LOC Bylaws, all minutes shall be submitted to the Tribal Secretary's Office within 30 calendar
days after approval by the LOC [See LOC Bylaws, 4-2(a)].

Action Requested:
Accept the LOC meeting minutes of August 19, 2015.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin

Legislative Reference Office Committee Members
P.O. Box 365 Brandon Stevens, Chairperson
Oneida, WI 54155 Tehassi Hill, Vice Chairperson
(920) 869-4376 Fawn Billie, Councilmember
(800) 236-2214 David P. Jordan, Councilmember
http://oneida-nsn.gov/LOC Jennifer Webster, Councilmember

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Business Committee Conference Room-2" Floor Norbert Hill Center
August 19, 2015 9:00 a.m.

PRESENT: Brandon Stevens, Tehassi Hill, David P. Jordan, Fawn Billie, Jennifer Webster
OTHERS PRESENT: Taniquelle Thurner, Candice Skenandore, Douglass Mclntyre, Fawn Cottrell,
Rhiannon Metoxen, Danelle Wilson, Evander Delgado.

l. Call To Order and Approval of the Agenda

Brandon Stevens called the August 19, 2015 Legislative Operating Committee meeting to order
at 9:00 a.m.

Motion by David P. Jordan to adopt the agenda; seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried
unanimously.

1. Minutes to be approved
1. August 5, 2015 LOC Meeting Minutes
Motion by David P. Jordan to approve the August 5, 2015 LOC meeting minutes; seconded
by Fawn Billie. Motion carried, with Jennifer Webster abstaining.

I1l.  Current Business
1. Administrative Procedures Act Emergency Extensions (01:18 - 04:02)
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the resolution extending the Administrative
Procedures Act Emergency Amendments and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for
consideration; seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Election Board Bylaws Amendments (04:10 - 05:50)
Motion by David P. Jordan to accept the sponsor’s report and defer the Election Board
Bylaws Amendments back to the sponsor until after the new Election Board officers are
sworn in; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

3. ONGO Amendments (05:55 - 09:33)
Motion by David P. Jordan to accept the public meeting comments regarding the ONGO
Amendments and defer this item to a work meeting; seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion
carried unanimously.

4. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions Amendments
(09:34 —10:55)

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of August 19, 2015
Page 1 of 3
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Motion by Jennifer Webster to defer the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees and Commissions Amendments to the Legislative Reference Office for
legislative analysis and to the Finance Department for a fiscal impact statement; seconded by
David P. Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

Rulemaking Law (10:56-35:16)

Motion by Fawn Billie to defer the Rulemaking Law, with the noted changes, to the
Legislative Reference Office for legislative analysis and to the Finance Department for a
fiscal impact statement; and to bring an update to the September 16, 2015 LOC meeting and
to bring back the legislative analysis within 60 days; seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion
carried unanimously.

Back Pay Policy Amendments (35:29 -38:27)
Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the memorandum regarding the status of the Back Pay
Policy Amendments as FY1; seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

Petition: Cornelius-4 Resolutions (Investigate 7 Gens, 7 Gens Return Money, Freedom
of Press, Impose Tax on OBC) (38:28 - 52:44)

Motion by David P. Jordan to accept the four statements of effect regarding the Petition:
Cornelius 4 Resolutions (Investigate 7 Gens, 7 Gens Return Money, Freedom of Press,
Impose Tax on OBC) with the noted changes and forward them to the Oneida Business
Committee for consideration; seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

Oneida Flag Code (52:53 - 58:12)

Motion by David P. Jordan to accept the legislative analysis, extend the financial impact
statement, and direct the Legislative Reference Office to bring the Oneida Flag Code back to
the next LOC meeting, to set a date for a Public Meeting, and to make the changes from
“Oneida Nation” back to “Oneida Indian Tribe of Wisconsin”; seconded by Fawn Billie.
Motion carried unanimously.

New Submissions

1. Compliance and Enforcement Law (58:14 — 1:02:16)
Motion by David P. Jordan to add the Compliance and Enforcement Law to the active files
list, noting that he will be the sponsor; seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried
unanimously.
2. Tribal Secured Transactions Law (01:02:18 —01:03:07)
Motion by David P. Jordan to add the Tribal Secured Transactions Law to the active files list
with himself as the sponsor; seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.
Additions

Administrative Updates
1. LOC Priority List Update (01:03:08 —01:09:18)

Motion by David P. Jordan to update the LOC Priority List to include the Compliance and
Enforcement Law and Tribal Secured Transactions Law to the LOC Priorities and forward
the LOC Priority List to an Oneida Business Committee work meeting; seconded by Jennifer
Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of August 19, 2015
Page 2 of 3
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David Jordan: I would like to make a note that | would like the Compliance and Enforcement
Law and the Tribal Secured Transactions Law to be set for 2017's budget; it would be a
budget change to add these two laws, for staffing; so 2017 is the target date.

VII. Executive Session

VIII. Recess/Adjourn

Motion by David P. Jordan to adjourn the August 18, 2015 Legislative Operating Committee
Meeting at 10:10 a.m.; seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of August 19, 2015
Page 3 of 3
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Oneida Business Commiftee Agenda Request

VIII.B. 01. Approve Finance Committee meeting minutes of August 31, 2015
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15 ‘

2, General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: !Minutes

[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

BC approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of August 31,2015

3. Supporting Materials
] Report [] Resolution [ Contract

Other:
1JFC Mtg Minutes of 08/31/15 3.
- 2JFCE-Poll approving 08/31/15 Minutes 4,

[1 Business Committee signature required

4, Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [ Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Trish King, Tribal Treasurer

Primary Requestor: Denise Vigue, Executive Assistant/Finance Committee

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

Oneida Business Committee approval is required to approve all Finance Committee meeting actions as the FC is
a standing committee of the OBC. -

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf,

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE * pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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ONEIDA FINANCE COMMITTEE

August 31, 2015 - 10:00 A.M.
Business Committee Executive Conference Room

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Members Present:

Patricia King, Treasurer/FC Chair Larry Barton, CFO/FC Vice-Chair
Jenny Webster, BC Council Member David Jordan, BC Council Member
Patrick Stensloff, Purchasing Director Chad Fuss, FC Alternate/Gaming AGM

Wesley Martin, Jr., Community Elder member

Others Present: Troy D. Parr, Dr. Ravi Vir, Debbie Danforth, Nicole Rommel, Shakira Rasmussen, Mari
Kriescher, Judith Nicholas, Constance Danforth, Tim Zellmer and Denise Vigue, FC Recording Secretary

I. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order by the FC Chair at 9:58 A.M.

II. Approval of Agenda: Motion by Larry Barton to approve the Aug. 31, 2015 Finance Committee
agenda with one ADD On under Capital Expenditures, one ADD On under the Community Fund and
one discussion under FYI regarding laptops. Seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

lll. Approval of Minutes:
1. August 21, 2015 (approved via FC E-Poll on August 24, 2015):
Motion by David Jordan to ratify the FC E-Poll action of Aug. 24, 2015 approving the Finance
Committee meeting minutes of Aug. 21, 2015. Seconded by Chad Fuss. Mation carried unanimously.
IV. Tabled Business: No tabled business
V. Capital Expenditures:

1. ADD ON: Miron Construction Amount: $242,751.00
Tim Skenandore, Gaming Facilities

There was no one present from Facilities to explain request. Chad Fuss was not familiar with request, but
his understanding was to reallocate FY15 Capital Expenditures for savings in FY16. He could not say if
there was an immediate need and would prefer to defer until budget passed.

Motion by Larry Barton to table the Miron Construction request from Facilities until after the FY16 Budget
is approved. Seconded by Wesley Martin, Jr. Motion carried unanimously.

VI. New Business:

1. FY16 Blanket PO -Ovations (Cash & CC) Amount: $2,000,000.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration

Chad Fuss explained the nature of the contract with Ovations including the cash and credit card, comps
for patrons and profit and loss. (Items 1-3) There is not an immediate need and items could be deferred
to next meeting in order to get more information to Trish and the rest of the BC for their better
understanding of this contract.

Motion by David Jordan to table New Business items #1- #3 until the next Finance Committee meeting.
Seconded by Wesley Martin, Jr. Motion carried unanimously.

2. FY16 Blanket PO -Ovations (Comps) Amount: $840,000.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration

- See motion in NB #1

3. FY16 Blanket PO -Ovations (P&L) Amount: $1,600,000.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration

- See motion in NB #1
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4. Revised Ovations Contract
Item was for backup information only to NB 1-3 and can be deleted

Motion by David Jordan to delete this item from the agenda. Seconded by Larry Barton. Motion
carried unanimously.

5. FY16 Blanket PO -Badger Liquor Amount: $340,590.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration

Motion by David Jordan to approve New Business items #5- #9 in the stated amounts. Seconded by
Larry Barton. Motion carried unanimously.

6. FY16 Blanket PO -Dean Distributing Amount: $552,328.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration
- See motion in NB #5

7. FY16 Blanket PO -General Beverage Amount: $428,590.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration
- See motion in NB #5

8. FY16 Blanket PO -Kay Beer Amount: $320,164.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration
- See motion in NB #5

9. FY16 Blanket PO -Triangle Distributing Amount: $552,328.
Chad Fuss, Gaming Administration
- See motion in NB #5

10. FY16 Blanket PO -Bally Technologies
Franklin Cornelius, Table Games

Motion by David Jordan to approve the FY16 Blanket Purchase Order for Bally Technologies for Table
Games equipment in the amount of $360,792.00. Seconded by Wesley Martin, Jr. Motion carried
unanimously.

11. Badger Liquor FY15 PO Increase
Judith Nicolas, Food & Beverages Manager

Judith was present to explain need for Purchase Order increase; this is for the Lodge to carry them
through the end of FY15; this is a sole source item. There was a discussion on whether all goods from
this vendor are under one Purchase Order or if separate and if all receive same discounts.

Motion by Larry Barton to approve the FY15 Purchase Order increase in the amount of $25,000.00.
Seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

12. Northeast Asphalt - Repaving Standing Stone Road
James Petitjean, Tribal Transportation
Troy Parr was present to discuss this request; this is part of the TTP budget and it includes work to

repave Standing Stone Road; it is part of an ongoing maintenance agreement; contract is through TTP
and is BIA grant funded,; it is sole source as they were only bidder to respond.

Motion by Wesley Martin, Jr. to approve the Northeast Asphalt agreement for the repaving of Standing
Stone Road in the amount of $96,883.35 noting funding is from BIA grant. Seconded by David Jordan.
Motion carried unanimously.

Jennifer Webster arrived at 10:12 A.M.
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13. OTIE - 2 year Blanket PO

Nicole Rommel, DOLM
Nicole was present to explain this 2 year contract; services are for their various rentals and dream homes
for repairs and finish construction such as doors, siding windows, and garage door installation, OTIE was
not the lowest bid but lowest bidder ruled out when they didn't provide additional information. There was
a lengthy discussion about the bidding and selection process and what is fair and equitable to vendors;
specifically if contract is not awarded to lowest bidder why would vendors continue to submit bids, need
is to be more proactive with bids for a fair and consistent process.

Motion by Larry Barton to approve this 2 year contract in the amount of $100,000. and on a go forward
basis that DOLM work with Purchasing all through the bid and selection process. Seconded by Wesley
Martin, Jr.

For: Larry Barton, Wesley Martin, Jr., Chad Fuss; Opposed: David Jordan, Patrick Stensloff, Jennifer
Webster. As there was a tie, FC Chairwoman King voted in favor of motion. Motion carried.

14. HVS Production -multi-year contract
Brenda Mendolla-Buckley, Gaming Marketing

Brenda and Mary Wasurick were present to discuss this 3 year contract; this is the Casino’s advertising
agency they utilize to assist with concept development, consulting, pre-production work and several other
areas to assist the Casino to provide quality marketing; there is an option to renew for another year at
end of contract period. There were questions about the conflict of interest mentioned by the Law review,
it has been taken care of; other questions surrounded Indian preference.

Motion by David Jordan to approve the HVS Production 3 year contract for Casino advertising services in
the amount of $635,650. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.
VII. Executive Session:

1. Comprehensive Health Division - FY16 Blanket PO’s
Dr. Ravi Vir & Debbie Danforth, Comp Health Medical & Operations Directors

Motion by David Jordan to go into Executive Session. Seconded by Chad Fuss. Motion carried
unanimously Time: 10:36 A.M.

Motion by David Jordan to come out of Executive Session. Seconded by Wesley Martin, Jr. Motion carried
unanimously. Time: 10:44 A.M.

Motion by Larry Barton to approve the contracts as presented today by the Comprehensive Health

Division for various health related services. Seconded by Wesley Martin, Jr. Motion carried unanimously.
VIIl. Community Fund:

1. Wrestling Tournament fees for son Amount: $500.

Motion by David Jordan to approve from the Community Fund items #1- #5 in the requested amounts.
Seconded by Larry Barton. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Youth Orchestra at St. Norbert’s College (SC) Amount: $320.
- See motion in CF #1
3. Youth Orchestra at St. Norbert’s College (AC) Amount: $320.

- See motion in CF #1

4., Bill Pilats Goalie School fees for son Amount: $500.
- See motion in CF #1

5. Josh Webster Memorial Team Tournament fees Amount; $400.
- See motion in CF #1
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6. Oneida Sportsmen Club -Fall Banquet

Motion by Larry Barton to approve from the Community Fund the Oneida Sportsmen Clubs Annual Fall
Banguet request for food expenses in the amount of $1,500. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. David Jordan
abstained. Motion carried.

7. Girls Volleyball Practice

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve from the Community Fund Six (6) cases of Coca-Cola products for
the Girls Volleyball Practice. Seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

8. Green Bay Elite Cheer class fees

Motion by David Jordan to approve from the Community Fund the Green Bay Elite Cheer class fee for the
daughter of the requestor in the amount of $500. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

9. Tough Mudder WI Run registration Amount: $226.41
Motion by David Jordan to approve from the Community Fund items #9 - #11 noting difference in
requested amounts. Seconded by Larry Barton. Motion carried unanimously.
10. Tough Mudder WI Run registration Amount: $226.41
- See motion in CF #9

11. Tough Mudder WI Run registration Amount: $195.41
- See motion in CF #9

12. International Iroquois Beadwork Conference fee

Motion by Wesley Martin, Jr. to approve from the Community Fund the International Iroquois Beadwork
Conference fee in the amount of $100. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.
13. Rilion Gracie Jujitsu class fees

Motion by David Jordan to approve from the Community Fund the Rilion Gracie Jujitsu class fee for the
daughter of the requestor in the amount of $500. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

14. STARZ Academy gym class fees

Motion by David Jordan to approve from the Community Fund the STARZ Academy Gymnastics class fee
for the daughter of the requestor in the amount of $500. Seconded by Wesley Martin, Jr. Motion carried
unanimously.

15. Green Bay Elite Cheer class fees

Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve from the Community Fund the Green Bay Elite Cheer class fees
for the daughter of the requestor in the amount of $500. Seconded by Larry Barton. Motion carried
unanimously.

16. Your New Fitness-Bode Boot Camp

Motion by David Jordan to approve from the Community Fund the Bode Boot Camp class fees in the
amount of $500. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

17. ADD ON: Green Bay Youth Hockey

Motion by Larry Barton to approve the Add On request from the Community Fund for the Green Bay Youth
Hockey registration fees for son of requestor in the amount of $440. Seconded by David Jordan. Chad
Fuss abstained. Motion carried.
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IX. Follow Up: No Follow Up items
X. FYl and /or Thank You:

Laptop Use

There was a discussion about laptop use, specifically for Wesley Martin, Jr. at the Finance Committee
meeting so he can follow along better the agenda items. He can see them in the e-mails but has to rely on
a printed copy at the meeting which isn’t practical. There were several suggestions that Mae in Audit may
have one for community use or there may be a surplus in MIS that could be utilized. Denise was asked to
follow up to ensure there is one available for Wesley for future meetings. Everyone still likes the agenda
handouts for the meetings, so that will continue.

XI.

Adjourn:

Before adjourning there was a discussion about only one more meeting for FY15 and there are a
number of FY16 requests still not received. It was agreed to change the time on 9/11/15 to begin at
8:00 A.M. and to end at 10:30 A.M. and the organization is notified of the change and the calendar also
is updated for the FC members.

Motion by David Jordan to adjourn. Seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.
Meeting ended at 11:14 A.M. The next Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday,
September 11, 2015 at rescheduled time of 8:00 A.M. to 10:30 A.M. in the BC-Executive Conference
Room.

Minutes taken and transcribed by:
Denise Vigue, Executive Assistant in Finance
& Finance Committee Recording Secretary

Finance Committee E-Poll Minutes Approval Date: September 1, 2015

Oneida Business Committee FC Minutes Approval Date:
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
VIII.D.01. Accept Quality of Life meeting minutes of June 11, 2015

1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session; Open - [] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: IStanding Committees

[J Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

To accept Quality of Life Committee meeting minutes from June 11,2015,

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

Other:

—_

JJune 11, 2015 Quality of Life minutes 3.

[] Business Committee signature required

4, Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [J Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison: Fawn Billie, Council Member

Primary Requestor: Fawn Cottrell, Executive Assistant/Office of Fawn Billie

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2



hheuer
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.01. Accept Quality of Life meeting minutes of June 11, 2015

hheuer
Typewritten Text
Fawn Cottrell, Executive Assistant/Office of Fawn Billie

hheuer
Typewritten Text


Page 113 of 488

Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

The Quality of Life is requesting the Business Committee to accept the June 11, 2015 meeting minutes.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Qol Committee

Chair-Fawn Billie
Vice Chair-Tehassi Hill
Members-Trish King, Jenny Webster, Lisa Summers
Quality of Life Meeting

8am-10am Thursday June 11", 2015

fo & & §o Go & o o o S

Minutes
Present: Trish King, Fawn Billie, Lisa Summers, Dawn Walchinski, Danelle Wilson, Fawn Cottrell, Joanie
Buckley, Jacob Metoxen, Tehassi Hill, Tina Ama, Jordyn Rasmussen & Daril Peters
Excused: Jennifer Webster

1. Approve Agenda
For the record Lisa Summers request that her name be added to the list of
committee members.

Motion by Lisa Summers {o approve agenda, seconded by Trish King. Motion
- carried unanimously.
2. Meeting Minutes
a. May 28, 2015 meeting minutes

Motion by Lisa Summers to approve May 28, 2015 meeting minutes, seconded
by Trish King. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Current Iltems
a. Charter update-Charter adopted 06-10-15

Motion by Lisa Summers to accept Charter as FY!, seconded by Trish King.
Motion carried unanimously.

b. Wellness Council update-Tina Ama at 9:00 am

With the adoption of the Wellness Resolution on 6-11-15, the Weliness Council has
a team working on a communication plan for the Wellness Resolution. The Weliness
Council is also working on flexible time policy for health & wellness activity for
employees. For clarification, Tina Ama menticned that the Food Policy the Wellness
Council has been working on may not necessarily need to be made a law. Food
Policy was created to encourage healthy foods for example through foods
purchased with tribal funds and healthy food options in vending machines in tribal
buildings. Joanie suggested Tina Ama work with Radisson to develop a healthy
menu for when Oneida hosts meetings for healthier options. Tina Ama had
guestions regarding who should be attending Quality of Life. Lisa Summers
referenced the charter (adopted 06-11-15) that read all Division Directors with
relevant agenda topics should be invited to attend. Next meeting will be in BC
conference room. Fawn Cotirell will reserve room and invite all Division Directors
with a request to provide an update on relevant agenda topics at our next meeting.
Tina will provide an update on the Well Being Index & Reporting template for logical
model at the next meeting.

Motion by Tehassi Hill to accept update from Tina Ama, seconded by Lisa Summers.
Motion carried unanimously.
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Members-Trish King, Jenny Webster, Lisa Summers
4. New Business
a. Agricultural Projects-Joanie Buckley

1.

Engaging Community in agriculture

Discussed farm to school programs and possibilities within our
community. Other tribes have shown interest in shaping their food
projects around our models. With the help of USDA grants, Joanie
continues to work on engaging the Oneida community in agriculture.
Community Gardens

Community Gardens could easily be done with resources we already
have. Ideal Initiative would be to have inventory of community gardens,
Graphic Land Information Services mapping gardens & end of year
Harvest party-possibly at Husking Bee event.

We have community gardens currently but more gardens across the
reservation are the goal. Lisa Summers suggested we add staff from
the school, health center and fitness center to next meeting to discuss
direction and policy that may align. Joanie suggested she can
inventory community gardens for the next Quality of Life meefing.

Motion by Trish King to accept the update, seconded by Lisa Summers.
Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Trish King to continue work on the community gardens and farm
to school bring back information on it & invite additional staff of school,
health, social services, planning & fithess center on their initiatives and
how we can collaborate together, seconded by Lisa Summers. Motion
carried unanimously.

3. Oneida Farmers Market

How can we elevate our current farmers market? The market starits
next week June 25, 2015. Joanie asked for Business Committee to
show encouragement to vendors who have chosen to participate in
different themes each week. Farmers Market staff have focused their
marketing efforts toward Seymour. Green Bay farmers market has
strong following and we cannot provide enocugh foot traffic to attract
larger farmer vendors.

Youth Leadership 7871

This initiative is geared toward groups and larger initiatives not
individuals. Susan White is meeting with David Pepperin to explore
structure needed for 7871. The by-laws alsc need to be reviewed and
reworked by Legal. Joanie still needs to set up for donors and training
is needed on the system. The project also needs additional content
about project for website. All work needs to be done before fundraising
can start. Lisa Summers suggested contacting Godfrey & Kahn for pro-
bono work regarding legal aspect. Lisa Summers will get Godfrey &
Kahn contact information fo Joanie Buckley. Next steps include the
Donor Perfect Program trained on and collateral marketing materials.

Motion by Lisa Summers to accept the youth leadership 7871 update by
Joanie Buckley, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion carried unanimously.
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Qol Committee

Chair-Fawn Billie

Vice Chair-Tehassi Hill

Members-Trish King, Jenny Webster, Lisa Summers

5. Upcoming Reports
a. Quarterly Report
i. Review Quarter 2 report due June 16, 2015 to Business Committee

Discussion was a request to send out final quarterly report prior to
submitting to BC agenda.

Motion by Trish King to accept quarterly report as FYI, seconded by Lisa
Summers. Motion carried unanimously.

6. Adjourn
Motion by Lisa Summers to adjourn at 9:30am, seconded by Tehassi Hill. Motion
carried unanimously.

-Upcoming Meetings:
Wellness Council Thursday June 18, 2015 at 3:30-4:30pm at Oneida Community Health
Center main conference room
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
IX.A. Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Special GTC meeting to address six resolutions

1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 /15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |General Tribal Council

[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Accept Legal Opinion regarding the resolution from the Genskow Petition - Chain of Command.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

Other:
1/Opinion 3,
2./Cover Memo 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[ ] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  [Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

Primary Requestor:

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Memo

To: Oneida Business Committee
From: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary
Date: September 4, 2015

Re: Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Request Special GTC meeting to address six (6) resolutions
Completed Scheduling General Tribal Council Meetings

Fee to Trust Process

Elder Services Means Testing

Record Subcommittee Meetings

Governmental Services Chain of Command

Unclaimed Per Capita Payments

ook~ wnE

The purpose of this memorandum is to notify you the final legal analyses for the following resolution
is ready for acceptance by the Oneida Business Committee (OBC): 5 — Governmental Services Chain
of Command.

Background
The above referenced petition was submitted to the Tribal Secretary’s Office on February 10, 2015,

and verified by the Enrollment Department. The petition was submitted to the Oneida Business
Committee (OBC) agenda and accepted at the February 25, 2015, meeting.

Status
Analysis Original Extension # and | Date Accepted by the OBC
Due Date New Due Date
Legislative | May 13, 2015 n/a Resolutions 1-6 — April 22, 2015
Legal May 13, 2015 1. July 8, 2015 Resolution 2 — May 13, 2015
2. Aug. 26, 2015 Resolution 1 — June 24, 2015
3. Sept. 9, 2015 Resolutions 3,4, & 6 — Aug. 26, 2015
Financial | May 13, 2015 1. July 8, 2015
2. Aug. 26, 2015
3. Sept. 23, 2015
Requested OBC Action
1. Accept the legal analysis for the following resolutions: 5 — Governmental Services Chain of

Command
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JO ANNE HOUSE, PHD ONEIDA LAW OFFICE
CHIEF COUNSEL N7210 SEMINARY ROAD PATRICIA M., STEVENS GARVEY
JAMES R. BITTORF P.0O. BOX 109 CAROYL J. LONG

KELLY M. MCANDREWS
MICHELLE L. MAYS

DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL

REBEGCA M. WeBston bub ONEIDA, WISCONSIN 54155

SENIOR STAFF ATTORNEY
- (920) 869-4327 FAX (920) 869-4065
MEMORANDUM
TO: Oneida Business Committee

FROM: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel .

DATE: September 2, 2015

SUBJECT: Genskow — Petition — Chain of Command

You have requested a legal review regarding a petition submitted by Madelyn Genskow. The
petition contains six resolutions. The legal opinion will review only the resolution identified
above. The Enrollment Department has verified a sufficient number of signatures on the petition.

The resolution contains three Whereas sections.

e “.._.in December of 2014 after all the departments of the Tribe had turned in their budgets with
the 12% cuts required by the Tribal Treasurer, there was $800,000 remaining to be spent. The
Treasurer sent out a memo informing the departments could request more funds by a certain
date.”

e “..because of the Oneida Chain of Command System required that the request for more funds
needed to go from the Elder Director to the Area Manager then to the Governmental Services
Division Director then to the Oneida Business Committee.”

e “...the system is not set up to make sure that request sent up the Chain of Command are
documented that the request was received at the next stop and forward on to the next stop of the
chain of command until it reaches the Business Committee.”

Whereas sections are intended to provide legislative history and background regarding why the
resolution is brought forward. Whereas sections are not enforceable.

The resolution contains seven Resolve sections. ,

e “...when important items are sent from a Program Director to the next stop on the chain of
command it must be emailed by 9:00 a.m. An email that it has been received must be sent to the
sender in two hours and sit must go at each stop including the Business Committee.”

e ...the person in charge must see to it, that if they are ill or on vacation a line of responsibility in
their office must be established to make the return email to the sender which confirms that the
email was received.”

e .. .if the item that was emailed is time sensitive. A line of responsibility must be established in
each office of the person in charge so that if the person in charge is not there everything does not
stop.”

e “...the Governmental Services Division Directions office which is located in a cottage behind the

Fitness Center and where only three people work must be moved to the Little Bear or Norbert
Hill Center or Skenandoah Complex where Tribal members can find it if they have concerns
about issues in Governmental Services Division Director.
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Genskow — Petition — Chain of Command

Page 2 of 7
e “...the Governmental Services Division Director must return phone call to Tribal members who
have issues about Governmental Services.”
e “...the Governmental Division Services must see to it that there is someone to handle issues if
each one of the three of them who are at that cottage are ill.
o “...if this ever happens again, the chain of command system must be stopped.”

To draft this opinion, I have reviewed prior actions of the General Tribal Council, Tribal law,
policies and procedures, and various other resources. This opinion is broken into sections to
address the issues raised in the resolution — chain-of-command and Fiscal Year 2015 Budget
actions.

Supervision and Reporting or Chain-of-Command and Governmental Services Division

Managing employees and programs requires a method of reporting and supervision. The Tribal
government utilizes a nested hierarchy of employees-supervisors, programs-areas-divisions to
organize and manage individuals and activities." This is a reference to a chain-of-command
. system to manage approximately 2700 employees, 500 programs or services, and three
enterprises (gaming, farms, and retail). This nested hierarchy arranges activities generally as
identified in the following examples.

o Employees managed by supervisors, who are collected and managed by Area Managers, who are

then collected and managed by a Division Director.

e Retail location and subject matter areas.

e Gaming subject matter areas — i.e. finance, table games, slots, player management.
The Governmental Services Division is organized as identified in the first bullet above. The
structure of the Governmental Services Division is set forth in the attachment.

The Governmental Services Division has adopted two Standard Operating Procedures to address
the chain-of-command and chain-of-communication. The purpose of these two procedures are to
“help in avoiding the circumvention of staff who are responsible for providing direct oversight
and promotes good communication/respect for one another.” Chain of Command SOP, Sec. 1.
The procedures contain the following direction.
3.1. The staff understands that in order to properly accomplish the work we need achieved, we
must always adhere to the Chain of Command. This promotes respect for one another, and
eliminates conflicts and time wasted in terms of having only the necessary people involved.

The Governmental Services Division has outlined an organizational hierarchy and employees are
notified of this hierarchy through job descriptions and notices by supervisors, Area Managers
and the Division Director. Issues which are not addressed by those closest to the program
decision-making can be brought to the next level to be addressed until reaching the Division
Director. Each level is directed to verify that the issue has been correctly processed through this
chain-of-command. ‘

In order to support this chain-of-command, the Governmental Services Division has also adopted
a Chain-of-Communication Standard Operating Procedures. The purpose of these procedures is

! See general references to this in the Tribe’s Personnel Policies and Procedures in regards to grievances and
complaints for example.
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Genskow — Petition — Chain of Command
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to, “...outline the chain-of-communication that all Governmental Service employees shall follow
with urgent or critical work-related written communication may concern GSD management,
Using the chain-of-communication provides consistent and timely notice to GSD management of
important matters.” Sec. 1.

In addition, the Governmental Services Division Director has identified there are expectations
within the administration offices. The Governmental Services Division Director has identified
that the administration offices is staffed during normal working hours, barring unforeseen
circumstances. When that occurs, voicemail, mobile phones, and e-mail are available as forms of
communication and which are encouraged to be utilized in the event staff is in meetings or
unavailable. Finally, the Governmental Services Division Director has identified that, consistent
with the division’s Standard Operating Procedures, he forwards questions and complaints to the
appropriate level of the chain-of-command to address.

Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Actions:

The Fiscal Year 2015 budget was developed during a transition year from one Oneida Business
Committee to another. The current Treasurer, upon receipt of updated information and the
Oneida Business Committee members having been newly elected, determined that review of the
budget was needed. This resulted in the budget being revised by the Tribal organization
resubmitting budget requests. The final draft budget proposal resulted in unbudgeted projected
revenues in the amount of $703,448.00.

A December 16, 2014, memo from the Treasurer outlined a process by which programs and
operations of the Tribe could request this finding be reallocated back to the program or
operational unit. The request must follow three directions.
1. The request for funds must be relative to the 12% budget cut for your specific area.
2. Complete the attached spreadsheet and include an executive summary as support for your
application. ‘
3. Submit your applications no later than 4:30 p.m. on December 29, 2014, to the Treasurer’s office.
Late applications will not be considered.

This memo from the Treasurer was forwarded to the appropriate management in the
Governmental Services Division on December 18, 2014. The instructions identified that if the
program was interested they should notify the Governmental Services Division administration so
the request could be coordinated with other division requests.

The Elder Services Program was aware of the memo, the application requirements and the
deadlines for submitting an application. The initial request from the Elder Services Program was
forwarded to the Program Manager, the Area Manager, and the Division Director, among other
staff later that same day. A review of the request identified that it was missing one of the
elements required in the Treasurer’s memo and was returned to the program to put together a
complete request. The program personnel were also notified in that same e-mail to submit the
request directly to the Treasurer and to copy the Treasurer’s Legislative Aide. The request was
not sent to the Treasurer or the Treasurer’s Legislative Aide.
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The Fiscal Year 2015 budget was presented to the General Tribal Council and adopted. On the
floor of that meeting was discussion of the funding for Elder Services and the request for excess
funds that did not get filed before the deadline. The members rejected a motion regarding Elderly
Services and the Oneida Nation Commission on Aging. In addition, members did specifically
identify that failure to submit a timely request did not require action by the General Tribal
Council to increase funding for that program.

An investigation was made by the Division Director and appropriate action was taken to assure
that it would not occur again in the future. Specific discussion regarding individual employees
and disciplinary action would be in violation of the confidentiality requirements of the Oneida
Personnel Policies and Procedures. Under those rules, employment related decisions are
delegated to be managed through the organizational processes and the Oneida Personnel Policies
and Procedure, the Human Resources Department and the Personnel Commission. Discussion of
individuals on the floor would be in violation of the General Tribal Council‘s delegation of
authority and responsibility to various entities of the Tribe. See also Removal Law, historical
actions leading up to resolution # GTC-2-25-82.

.Analysis

NOTE: This resolution identifies information and actions related to the Governmental Services
Division. It is presumed that this resolution will have an affect ONLY on the Governmental
Services Division and no other division or organizational group of the Tribe. Research
regarding a broad impact of this resolution has not been conducted in regards to development of
this opinion and as a result this opinion is limited only to the Governmental Services Division.

The proposed resolution contains three Whereas sections and seven Resolve sections. The
Whereas sections do not accurately reflect the steps taken within the Governmental Services
Division regarding the “$800,000 remaining to be spent” in the development of the Fiscal Year
2015 budget. Based on the information from the Governmental Services Division Director there
is a Chain-of~-Communication Standard Operating Procedure on what to do in the event of an
emergency or urgent communication need. In addition, in this particular instance, it appears that
personnel were given instructions to submit the application directly and this did not occur. If this
resolution is adopted the second and third Whereas sections should be deleted as they do not
accurately reflect the current chain-of-command/communication system in place in the
Governmental Services Division. In addition, the correct amount of funding that was subject to
reallocation was $703, 448.00, which should be corrected in the first Whereas.

The Resolve sections of this resolution identify three different sets of actions — directing the
process by which communication shall be conducted, out of office delegations, and where the
administrative offices of Governmental Services Division will be located. In addition, if any of
the above are not followed, then the resolution proposes that the chain-of-command system is
“stopped.”

Communication
The resolution proposes that “important” communication be sent by 9:00 a.m. and that a return
receipt from the recipient be sent within two hours. Supervisors and others in the chain-of-



Page 123 of 488

Genskow — Petition — Chain of Command
Page 5 of 7

command must have the Outlook out-of-office rule turned on when they are ill or on vacation.
And finally that the Governmental Services Division Director must return phone calls.

The actions requested in the resolution are administrative actions regarding day-to-day functions
of an office. The suggested administrative processes do not take into account the existing
protocols the Governmental Services Division already has in place and which appear to be
working appropriately. The division has a clear communication protocol for emergency actions
which allow for exceptions to the chain-of-command. In addition, the division has a hierarchy of
responsiveness which relies on those closest to the issue to respond to contacts with clients and
directions for the contacting those next in the hierarchy. The purpose of this process is to resolve
the situation as quickly as possible by those closest to the knowledge and information regarding
the activity.

The Tribe has, in every office, a phone, voicemail and e-mail system for contacting and/or
leaving messages. Further, some employees are issued mobile phones for work use to respond to
questions or receive voicemails. Finally, voicemail and e-mail are accessible from any mobile
phone or internet connection. ’

The resolution proposes that emergency actions must be noticed before 9:00 a.m. and a return
receipt presented. This is presuming this is an e-mail, phone call, voicemail, or paper memo sent.
However, emergencies occur at all times of the normal operating hours of the Tribe, as well as
after normal operating hours. The programs within the Governmental Services Division are set
up to address these emergencies in an appropriate fashion which this directive may interfere with
causing disruption in service provision. :

It is recommended that these Resolves (numbered 1, 2, and 5) not be adopted. These directives
are a daily function of the Governmental Services Division and do not take into account the daily
actions of the personnel in the various programs within that division. Further, the directives do
not allow for the various emergency, urgent, or programming responsibilities and technical
knowledge of the personnel, their supervisors, and area managers. If there is a concern regarding
the communication within the Governmental Services Division it would be more appropriate to
request the Oneida Business Committee to review the processes within that division and direct
that appropriate changes be made.

Out of Office Delegations

The resolution proposes that an e-mail response regarding vacation or personal time is sent, that
a “line of responsibility” is established in the event of the absence of a “person in charge” and
that “someone” must be available to “handle issues” if the employees in the administrative
offices are all ill. ‘

As identified above, the Governmental Services Division has adopted a Standard Operating
Procedure identifying a chain-of-command and communication. In addition to the above, every
job description clearly identifies supervisors setting up a hierarchy of responsibility. The
question is whether the resolution is requesting these actions on behalf of the employees or the
clients. Such out-of-office notices will not be sent to clients unless they contact employees. At
which point, the client will receive the information from the voicemail message or the e-mail
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message set up when the employee is out of the office. If the client comes into the office, they
would be referred to another employee or requested to leave a message for the absent employee.
However, this would not normally be the case if the employee simply stepped away from his or
her desk. They would simply be requested to leave a voicemail message. Those brief times when
an employee is in a meeting, stepped out of the office, or on another phone call would not be
addressed by these proposed Resolves. As a result, it may appear that an employee did not leave
the required notices but would still be unavailable.

The Governmental Services Division is set up such that clients are routed to those who perform
the services. It appears that out-of-office messages are set up on both phones and e-mails. It can
therefore be presumed that if an employee does not answer, he or she is merely temporarily away
from their desk and a message should be left.

It is recommended that these Resolves (numbered 2. 3. And 6) not be adopted. The Resolves do
not accomplish any additional actions that are not already in place through job descriptions,
program organization within the Governmental Services Divisions or the existing Standard
Operating Procedures. However, adoption of the Resolves could result in unnecessary confusion
when addressing client and employment related issues arising within the division since the
expectation of the Division Director are that those with the expertise in the program should
handle programming activities.

Location of Governmental Services Division Offices

The resolution proposes that the Governmental Services Division administration offices must be
moved to one of three locations so “Tribal members can find it.” The locations are the Little Bear
Development Center, the Norbert Hill Center, or the Skenandoah Complex.

The Governmental Services Offices are located in the Cottages on the Social Services
Building/Family Fitness Center grounds. The entrance to the cottages is identified by signage on
Packerland Drive. Once in the parking lot, a map of the cottages is posted identifying each
program or office located in that area. A significant number of programs provided by the
Governmental Services Division are located in the Social Services Building, the Family Fitness
Center and the Cottages. The second primary area where Governmental Services programs are
located is on the Cultural Heritage grounds off Hillcrest Drive/County FF. Finally, there are
scattered programs such as the Oneida Library and recreation facilities located in various
housing subdivisions.

The three identified locations are likely to have space for the three positions in the Governmental
Services Division administration offices. In addition, all three locations have meeting space
available for program meetings. There is a cost to moving staff between buildings, for example -
Department of Public Works regarding equipment and furniture, MIS in reassigning phones and
printer sharing, as well as staff down-time during the move. However, these costs are not

_extraordinary. Further, it is not clear if moving the administrative offices will make the personnel
easier to locate as the three locations do not offer signage for individual programs within the
buildings as the current location does. Finally, there is no indication that the offices are currently
difficult to locate, or that members typically physically go to an office and not use the available
phone or e-mail systems or U.S. mail.
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Genskow — Petition — Chain of Command
Page 7 of 7

“Stopping” Chain-of-Command :

The final Resolve of this resolution directs that “if this ever happens again” that the
Governmental Services Division can no longer use the chain-of-command system. This Resolve
is not clear as to what “this” is referring to in regards to happening again. It is possible this refers
to not responding to phone calls, not submitting a budget request timely, not setting an out-of-
office notice, not sending a time sensitive e-mail before 9:00 a.m., not responding to an e-mail
with a receipt within two hours, or if all three employees in Governmental Services
Administration are simultaneously out of the office because of illness.

Given the supporting Whereas’ in the resolution and the content of the Resolves, this appears to
be a fairly harsh response to any potential misstep from the directions in the resolution.
Notwithstanding that, it is not clear what the alternatives are to the chain-of-command system
within the Tribe as a whole. As identified above, the Governmental Services Division is made up
of a significant number of programs and services that are grouped together under program
directors and area managers. These positions in turn report to the Division Director. If this
system is no longer available, this would result in approximately 300 employees reporting to the
Division Director comprising over 50 programs from libraries and museums, to arts, culture and
language, to transportation, to name a few. While it may be possible to manage such a diverse
array of services, it is likely to result in delays and confusion given the amount of time necessary
to devote to simple things such as time-keeping and budgeting (these activities are currently
managed within the nested set of programs or the chain-of-command). This would likely leave
little time available to monitor programming activities for the purposes of managing, improving
or making modifications to services to meet the needs of clients.

It is recommended that Resolve #7 not be adopted. The Resolve does not clearly identify when it
is applicable and may lead to greater confusion in responding to client concerns and/or needs.

Conclusion

There are three Whereas sections in the resolution, The first Whereas should more accurately
reflect $703,448.00 as the funds to be re-allocated back to programs and services. The second
two Whereas sections do not reflect the processes and procedures in the Governmental Services
Division nor the action which occurred in regards to the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget development.

This resolution proposes seven different directives. Most of those directives are daily activities
and processes already addressed by Standard Operating Procedures. In addition, one of the
Resolves may result in an unwieldy system that reduces the effectiveness of the services being
provided.

This resolution would require a simple majority vote to adopt.

If you have further questions, please contact me.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
IX.B. Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Special GTC meeting to address three resolutions
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |General Tribal Council

[]1 Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

1) Request from the Law and Finance Offices an update on the anticipated completion date of the analyses.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1] Memo from Secretary Lisa Summers 3.
2] Memo from Chief Counsel Jo Anne House 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: Lisa Liggins, Executive Assistant/Office of Lisa Summers

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.
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Memo

To: Oneida Business Committee
From: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary
Date: September 4, 2015

Re: Petitioner Madelyn Genskow: Request Special GTC meeting to address 3 resolutions
1) Oneida Business Committee Accountability
2) Repeal Judiciary Law
3) Open Records and Open Meetings Law

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide you the status of the analyses for the above referenced
petition.

Background

The above referenced petition was submitted to the Tribal Secretary’s Office on March 30, 2015, and
verified by the Enrollment Department. The petition was submitted to the Oneida Business
Committee (OBC) agenda and accepted at the April 8, 2015, meeting.

Status

Analysis Original Extension # and | Date Accepted by the OBC
Due Date New Due Date

Legislative | June 24, 2015 n/a Resolutions 1-3 — June 24, 2015

Legal June 24, 2015 1. Sept. 9, 2015

Financial June 24, 2015 1. Sept. 9, 2015

The legal and financial analyses have not been submitted for acceptance.

It is important to note that there are multiple resolutions included in this single petition. Each
resolution requires its own research.

Reqguested OBC Action
1. Request from the Law and Finance Offices an update on the anticipated completion date of
the analyses.
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1o AE Hovst. PHD ONEIDA LAW OFFICE

CHIEF COUNSEL N7210 SEMINARY ROAD PATRICIA M. STEVENS GARVEY
JAMES R. BITTORF P.O.BOX 109 CAROYL J. LONG

DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL KELLY M. MCANDREWS
REBECCA M. WEBSTER, PHD ONEIDA, WISCONSIN 54155

MICHELLE L. MAYS
SENIOR STAFF ATTORNEY

(920) 869-4327 FAX (920) 869-4065

MEMORANDUM

TO: Oneida Business Committee
FROM: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel
DATE: September 4, 2015

SUBJECT: Genskow Petition — 3 Resolutions - Update

I have begun the analysis on the first of three resolutions. | anticipate that it will take
approximately 60 days to complete all three analyses.

I would request an extension of 60 days to complete these opinions.



Page 129 of 488

Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
IX.C. Petitioner Frank Cornelius: Special GTC meeting to address four resolutions
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |General Tribal Council

[]1 Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

1) Request from the Law Office an update on the anticipated completion date of the legal opinion requested
on August 17, 2015.

2) Request from the Law and Finance Offices an update on the anticipated completion date of the analyses.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
14 Memo from Secretary Lisa Summers 3]
2. Memo from Chief Counsel Jo Anne House 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: Lisa Liggins, Executive Assistant/Office of Lisa Summers

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.
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Memo

To: Oneida Business Committee
From: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary
Date: September 4, 2015

Re:  Petitioner Frank Cornelius: Special GTC meeting to address four resolutions
Investigation into Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Enforcing Salaries for Oneida Seven Generations Corporation
Freedom of Speech, Press and Assembly

Imposing a Tax on the Business Committee

Eal A N

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide you the status of the analyses for the above referenced
petition.

Background

The above referenced petition was submitted to the Tribal Secretary’s Office on April 28, 2015, and
verified by the Enrollment Department. The petition was submitted to the Oneida Business
Committee (OBC) agenda and accepted at the May 13, 2015, meeting.

Status
Analysis Original Extension # and Date Accepted by the OBC
Due Date New Due Date
Legislative | Sept. 9, 2015 n/a Resolutions 1-3 — Aug. 26, 2015
Legal Sept. 9, 2015 n/a
Financial | Sept. 9, 2015 n/a

The legal and financial analyses have not been submitted for acceptance.

At the special OBC meeting of August 17, 2015, the Law Office was requested to provide a legal
opinion about what occurs when a petition is submitted which does not have all the appropriate
documentation. To date, this opinion has not been received.

Reguested OBC Action
1. Request from the Law Office an update on the anticipated completion date of the legal
opinion requested on August 17, 2015.

2. Request from the Law and Finance Offices an update on the anticipated completion date of
the analyses.
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1o AE Hovst. PHD ONEIDA LAW OFFICE

CHIEF COUNSEL N7210 SEMINARY ROAD PATRICIA M. STEVENS GARVEY
JAMES R. BITTORF P.O.BOX 109 CAROYL J. LONG

DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL ONE'DA, WISCONSIN 54155 KELLY M. MCANDREWS

REBECCA M. WEBSTER, PHD
SENIOR STAFF ATTORNEY

MICHELLE L. MAYS

(920) 869-4327 FAX (920) 869-4065

MEMORANDUM

TO: Oneida Business Committee
FROM: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel
DATE: September 4, 2015

SUBJECT: Cornelius Petition — 4 Resolutions - Update

The analysis of this petition and the resolutions will begin after the analysis of the Genskow
Petition — 3 Resolutions has been completed. | have requested research from Records

Management as well as begun developing necessary transcripts from meetings in order to be
prepared to draft the legal analysis when the Genskow Petition — 3 Resolutions is completed.

If you have further questions, please contact me.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
IX. D. Petitioner John E. Powless Jr: Per capita payments

1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header:

General Tribal Council

[]1 Accept as Information only

Action - please describe:

1) Provide an additional 60 days for the Law and Finance Offices to submit the appropriate analyses.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1) Memo from Secretary Lisa Summers 3,
2| Memo from Chief Counsel Jo Anne House 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor:

Lisa Liggins, Executive Assistant/Office of Lisa Summers

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.
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Memo

To: Oneida Business Committee

From: Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Date:  September 4, 2015

Re: Petitioner John Powless: Per Capita Payments

Page 133 of 488

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide you the status of the analyses for the above referenced

petition.

Background

The above referenced petition was submitted to the Tribal Secretary’s Office on June 17, 2015, and
verified by the Enrollment Department. The petition was submitted to the OBC agenda for the June
24, 2015, meeting.

Status

Analysis Original Extension # and Date Accepted by the OBC
Due Date New Due Date

Legislative | Sept. 9, 2015 n/a August 17, 2015

Legal Sept. 9, 2015 n/a

Financial | Sept. 9, 2015 n/a

The legal and financial analyses have not been submitted for acceptance.

Requested OBC Action

1. Provide an additional 60 days for the Law and Finance Offices to submit the appropriate
analyses.
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1o AE Hovst. PHD ONEIDA LAW OFFICE

CHIEF COUNSEL N7210 SEMINARY ROAD PATRICIA M. STEVENS GARVEY
JAMES R. BITTORF P.O.BOX 109 CAROYL J. LONG

DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL KELLY M. MCANDREWS
REBECCA M. WEBSTER, PHD ONEIDA, WISCONSIN 54155

MICHELLE L. MAYS
SENIOR STAFF ATTORNEY

(920) 869-4327 FAX (920) 869-4065

MEMORANDUM

TO: Oneida Business Committee
FROM: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel
DATE: September 4, 2015

SUBJECT: Powless Petition — Per Capita - Update

The analysis of this petition and the resolutions will begin after the analyses of the Genskow
Petition — 3 Resolutions and the Cornelius Petition — 4 Resolutions has been completed. | have
requested research from our office files regarding per capita payments and prior General Tribal

Council action. I anticipate being able to begin this analysis as soon as the two prior petitions are
completed.

If you have further questions, please contact me.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
X.A. Accept Legislative Operating Committee update on Tribal Hearing Bodies/Administrative Court
1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 / 15

2, General Information:
Session: Open [] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

[Tribal Hearing Bodies/Administrative Court

Agenda Header: |Standing Committees J

[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Accept a verbal update from the LOC regarding the Business Committee's August 12, 2015 motion for certain
boards, committees and commissions to provide financial information by Friday, September 4, 2015,

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [ Contract

[] Other:
1) 3.
2 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[ Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Brandon Stevens, Council Member

Primary Requestor: Doug Mclntyre, Staff Attorney/Legislative Reference Office

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

At the request of the Legislative Operating Committee (LOC), the following action took place at the August 12,
2015 OBC meeting:

Motion by Jennifer Webster to ... direct the Oneida Child Protective Board, the Oneida Election Board, the
Oneida Environmental Resource Board, the Oneida L.and Commission, the Oneida Personnel Commission, the
Oneida License Commission1 and the Oneida Trust/Enroliment Committee to retrieve their financial expenses for
the last three (3) years (including, but not limited to, the amount of stipends received, training costs and other
expenses) and turn the information over to Oneida Business Committee to help in evaluating which entities
should retain their hearing body authority, seconded by David Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

Amendment to the main motion by Lisa Summers that the information be provided by Friday, September 4,
2015, seconded by Fawn Billie. Motion carried unanimously.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE * pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
XII.A. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity — LexisNexis ~Time Matters Maintenance contract # 2015-0837

1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: [ ] Open Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Proposal/Bid Info - prior to award

Agenda Header: |Exec - New Business

[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

LexisNexis-Time Matters Maintenance Contract - needs Business Committee approval for limited waiver of
sovereign immunity.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution Contract

[] Other:
1. 3.
2 4,

[[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  [Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

Primary Requestor:

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.
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Agreement
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Agreement

Juris® Perpetual Software
Agreement

Juris Software
Maintenance and
Technical Support
Agreement (November
2008)

Juris® Software
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Technical Support
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November 2008)

LexisNexis® Digital
Library Terms and
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LexisNexis® Matthew
Bender® Master
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LexisNexis® Matthew
Bender® print product

LexisNexis® Matthew
Bender® CD product

LexisNexis Total Practice
Advantage™

Professional Services
Agreement

Software Policies and
FAQ for Time Matters®,
Billing Matters® and
PCLaw®

Terms of Sale for
PCLaw®, Time Matters®
and Billing Matters®

Matters® and Billing Matters®

ANNUAL MAINTENANCE PLAN AGREEMENT

This Annual Maintenance Plan Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into and effective as of the
date the Order for Services is submitted to LexisNexis, a division of Reed Elsevier Inc. (“LexisNexis”)
by the undersigned person or entity accepting these terms and conditions (“Licensee”) upon
confirmation by LexisNexis (“Effective Date”). This Agreement provides for Maintenance and
Support Services of Covered Software currently licensed by LexisNexis to Licensee pursuant to an
applicable end user license agreement (“License Agreement”).

DEFINITIONS

"Covered Software" means the Software titles and numbers of licenses/users set forth on the Order
for Services.

"CPU" means a single computer, a central processing unit or logical partition (if a computer or server
has more than one processor or logical partition).

"Documentation" means a written guide in any form or media describing the use and operation of
Software, together with any related supporting documentation.

"Fix(es)" means a Workaround or Hot Fix and/or additional or replacement lines of Software code
provided by LexisNexis to remedy a Problem in the Software that caused it to not operate
substantially in accordance with its written specifications.

“Lapse” means an interruption in the continuous Maintenance and Support Services coverage (or
allowing an agreement for Maintenance and Support Services to expire without renewing).

“Major Release” means a major release for the Software which may contain new features,
enhancements and Problem corrections. A Major Release will generally include significant new
functionality, database schema, underlying technology or user interface changes. Major Releases are
designated by a change in the version number to the left of the decimal point.(e.g., “3.0”, to “4.0”).

“Minor Release” means a minor release for the Software which generally will contain fewer changes
than a Major Release but will generally include any Fixes and may contain some new features,
enhancements and Problem corrections. Minor Releases are designated by a change in the version
number to the right of the decimal point (e.g., “3.1”, to “3.2").

"Order for Services" means the form or telephonic request completed by or on behalf of Licensee
that sets forth the Covered Software including Software titles, number of users, and the annual
maintenance plan (“AMP”) which includes the Services and is a prerequisite for entering into this
Agreement.

"Problem" means Software that does not operate substantially in accordance with its written
specifications; or Documentation that is not correct.

“Service Pack” means a special release required to support specific regulatory changes (ex.,
mandated 1099 format changes) or to provide specific corrections to address Problems of a serious
nature or significant impact. A Service Pack will typically not introduce new features or
enhancements but may include a number of corrections.

"Services" or "Maintenance and Support Services" mean availability of Software Major Releases,
Minor Releases, Fixes, access to web-based training and product information, and technical support
to be provided Licensee pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or the repair or replacement of the
Software in the event it does not operate in accordance with its written specifications under the
limited warranty.

"Software" means the proprietary computer software programs in machine-readable form for use on
designated CPU(s). Software includes the original and all whole or partial copies and the following
materials: 1) machine-readable instructions and data, 2) components and releases, 3) audio-visual
content (such as images, text, recordings, or pictures), 4) related software materials, and 5) software
use documents or keys, and Documentation. Software does not include any version of Source Code
and any operating system software installed on the CPU.

"Source Code" means a high level program that is not machine-readable.

“Special Services” means services not within the scope of this agreement, but that may be performed
by LexisNexis for additional charge.

“Supported Version” means the current major version of the Software and the two immediately prior
Major Releases.

http://www.lexisnexis.com/terms/Annual-Maintenance-Plan-A greement.aspx
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LexisNexis

"System Administrator" means an employee or agent of Licensee with sufficient training and
experience to identify and isolate Problems and to provide sufficient information and assistance to
LexisNexis to be able to reproduce such Problems. The System Administrator or his/her delegate
shall be the single point of contact with LexisNexis when reporting Problems. LexisNexis may require
Licensee to appoint a new System Administrator if LexisNexis reasonably determines that the System
Administrator does not possess the training or experience necessary to perform the required
functions of the System Administrator or cannot communicate effectively with LexisNexis' support
personnel.

“Workaround” or “Hot Fix” means a manual process or a program executable or separate utility
program that addresses a specific Problem in the Software. Workarounds and Hot Fixes are intended
to provide an interim solution until it can be incorporated into the Software via a release of a Major
Release, Minor Release or Service Pack.

1. MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Provided Licensee timely pays the fees set forth on the attached Order for Services and a License
Agreement is in effect for a Supported Version of the Covered Software, the following Maintenance
and Support Services shall be available to Licensee:

Access to “Software Rel. " (Major Rel Minor Service Packs, and Workarounds)

Access to Telephone Support in accordance with Section 1.2 below

Access to self-service Anytime Training on the web located at http://lexisnexis.com/university

Access to the Software via mobile device in accordance with the terms and conditions of the License
Agreement and any mobility agreement with LexisNexis which may be in effect.

LexisNexis reserves the right to change or modify the Maintenance and Support Services at any time
and from time to time upon 30 days written notice to Licensee or posting of notice at the website
located at http://pm.lexisnexis.com/terms. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and
the License Agreement concerning which Services apply and how such Services will be provided, the
License Agreement shall control interpretation.

1.1 Delivery of Software Releases. Whenever LexisNexis makes Software Releases generally
available to its users who have purchased Services, LexisNexis will grant Licensee a copy of the new
release containing the updated/upgraded version of the Covered Software. Licensee’s use of all
such Software Releases is governed by the terms of the License Agreement entered into by Licensee
for the Software.

Except for the immediate purpose of data conversion from the previous version to the
updated/upgraded version of the Covered Software, after implementing the update/upgrade
Licensee may no longer continue to use the earlier version of the Software. All updates/upgrades are
provided to Licensee on a per copy exchange basis. Licensee agrees that by installing and
implementing an update/upgrade, Licensee’s right to use any previous version of the Covered
Software is terminated.

1.2 Access to Telephone Support. LexisNexis will make a member of its technical support staff
available by telephone to Licensee’s System Administrator to assist Licensee in the standard business
use of the Covered Software provided the Covered Software is a Supported Version. Licensee’s
System Administrator will be responsible for the daily maintenance of the Software per the
Documentation, and will provide the first line technical support of the Software to Licensee’s users.
Telephone Support includes assistance relating to any Fixes. Telephone Support shall be available
8:00 am — 8:00 pm EST/EDT Monday through Friday, excluding holidays recognized by LexisNexis.

2. USE GRANT FOR REMOTE ASSISTANCE

Licensee may permit any device to access and use Licensee’s authorized copy of the Software for the
sole purpose of providing Licensee with Services; provided, such access and use is in accordance with
this Agreement and the License Agreement.

Licensee agrees that LexisNexis may collect and use technical information gathered as part of the
Maintenance and Support Services provided to Licensee, if any, related to the Software. LexisNexis
may use this information to ensure proper authorization of all copies of the Software as well as to
improve LexisNexis' products or provide customized services or technologies to Licensee. LexisNexis
will not disclose this information in a form that personally identifies Licensee to any third parties.

3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

As used in this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means (a) proprietary or trade secret
information which is clearly labeled or designated in writing as confidential, proprietary or the like by
the disclosing party, and (b) information disclosed orally with a designation of such information as
secret, confidential or proprietary prior to or during the oral disclosure and a subsequent reduction
of such information to a writing labeled confidential, proprietary or the like and sent to the party to
whom the disclosure was made within 15 days after the oral disclosure. Information shall not be
considered Confidential Information to the extent that such information is: (w) already known to the
receiving party free of any restriction at the time it is obtained from the other party; (x) subsequently
learned from an independent third party free of any restriction and without breach of this
Agreement; (y) or becomes publicly available through no wrongful act of the receiving party; or (z)
required to be disclosed by applicable law.

LN and Licensee each agrees that it will not, during the term of this Agreement and for one year
thereafter, disclose to any other person or entity any Confidential Information received from the
other, except (a) to the extent necessary or desirable to perform under this Agreement, (b) in
connection with any pending action related to this Agreement, or (c) as required by a court of
competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 3, the parties may disclose
Confidential Information to their respective accountants, attorneys, and other similar professional
advisors as long as the entity to which Confidential Information is disclosed is subject to obligations

http://www.lexisnexis.com/terms/Annual-Maintenance-Plan-A greement.aspx
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LexisNexis

of confidentiality with the same effect as those specified in this Section 3.

4. MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES EXCLUSIONS

In accordance with the License Agreement and unless otherwise agreed to in writing by LexisNexis,

the Maintenance and Support Services and the charges associated with said Services do not cover or

include the following:
i.  Support of Software which has been modified or repaired other than by LexisNexis or by a
third party engaged by LexisNexis;
ii.  Making specification changes or performing Services connected with the relocation of

Software;

Modification or replacement of Software, repair of damage, or increase in service time

caused by failure to continually provide a suitable operational environment with all

facilities prescribed by the applicable documentation; including, but not limited to, the
failure to provide or the failure of adequate electrical power, temperature or humidity
control, or computing environment;

iv. Modification or replacement of Software, repair of damage, or increase in service time
caused by the use of the Software for other than the purposes for which it is authorized or
not in accordance with the Software operating guidelines;

v. Modification or replacement of Software, repair of damage, or increase in service time
caused by:

* accident

* natural or man-made disaster which shall include but not be limited to fire, water,
wind, and lightning

* transportation

* neglect or misuse

vi. Modification or replacement of Software, or increase in service time caused by the use of
the Software in combination with other products (e.g., Microsoft® SQL Server or SQL Server
Express or other LexisNexis products);

vii. Backing up or restoring programs and/or data;

viii. Keying, importing, converting or manipulation of data;

ix. On-site or formal classroom training on the operation and use of the Software;

x. Creation of any new non-standard, customer-defined reports;

xi. Initial installation of the Software and any subsequent releases; or

xii Use of the Software other than in accordance with system requirements

xiii. Support of Software which is not Covered Software.

In the sole discretion of LexisNexis, LexisNexis may perform any of the foregoing services on a billable
Special Service basis or as part of a separate professional services agreement. Licensee agrees that
any Services rendered pursuant to Licensee’s request for Services which is determined by LexisNexis
to have been caused by a problem set forth in the exclusions above will be considered a Special
Service.

5. OBLIGATIONS OF LICENSEE

Licensee’s rights to use a Software release commence upon installation. Therefore, Licensee agrees
that it shall download and complete the installation of all Software releases prior to the expiration of
the Term of this Agreement. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, Licensee shall
have no rights to install any Software releases even if such releases were downloaded during the
Term of this Agreement.

Licensee shall provide LexisNexis with access to Licensee’s facilities and equipment to permit
LexisNexis to perform its obligations hereunder. No charge shall be made for such access and
LexisNexis will provide prior notification when such access is required;

If applicable, Licensee shall maintain a proper network connection near any CPU used with the
Software being maintained by LexisNexis hereunder and provide access to a voice grade local
telephone;

Licensee shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining any required third party hardware and/or
software, including updates thereto;

Licensee’s System Administrator must be present in the event LexisNexis provides any on-site
Service. If applicable, Licensee agrees that if a representative is not present when LexisNexis'
technician arrives on site that no Service will be performed and Licensee will be charged at the
special service rate then in effect for such visit.

6. SOFTWARE UPDATES, UPGRADES, FIXES AND WORKAROUNDS

Licensee agrees that all updates and upgrades of the Covered Software, including all Fixes and
Workarounds furnished to Licensee, shall be deemed to be part of such Covered Software subject to
the terms and conditions of the License Agreement for the Software.

7. WARRANTY; LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY
7.1 Warranty. LexisNexis warrants to Licensee that Services hereunder will be performed in a

professional manner and in accordance with good usage and accepted practices as established in the
community in which such Services are performed. If such Services are not so performed and if
Licensee notifies LexisNexis within a fifteen (15) day period commencing on the date of completion
of the Services, LexisNexis will, at its sole and commercially reasonable discretion, consider
correcting any commercially reasonable problems and deficiencies.

THE FOREGOING WARRANTY IS EXCLUSIVE AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER EXPRESS AND IMPLIED
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

7.2 Limitation of Liability. IN NO EVENT WILL LEXISNEXIS, ITS PRODUCT DEVELOPERS OR

http://www.lexisnexis.com/terms/Annual-Maintenance-Plan-A greement.aspx
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SUPPLIERS HAVE ANY OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY (WHETHER IN TORT, CONTRACT, WARRANTY OR
OTHERWISE AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FAULT, NEGLIGENCE, PRODUCT LIABILITY, OR STRICT
LIABILITY), FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOST REVENUE, LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO DATA, PROFITS OR BUSINESS
INTERRUPTION LOSSES, SUSTAINED OR ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE PRODUCT,
DOCUMENTATION OR SERVICES, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.
LEXISNEXIS’ LIABILITY FOR ANY REASON AND UPON ANY CAUSE OF ACTION SHALL AT ALL TIMES AND
IN THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY PAID BY LICENSEE TO
LEXISNEXIS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. NO ACTION OR PROCEEDING AGAINST LEXISNEXIS MAY BE
COMMENCED MORE THAN ONE YEAR AFTER THE CLAIM ARISES EXCEPT FOR LEXISNEXIS CLAIMS
RELATING TO COLLECTION OF FEES DUE AND PAYABLE BY LICENSEE. THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE
FAILURE OF AN EXCLUSIVE REMEDY.

Some states/jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential
damages, so that portion of the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you.

8. SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS; WAIVER

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement with respect to the Maintenance and Support
Services specified in the Order for Services. If any provision of this Agreement is unlawful, void or
unenforceable, or conflicts with any provision of the License Agreement, then such provision of this
Agreement shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions of this Agreement and shall not
affect the validity and enforceability of such remaining provisions of this Agreement and the License
Agreement. None of the requirements of this Agreement shall be considered as waived by either
party unless the same is done in writing, and then only by persons executing this Agreement or other
duly authorized agents or representatives. The waiver by either party of a breach or a violation of
any provision of this Agreement shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any
subsequent breach or violation.

9. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect through the last day
of the same calendar month in the following calendar year (“Initial Term”). Licensee may renew this
Agreement for an additional period (a “Renewal Period”) provided Licensee is bound by an effective
License Agreement for use of the Software. The Initial Term and any Renewal Period(s) are
collectively referred to herein as the “Term”. Licensee’s renewal of this Agreement shall be subject
to payment of the Maintenance and Support Fees which may be adjusted in accordance with
LexisNexis’ then-current prices which may increase over the Maintenance and Support Fees
applicable during the Initial Term or any prior Renewal Period(s) and include additional charges
associated with reinstatement due to any Lapse.

10.  ASSIGNMENT

Neither party may assign (voluntarily, by operation of law, or otherwise) this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
provided, however, LexisNexis may assign this Agreement to any affiliate or successor on notice to
Licensee. As a condition to assignment, Licensee’s assignee must agree to assume and be bound by
all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

11. PAYMENTS

All Maintenance and Support Fees are due and payable upon Licensee’s acceptance of this
Agreement as set forth in Section 12 below and within thirty (30) days of the invoice date for any
Renewal Periods or any Special Services. In the event Licensee fails to make payment to LexisNexis
when due, LexisNexis reserves the right to cancel the Services without further notice to Licensee.
Upon cancellation of the Services, Licensee shall have no further right to receive any Services.

Payments provided for in this Agreement shall, when overdue, be subject to a late payment charge
calculated at a rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month until paid; provided, however, that
if the amount of such late payment charge exceeds the maximum permitted by law for such charge,
such charge shall be reduced to such maximum amount. Licensee shall be liable for all costs of
collection incurred by LexisNexis including without limitation collection agency fees, reasonable
attorney’s fees and court costs if Licensee fails to comply with the payment obligations set forth
herein.

12. AGREEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE; GOVERNING LAW; CANCELLATION

Licensee’s placement of an Order for Services and payment of the applicable fees constitutes
acceptance of this Agreement. This Agreement is not effective until it has been confirmed by
LexisNexis. This Agreement is limited to use of the Software in the United States of America
(“USA”). Maintenance and Support for Software used outside of the USA may be subject to different
terms and conditions. Any action, suit, or proceeding arising under or in connection with this
Agreement must be commenced by Licensee within one year after the claim or cause of action
arises. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of New York,
without regard to its conflicts of law provisions.

UPON RECEIPT OF ORDER CONFIRMATION FROM LEXISNEXIS VIA EMAIL OR INVOICE, OR, BY
CHECKING THE "I AGREE" BOX, LICENSEE HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (1) IT HAS READ AND
UNDERSTANDS THIS AGREEMENT; (2) IT IS AUTHORIZED TO ACCEPT THIS AGREEMENT; AND (3) IT
AGREES TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

At its sole option, LexisNexis may use a third party or Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. (a Reed
Elsevier/LexisNexis affiliate), as Company’s billing, payment and invoicing agent for selected products
and services offered by the LexisNexis division of Reed Elsevier Inc. and affiliated companies.

FOR ONLINE TRANSACTIONS ONLY: IF LICENSEE DOES NOT ACCEPT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
CONTAINED HEREIN, DO NOT CHECK THE "I AGREE" BOX AND THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT TAKE
EFFECT.

FOR OFFLINE TRANSACTIONS ONLY: AFTER PLACEMENT OF AN OFFLINE ORDER FOR SERVICES
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jhouse1
Rectangle


LexisNexis Page 5 of 5

LICENSEE MAY CANCEL THIS AGREEMENT BY SENDING A WRITTEN NOTICE OF CANCELLATION TO
LEXISNEXIS WHICH MUST BE RECEIVED BY LEXISNEXIS WITHIN TEN CALENDAR DAYS OF THE DATE
OF THE ORDER FOR SERVICES FOR SUCH CANCELLATION TO TAKE EFFECT. NOTICE OF
CANCELLATION SHALL BE SENT TO LEXISNEXIS VIA EMAIL SENT TO PMSALES@LEXISNEXIS.COM OR
VIA FACSIMILE TO THE ATTENTION OF PM SALES AT 1-800-643-1280.

Law Firms Corporate & Professional Risk Solutions Academic Government

Terms & Conditions  Privacy Policy Consumer Access Products Index  Site Map  Contact Us [+] Feedback

Copyright © 2015 LexisNexis. All rights reserved.
MYFASTTAG
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
XI1.B. Approve Oneida Personnel Commission one (1) vacancy post and for the term to be carried out until July 27,2016
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |[New Business

[[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Request to post for One (1) vacancy on the Oneida Personnel Commission due to a resignation and to finish
the term until 7/27/16.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1. 3.
2 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: Kathleen M. Metoxen, Executive Tribal Clerk
Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

On June 16, 2015 the Oneida Personnel Commission accepted the resignation of Dorothy Skenandore.

Excerpt from August 11, 2015, Oneida Personnel Commission Meeting

“MOTION: Rochelle A. Powless motioned to accept Dorothy A. Skenandore’s resignation
from the Oneida Personnel Commission, August 11,2015, and to post the
OPC position with the OBC as soon as possible.

SECOND: Julie Clark seconded the motion.

MOTION CARRIED”

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

XII.C. Approve Anna John Resident Centered Care Community Board one (1) vacancy post and for the term
to be carried out until November 12,2017

1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |[New Business

[[] Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Request to post for One (1) vacancy on the Anna John Resident Centered Care Community due to a
resignation and to finish the term until 11/12/17.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

[] Other:
1. 3.
2 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: Kathleen M. Metoxen, Executive Tribal Clerk

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

On August 18, 2015 the Anna John Resident Centered Care Community Board accepted the resignation of Jacob
Metoxen.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 / 1

2, General Information:
Session: Open [] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |New Business

[ Accept as Information only

Action - please describe:

Approval of waiver of sovereign immunity for EFl PrintSmith contract #2015-0823 for $3, 288.50.

3. Supporting Materials
[1 Report ¥ ] Resolution Contract

|Jemauay/uoliesidx3 jo 310N

[] Other: o
2 .
1J{Cover rgemo 3.
2, ] 4,
<
)
>
[] Business Cofnmittee signature required
&
=)

4, Budget Infornﬁtion

[}
[] Budgeted - ';_liribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Fund [1 Unbudgeted
wn

JuaBisaiby

5. Submission

1da SIS

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Joanie Buckley, Division Director/Internal Services

Primary Requestor:

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

This is a request for a waiver of sovereign immunity for EFI PrintSmith for remote training assistance on the
software and an upgrade to the PrintSmith software.

The software is for materials management for the Print Shop to track jobs as they pass through various areas. We
have been using PrintSmith for the last 11 years so we have an investment in the software. The training need is

for various staff from Customer Service to Administration and financial tracking.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materiais in a SINGLE *,pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2



Page 151 of 488

‘ONEIDA LAV OFFICE

CONFIDENTIAL; ATTORNEY/CLIENT WORK PRODUCT

TO: Joanie Buckley Use this nuniber on futiie correspondence:

Print Shop ‘
2015-0823
83-20-15 &YyH-

FROM: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel '

e Purchasing Department Use
DATE: August 19, 2015 E - Contract Approved
' Contract Not Approved
RE: EFI Printsmith ) (see attached explandtion)

Ifyou have any questions or comments regarding this review, please eall 869-4327.

The attached agreement, contract,' policy and/or guaranty has been reviewed by the Oneida Law
Office for legal content only. Please note the following:

v" The document is in appropriate legal form. (Execution is a management decision.)
v" Requires Business Committee approval prior to execution, pursuant to section 10 of the

Customer Support Agreement regarding choice of law, If this section is marked through
and initialed by the vendor no Business Committee approval is required.
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DIRECT ASSIST AND PRIORITY ASSIST

CUSTOMER SUPPORT AGREEMENT

PLEASE READ THIS DIRECT ASSIST AND PRIORITY ASSIST SUPPORT AGREEMENT (“SUPPORT
AGREEMENT”) CAREFULLY. This Support Agreement is intended to be supplementary to the End User License
Agreement ("License Agreement") between Electronics for Imaging, Inc., the licensor of your PrintSmith software, and
“YOU” the end user. The terms and conditions of the License Agreement and all amendments thereto are hereby
acknowledged and reaffirmed. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to
them in the License Agreement. THIS SUPPORT AGREEMENT IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU
AND ELECTRONICS FOR IMAGING, INC. (“EFI” OR “PRINTSMITH?”).

In consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual covenants contained herein, and intending to be legally

bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. Maintenance Services. During the Term (as
defined herein) of this Support Agreement and subject
to Licensee’s payment of the Maintenance Fee,
PrintSmith will furnish the following maintenance,
support and other services ("Services") for the
Licensed Software:

1.1. All updates, enhancements, upgrades or
releases of the Licensed Software and
related information and documentation
("Updates"); and

1.2. Reasonable access by telephone and/or
Internet to PrintSmith's technical staff (not
to exceed six hours per month) for
consultation in the use and operation of the
Licensed Software available Monday

- through Friday 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. MST.

2. Maintenance Fee. In consideration for the
Services, Licensee shall pay PrintSmith the fee set
forth on the attached letter ("Maintenance Fee"). The
Maintenance Fee shall be due and payable in quarterly
installments, (unless paying by check), in advance
commencing on the first day following the Initial
Term. In the event Licensee desires to pay by check,
Licensee agrees to pay the annual Maintenance Fee in
advance. PrintSmith shall have the right to change the
Maintenance Fee provided that PrintSmith may not
charge additional amounts to Licensee for periods paid
for by Licensee.

3. Term. The initial term ("Initial Term") of this
Agreement shall be for a period of one hundred eighty
(180) days after the initial purchase of the PrintSmith
software. After the Initial Term, this Support
Agreement shall automatically renew quarterly (or
annually in the event of a renewal by check) until
cancelled (each, a "Renewal Term" and together with
the Initial Term, the "Term"). Licensee may cancel
the Services upon written notice to PrintSmith at least
thirty (30) days prior to the due date for the next
Renewal Term Maintenance Fee payment. In no event
will PrintSmith be required to perform Services in the
event that Licensee does not make timely payment of
the Maintenance Fee. PrintSmith may terminate this
Agreement (i) immediately upon breach of this
Support Agreement or the License Agreement by
Licensee, which breach remains uncured fifteen (15)
days after notice from PrintSmith, or (ii) upon no less
than ninety (90) days prior written notice to Licensee.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this

Agreement shall automatically terminate upon
termination of the License Agreement.

4. License. All Services provided to Licensee
hereunder shall be deemed to be a part of the Licensed
Software as that expression is used in the License
Agreement, and all terms and conditions of the
License Agreement not inconsistent with the express
provisions of this Support Agreement shall be
applicable to such Services, including without
limitation those relating to use, copying, return of
materials, assignments, ownership, copyright, trade
secret and patent protection and applicable law.

5. Limited Warranty: PrintSmith warrants the media
on which the Licensed Software is provided to be free
from defects in materials and workmanship for 30
days after delivery. Defective media may be returned
for replacement without charge during the 30-day
warranty period unless the media has been damaged
by accident or abuse. PrintSmith warrants, for 30 days
after purchase, that the unaltered Licensed Software
will conform to the documentation and will be without
material defects. Due to the complex nature of
computer software, PrintSmith does not warrant that
the Licensed Software is completely error-free, will
operate without interruption, or is compatible with all
equipment and software installations. PrintSmith does
not warrant that: (a) operation of any of the Updates
shall be uninterrupted or error free, (b) that functions
contained in the Updates shall operate in combinations
which may be selected for use by Licensee or meet
Licensees requirements, or (c) that the Updates will
detect all viruses, Trojan horses, worms or other
software routines or hardware components designed to
permit unauthorized access to or to disable, erase or
otherwise harm any software, hardware or data.
PrintSmith’s entire liability and your exclusive remedy
shall be, at the option of PrintSmith, either (I) return of
the price paid or (II) repair or replacement of any
Update that does not meet the foregoing warranty,
when returned to PrintSmith. This limited warranty is
void if failure of the Update has resulted from
accident, abuse or misapplication. Any replacement
software will be warranted for the remainder of the
original warranty period or thirty (30) days, whichever
is longer.

PRINTSMITH MAKES NO OTHER

WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WITH
RESPECT TO THE LICENSED SOFTWARE, ITS




MERCHANTABILITY, OR ITS FITNESS FOR
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT
SHALL PRINTSMITH BE LIABLE FOR ANY
INDIRECT, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES OR LOST PROFITS ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATED TO THIS SUPPORT AGREEMENT
OR THE PERFORMANCE OR BREACH HEREOF,
EVEN TF PRINTSMITH HAS BEEN ADVISED OF
THE POSSIBILITY THEREOF. PRITNSMITH’S
LIABILITY TO YOU, IF ANY, SHALL IN NO
EVENT EXCEED THE TOTAL OF THE
MAINTENANCE FEES PAID TO PRINTSMITH
DURING THE YEAR PRECEDING THE CLAIM.
IN NO EVENT SHALL PRINTSMITH BE LIABLE
FOR ANY DAMAGES RESULTING FROM OR
RELATED ~ TO ANY FAILURE OF THE
SOFTWARE PRODUCTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO LOSS OF DATA, OR DELAY IN THE
DELIVERY OF PRINTSMITH OR IN THE
PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT OR. ANY RELATED
AGREEMENTS.

For personal, family, or household use of PrintSmith,
some jurisdictions states do not allow the exclusion or
limitation of incidental or consequential damages or
limitations on how long an implied warranty lasts, so
the above limitation or exclusion may not apply to
you. These warranties give you specific legal rights;
you may also have other rights, which vary by
jurisdiction from state to state.

6. U.S. Government Restricted Rights. The
Services are provided with RESTRICTED RIGHTS.
Use, duplication or disclosure by the Government is
subject to restrictions as set forth in subparagraph
(c)(1)(ii) of the Rights in Technical Data and
Computer Software clause at DFARS 252.227-7013 or
subparagraphs (c)(1) and (2) of the Commercial
Computer Software - - Restricted Rights at 48 CFR
52.227-19, as applicable.

7. ¥orce Majeure. PrintSmith shall not be liable for
its failure to perform any obligations-on account of
strikes, shortages, failure or acts of suppliers, riots,
insurrection, fires, flood, storm, explosions, acts of
God, war, military operations, acts of terrorism

whether actual or threatened, acts of a public enemy,"

epidemics, quarantines, governmental action, labor
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conditions, earthquakes, material shortages or any
cause which is similar to those enumerated or beyond
the reasonable control of PrintSmith.

8. Non-Assignment. Licensee shall have the right to
assign this Agreement to a successor by merger or a
purchaser of all or substantially all of its assets
relating to the business of which the use or sale of the
Licensed Software are a part if the successor agrees in

writing to be bound by this license. PrintSmith shall -

have the right to assign this Agreement, in whole or in
patt, and/or o subcontract its performance obligations
hereunder, at any time and from time to time in its sole
discretion. ’

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with
the’ License Agreement and any and all exhibits,
schedules and appendices attached hereto and thereto,
constitute the entire agreement between the parties and
supersede all prior oral or written representations,
agreements, promises, or other communications,
which pertain to the covered subject matter. This
Agreement may not be amended or modified except
by a written agreement signed by authorized
representatives of each party. i

10. Governing Law. This Agreement is made under
and shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. Any dispute
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement
shall be adjudicated exclusively in the state or federal
courts of the State of California, and all parties
consent to personal jurisdiction and venue therein.

11. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement
shall be held unenforceable or invalid, the remaining
parts shall remain in full force and effect.

12. Enforcement. The failure of either party in any
one or more instances to insist upon strict performance
of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment,
to any extent, of the right to assert or rely upon any
such terms or provisions on any future occasion. The
headings are for convenience only and do not affect
the meaning of this Agreement. Sections 5, 6, 7, 10,
11 and 12 shall survive any termination of this
Support Agreement.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

XIL.E. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity — Solar Deployment on Tribal Facilities Project contract # 2015-0692
1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:

Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |New Business

[]1 Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Approve contract for legal counsel to represent Tribe's interests during review and development of various
agreements linked to the Solar Deployment on Tribal Facilities project.

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution Contract

Other:
1]Legal Review of contract for legal counsel 3|Exhibit2:ClientService/BillingPolicies&Procedures
2[Letter from Nathan A. Karman 4,

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information

[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Tehassi Hill, BC Councilman

Primary Requestor: Michael Troge, Project Manager, Environmental Division / Energy Team

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor: Patrick Pelky, Environmental Division Director

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2


hheuer
Typewritten Text
XII.E. Approve Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity – Solar Deployment on Tribal Facilities Project contract # 2015-0692

hheuer
Typewritten Text

hheuer
Typewritten Text


Page 158 of 488

Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

The Oneida Nation of Wisconsin submitted a grant application to the The Department of Energy (DOE) to install
solar on several Tribal facilities. The Tribe was awarded $1 million in April. The DOE has recently released the
Grant Agreement that includes the approved resolution from the 8/26 BC meeting. The grant agreement is
currently going through Tribal review and will be presented at the 9/23 Business Committee meeting.

The 100% cash match will come from a project investor. The Tribe will commit some in-kind funding in the form
of staff wages for project management. The Request for Proposal for the contractor and project investor is
currently being drafted with input from Energy Team members. The agreements between the Tribe and the
project investor will include:
- a limited liability agreement to form a company that will manage the solar project, and
- a power purchase agreement that will set the terms for the purchase of solar power for a contract term of
about 8 years.

As part of the Project Team's due diligence efforts to assure that the project is a positive investment for the Tribe,
legal counsel has been selected by the Project Team. Ater Wynne LLP has extensive experience with energy
projects where Tribes partner with a project investor. Ater Wynne also works closely with Department of Energy
for legal training, grant administration, and project evaluation. The project team has arranged to use grant funds
to pay for legal services.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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ONEIDA LAW OFFICE

CONFIDENTIAL: ATTORNEY/CLIENT WORK PRODUCT

TO: Jo Anne House Use this number on future correspondence:
Law Office \(\
NN 2015-0692
FROM: James R. Bittorf, Deputy Chief Counsel* \
%j Purchasing Department Use
DATE: July 16, 2015 Contract Approved
Contract Not Approved
RE:  Ater Wynne LLP-Terms of Engagement (see attached explanation)

Ifyou have any questions or comments regarding this review, please call 869-4327.

The attached agreement, contract, policy and/or guaranty has been reviewed by the Oneida Law
Office for legal content only. Please note the following:

v" The document is in appropriate legal form. (Execution is a management decision.)

v' Attorney contract requires Business Committee approval prior to execution. In addition,
paragraph 6 of the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit 2 to the contract provides that
the law firm “will pursue appropriate and prudent collection remedies” in the event the
Nation’s account becomes delinquent, and the Nation agrees “to pay all fees and costs
(including attorneys fees)” which the law firm may incur. This language may be
interpreted as a waiver of sovereign immunity.
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Suite 900
1331 NW Lovejoy Street

ATE RWYNN E LLP Portland, OR 97209-3280

503-226-1191
Fax 503-226-0079

www.aterwynne.com

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Nathan A. Karman
Direct Dial: 503-226-8632
E-Mail: nak@aterwynne.com

July 14, 2015
Via E-Mail

Ms. Jo Anne House

Chief Counsd

Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin
P.O. Box 109

Oneida, WI 54155-0109

Re: Terms of Engagement
Dear Ms. House:

We are pleased you have retained Ater Wynne LLP (“Ater Wynne”) to act as counsel to the
Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin (“Oneida’) in connection with Solar Deployment Project outlined
in Oneida’s April 30, 2015 Request for Proposals (the “RFP’). Our representation, as set forth herein, is
only of Oneida. Unless expressly agreed, we are not undertaking representation of any related party, such
as any individual elected official, officer, director, or employee of Oneida, or any subsidiaries or affiliates
of Oneida.

Ater Wynne agrees to perform the work pursuant and subject to its May 21, 2015 “Detailed
Proposal” (the “Proposal”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. As such, Ater Wynne is
willing to perform the services specifically requested in the RFP and outlined in the Proposal on a time
and materials basis at the identified discounted rates, and our billings will not exceed $20,000 without
prior written approval from Oneida. The Proposa identifies, and we here again want to repeat, that Ater
Wynne made certain assumptions related to that $20,000 amount. In addition to the assumptions
identified in the Proposal, we also want to clarify that the Proposal does not contemplate any litigation or
other dispute resolution efforts, but is instead focused on advice and negotiation regarding specified deal
documents. We want to highlight these assumptions so that everyone clearly understands the anticipated
scope and shares the same expectations for the project. We are excited about this new relationship, and
believe this shared understanding of expectations is important to develop the trust essential to grow this
relationship.

Also, while | am licensed in Wisconsin, we understand that there might be some concerns relating
to the firm’s out-of-state location. | think you will find, as have other out-of-state tribal clients, that the
physical distance will not cause any issues with our performance and that we will consistently deliver
efficient and high quality legal work. That said, understanding that an in-person presence might prove
desirable, 1 am willing, if requested, to visit in-person at Ater Wynne's sole cost and expense. In
addition, should additional in-person meetings be required, | would never seek to bill for the time
traveled.

We understand that our work on this project will not start until Oneida has accepted the
Department of Energy (“DOE”) award for the project. If Oneida does not accept the award, we
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Ms. Jo Anne House
July 14, 2015
Page 2

understand that we will not receive any fees from Oneida. Assuming Oneida does accept the DOE award,
we will bill you for our services and costs advanced on a monthly basis. Our Client Service and Billing
Policies Procedures are attached hereto as Exhibit 2. Because we value this opportunity to provide legal
services, we are waiving our normal practice of requesting a retainer. If at any time you have gquestions
about any aspect of our invoices, please do not hesitate to ask me about it.
We look forward to working with you.
Very truly yours,

Nathan A. Karman

Cc: James Bittorf
Michadl Troge

Enclosure

READ AND AGREED TOBY:

ONEIDA TRIBE OF INDIANS OF WISCONSIN

Oneida Business Committee Officer Date
Oneida Business Committee Officer Date
Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel Date

2199310/2/NAK/000800-0026
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ATERWYNNELLP
1331 NW Loveoy St., Suite 900
Portland, OR 97209
Phone: (503) 226-1191

Primary Contact: Nathan Karman
Date: May 21, 2015
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1331 NW Lovejoy Street
Suite 900

ATERWYNNE 11r Portland, OR 97209-3280

503-226-1191

WWW .aterwynne.com

ATTORNLYS AT LAW

DETAILED PROPOSAL

1. Conflict Of Interest

Ater Wynne LLP (“Ater Wynne’) does not have any conflicts of interest which might
affect its ability to perform the services required by the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin
(the “Tribe"), and is unaware of any potentia conflicts of interest.

Ater Wynne previously performed work for the Oneida Enterprise Development
Authority (the “Authority”). Ater Wynne last performed work for the Authority in April of
2006, administratively closing the matter on April 23, 2007.

Ater Wynne currently serves as pro bono counsel to the Midwestern Tribal Energy
Resource Association (“MTERA”), an association which includes the Tribe.

2. Licenseto Practice
Ater Wynne attorney Nathan Karman is licensed to practice law in Wisconsin.
3. Firm Demographics

Ater Wynneis afull-service law firm which provides strategic legal counsel to regional,
national, and international businesses, organizations, and governments, including tribal
governments and enterprises. Of particular relevance to this proposal, Ater Wynne has special
expertise in energy development, including renewable energy project development, aswell asa
long history of serving Indian country. As of the date of this proposal, Ater Wynne consists of
37 attorneys and has atotal workforce of 70. Ater Wynne anticipates that this engagement
would be performed primarily by the Indian Law Practice Group, which consists of four
attorneys headquartered in Portland, Oregon. No disciplinary action has been taken against the
firm or shareholders, partners or associates of the firm during the past five (5) years and no such
action is pending.

4, Engagement Team

Full resumes of attorneysin the Indian Law Practice Group are attached to this proposal.
The following provides a brief summary of these attorneys.

a Nathan Karman (licensed in Wisconsin) — Nathan is an environmental, energy,
and Indian law attorney with substantial experiencein energy and Indian law
matters, including negotiating and implementing the exact type of project the
Tribe desires to pursue. Nathan, who would be the lead attorney for Ater Wynne
on this project, was born and raised in Wisconsin, and the mgjority of his family
still livesin the Green Bay area. As such, Nathan regularly returns to Wisconsin

PORTLAND SEATTLE 2226806/1/NAK/041091-0007
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Oneida Environmental, Health & Safety Division
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to visit family, with his next trip planned for July. Nathan isthe Treasurer of the
Oregon State Bar’ s Indian Law Section’ s Executive Committee.

b. David Connell — David, Chair of Ater Wynne's Business Department, focuses on
tax and business matters for avariety of clients, including nonprofit and other tax-
exempt organizations like tribes. David has special expertise in the federal tax
incentives and how tribes can monetize such incentives in connection with
renewable energy project development.

C. Douglas MacCourt — Doug, Chair of the firm’s Indian Law Practice Group and
Editor of Renewable Energy Development in Indian Country: A Handbook for
Tribes (January 2010), advises tribes and tribal businesses on avariety of
economic development activities, including energy development activities. Doug
isalso on Oregon State Bar’s Indian Law Section’ s Executive Committee.

d. John Schultz — For nearly 30 years, John, the founding co-chair of thefirm’s
Indian Law Practice Group, has advised tribal clients on federal and state
regulatory issues, including environmental issues, NEPA document preparation
and compliance, gaming regulation, cultural resources, water rights, forestry,
employment, fee-to-trust, and construction matters. John also served on an
advisory committee to the National Indian Gaming Commission regarding
environmental, public health and safety regulations for tribal casinos.

5. Expertise

a Engagements Similar to Engagement Described in the RFP

I Forest County Potawatomi Community Solar Project (Wisconsin) —
Served as in-house counsel to the Forest County Potawatomi Community
(“FCPC")* and assisted with the negotiation and pre-devel opment work
associated with FCPC’ s approximately 750 kW community solar PV
project. FCPC'’s solar project, from what | understand, effectively mirrors
the project the Tribe plansto pursue. In particular, as we understand it,
both projects appear to include the following: a Department of Energy —
Tribal Energy Program (“ TEP”) grant; a cost share commitment by an
investment team affiliated with SunVest Solar, Inc. (“SunVest”) (and
likely having the same tax advisors); and the tribe purchasing power
through a power purchase agreement (“PPA”) of fixed duration until the
investors recoup their net capital contribution.

! For clarity’s sake, please note that Ater Wynne did not represent FCPC, but Ater Wynne attorney, Nathan Karman,
provided these services while working in Milwaukee as the in-house energy and environmental attorney for FCPC.

2226806/1/NAK/041091-0007
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ii. Soboba Band of Luisefio Indians Solar Project (California) — Assist the
Soboba Band of Luisefio Indians (“ Soboba’) with the implementation of
its approximately 1 MW community solar PV project. Likethe Tribe's
proposed project and the FCPC project, the Soboba project involves a TEP
grant, aPPA, and tax partners. Ater Wynne has assisted with the
development of the request for proposals for the project, the identification
of possible structures to help Soboba monetize federa tax incentives, and
the negotiation with TEP to the tax structures' compliance with other
applicable federal regulations.

iii. To'Hajiilee Economic Development, Inc.’s Solar Project (New Mexico) —
Assist the To'Hgjiilee Economic Development, Inc. (“TEDI”) with the
development of an approximately 30 MW solar PV project, which also
received TEP funding. Ater Wynne's services included assistance with
the identification of and negotiation with a development partner, the
creation of a separate project entity to help TEDI monetize tax incentives,
and the negotiation with potential offtakers regarding PPA terms.

iv. Tohono O’ odham Nation Solar Project (Arizona) — Assist the Tohono
O’ odham Nation with the formation of a Section 17 Corporation to
finance, develop, and manage all energy projects for 3 million acres of
tribal trust and allotment lands. Drafted and completed |ease and
development negotiations for the first phase of a50 MW solar PV project
with investor owned utility on tribal trust lands formerly used for disposal
of mining waste, and advised client regarding necessary federal
approvals.

V. Turtle Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians Energy and Utility
Development (North Dakota) — Assist the Turtle Mountain Band of
Chippewa Indians (“TMBCI”) with the formation of an energy
development entity to pursue solar and wind devel opment projects,
including projects with third party tax investors. Also assist with the
formation of atribal utility authority.

b. Ater Wynne's Energy law, Indian law, and Tax Law Expertise

As demonstrated in the foregoing discussion of engagements as well asthe
resumes attached, Ater Wynne has a deep energy law and Indian law background, and
has significant experience in tribal energy development, including devel opments
involving tax equity financing. As aresult of this experience, the firm has gained a
national reputation for tribal energy issues, and is afrequent speaker at tribal energy
conferences, including those organized by the Department of Energy, the National
Renewable Energy Laboratory, universities (e.g., Seattle University), and other third
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party organizers (e.g., Native Nation Events, Law Seminars International).> Moreover, in
addition to the tribal solar projects discussed above, Ater Wynne has worked with tribes
on other energy projects (e.g., biomass, hydroelectric, transmission, waste-to-energy, and
wind) as well as with non-tribal developers and utilities pursuing both conventional and
renewable energy projects, including serving as pre-devel opment counsel to a devel oper
of autility scale (200+ MW) solar PV project.

C. | mplementation of Department of Enerqy Grants

While working for FCPC, Nathan Karman served as the Business Contact and/or
Technical Contact administering numerous Department of Energy (“DOE”) grants. In
particular, Nathan administered the following DOE grants: Recovery Act funding
utilized for the construction of the approximately $20M Anaerobic Digester and Biogas
Facility in Milwaukee (the “FCPC Digester”); TEP funding for the energy efficient
retrofits of the former Wundar Hall on FCPC’s Wgema Campus in Milwaukee; TEP
funding for energy efficiency investigation and feasibility study on the Carter Casino and
Hotel; and, until he returned to Ater Wynne, the FCPC community solar project in
Milwaukee and Forest counties. In addition, Ater Wynne is currently working with
Soboba and TEP personnel to ensure grant compliance in connection with the proposed
tax structures for Soboba' s TEP-funded project. Moreover, Ater Wynne has also worked
with other tribes and/or tribal enterprises, including TEDI and the Winnebago Tribe of
Nebraska, who have received TEP funding. Asaresult of this extensive experience on
DOE grants, Ater Wynne attorneys have devel oped strong rel ationships with TEP and
Office of Indian Energy personnel.

d. Ater Wynne' s Expertise Relating to the M onetization of Tax Incentives

All of the engagements listed above involved or will involve third party tax
investors and involve the use of structures necessary to enable the third parties to utilize
the Investment Tax Credit (“ITC") and depreciation benefits, thereby reducing the tribe’'s
overal project costs. Through these engagements, Ater Wynne has identified, evaluated,
and/or negotiated numerous proposed structures allowing the monetization of tax
incentives, and has a unique understanding of their respective advantages and
disadvantages. In addition, during Nathan Karman'’s tenure at FCPC, FCPC received an
IRS Private Letter Ruling (the “PLR”) alowing FCPC to passthe ITC directly to third
parties without an intermediate project company, and worked with FCPC to evaluate
possible uses of the PLR.

2 Some of the presentations are discussed on the attached resumes. A more complete list is available upon request.
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e Ater Wynne' s Expertise Relating to Combining Grants and Tax Credit Financing

Both the FCPC and Soboba projects discussed above involve, or will involve, the
combination of TEP Grants and third party tax financing/investment. Both projects have
involved and required negotiations with tax investors and with TEP to maximize the
value of tax incentives without jeopardizing grant funds. In short, no firm has more
direct or relevant experience with or understanding of the issues related to combining
TEP funds with federal tax incentives.

f. Ater Wynne' s Expertise Relating to the Neqgotiation of PPAS

All of the projects discussed above involve or will involve the negotiation of
PPAs. In addition, Ater Wynne has experience negotiating PPAs from the seller and the
buyer end of the project, and has the ability to identify and negotiate critical terms of
these agreements in a manner that maximizes the environmental, energy, and economic
interests of the Tribe.

. Ater Wynne's Expertise Relating to Wisconsin Utility Law, Utility
| nterconnection Documents, and Tariffs

While working at FCPC, Nathan Karman spent a significant amount of time
analyzing Wisconsin utility law, including how such law applied to tribes and distributed
generation projects (such as solar), and has kept up with recent rate restructuring issuesin
Wisconsin. Moreover, Mr. Karman negotiated the interconnection agreement and
ensured tariff compliance for the FCPC Digester, working closely with We Energies on
that project. Further, Mr. Karman discussed with We Energies personnel rate and tariff
issues relating to other proposed energy development projectsin Wisconsin, including
projects on trust and fee lands, as well as the possible use of individual contracts to lower
utility rates for FCPC.

6. Services Provided

As discussed above, Ater Wynne has specialized and unique experience in implementing
the exact project the Tribe desires to pursue. In addition to the entity formation, tax, grant, and
utility expertise discussed above, Ater Wynne also have significant experience negotiating other
contracts ancillary to energy project development, including operation and maintenance,
consulting (e.g., accounting), and land-related (e.g., lease or permit) agreements.

Moreover, attorneys Karman, MacCourt, and Schultz all have an environmental
compliance background, and are aware of an sensitive to the environmental issues and concerns
that may motivate and/or otherwise impact renewable energy projects. Attorney Connell, on the
other hand, began his career a a consulting firm and has extensive experience with financia
analysis of projects.
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Finally, Ater Wynne has experience working in-house with atribe and, as such, knows
how frustrating it can be to receive work from outside attorneys that is inaccessible or otherwise
useless. Ater Wynne attorneys understand the pace, needs, and demands of working within a
tribal government and make it a priority to efficiently deliver work product that isimmediately
useful and accessible for government officials, employees, or advisors.

7. Fees and Expenses
a Rates

To demonstrate our interest in supporting the Tribe on this important project, Ater Wynne
iswilling to perform the work requested in the Tribe' s April 30, 2015 Request for Proposals
(“RFP") at discounted hourly rates. In his engagement with MTERA, Nathan Karman agreed to
reduce his hourly rate for MTERA members from $310 to $270. As afurther demonstration of
interest and support, Nathan, who will be the primary attorney working on this matter, iswilling
to reduce his hourly rate to $250. In addition, Ater Wynne tax partner David Connell, who
would be the other attorney most likely to be involved in assisting the Tribe, has agreed to
discount his rate from $425 to $340 per hour. Other colleagues are similarly willing, if the need
arises, to perform the work requested in the RFP at the following discounted rates:

Standard Rate Proposed Discounted Rate
Douglas MacCourt $410 $320
John Schultz $375 $305
Associates’ From $220 to $280 From $150 to $210
Paralegals’ From $130 to $210 From $90 to $150

b. Budget

The overall hours necessary to perform the services required will vary based both on the
type of requests from the Tribe as well as the nature of the interactions with the contractor-
instaler, investors, and, if appropriate, the TEP. However, based on the understanding that (a)
the contractor-installer, investor, and financial consultant will be providing initial drafts of the
design-build (or engineer-procure-construct) contract, the project company documents, the PPA,
the consulting agreement, and the operation and maintenance agreement; (b) Ater Wynne will
not be required to provide formal tax opinions or obtain formal determinations from the Internal
Revenue Service; and (c) that the Tribe's personnel will be significantly involved in the business
aspects of the negotiation and discussions with the tax credit investors, Ater Wynne proposes to
perform the work specifically requested in the RFP on atime and materials basis and would not
exceed $20,000 without prior written approval of the Tribe. Additional detail regarding the
anticipated costs for the services required in the RFP are set forth below.

% Range based on seniority.
* Higher cost paralegals have law degrees.
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i Advice Concerning Formation of the Project LLC - $10,000

ii. PPA Negotiations - $2,750

iii. Construction Contract Negotiation - $2,500

V. Financial Consulting Agreement Negotiation - $500

V. Operation and Maintenance Agreement Negotiation - $500

Vi. Advice Concerning Renewable Energy Credits - $375

vii.  Other Related Areas (Site Approvals, Utility Agreement Review) - $3,375

If you request additional detail regarding the anticipated costs, please et us know. Also,
if you would prefer alternative fee structures, including those involving fixed fees, Ater Wynne
would be willing to discuss the same.

We are honored to be considered as potential counsel for this exciting and important
project, and look forward to the opportunity to use our expertise to help the Tribe implement this
solar project and further its economic, energy independence, and environmental goals.
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CLIENT SERVICE AND
BILLING POLICIESAND PROCEDURES

The attorney-client relationship works best when there is a mutual understanding about
client service, fees, and payment terms. Accordingly, the following will explain briefly our
billing policies and procedures, which are binding terms and conditions of your engagement with
Ater Wynne. Your acceptance of the attached engagement letter represents agreement to be
bound by and acceptance of these billing policies and procedures.

1 STAFFING. Typicaly, one attorney will have the primary responsibility for
assuring your legal needs are being satisfied and for overseeing your billing. We may aso
assign additional attorneys and legal assistants to assist in providing you with legal services on
the basis of their experience and expertise as well as the nature and scope of the issues.

2. FEE STRUCTURE. The amount of our invoices will represent the fair value of the
services provided, taking into account the time records for the matter. In determining the value
of our services, each of our attorneys and legal assistantsis assigned an hourly rate and maintains
time records, which are reviewed monthly by the billing attorney before an invoice is rendered.
Our hourly rates are subject to change from time to time. Unless otherwise agreed, all services
are performed on an hourly basis at our hourly rates. Our fees are subject to appropriate
adjustment (upon consultation with you) to reflect particularly difficult or novel legal matters,
the tasks performed, the skills required to fulfill those tasks properly, the particular results
obtained, the time schedule you have imposed, and other relevant circumstances.

3. FLAT-FEE SERVICES. In order to serve your lega needs more quickly and
efficiently, we provide certain routine services on a flat-fee basis, such as some intellectua
property filings and company formations. When services are provided on a flat-fee basis, we
will tell you in advance what the charges will be and identify what services are included in the
flat fee. Customization of standard documents for your unique requirements will be billed on an
hourly basis. Services performed that are outside the scope of any flat-fee project will be billed
in addition to the flat fee on an hourly basis.

4, RETAINERS. It isour policy to obtain an advance retainer from new clients and
existing clients when we deem appropriate, which retainer will be held in our client trust
account. At the conclusion of our engagement and after payment of all our fees and expenses,
we will return to you, without interest, any unearned portion of the retainer. We reserve the right
to use any part of the retainer to pay an account balance not paid within thirty days of the invoice
date, and to discontinue our representation until you forward funds to restore the full retainer.

5. EXPENSES AND CosTs. In addition to our fees for legal services, we typicaly
require prepayment of any out-of-pocket expenses that we will incur on your behalf. When out-
of-pocket expenses are expected, but the amount of those expenses is not known in advance, we
will request areasonable trust deposit, and require prompt reimbursement of any additional costs
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incurred. Examples include travel expenses, filing fees, maintenance fees, government fees or
surcharges, third-party attorney (such as foreign counsel) and consulting fees, and overnight
delivery services. Failure to pay requested out-of-pocket expenses may delay your services and
detrimentally affect your rights. We are not obligated to advance such expenses on your behalf.
Generally, we will not charge clients for internal costs that we incur on your behalf, such as
reproduction of documents and long-distance telephone calls. However, we do pass through
these items at our actual cost when they are substantial (e.g., more than $25 for any single copy
job or long distance phone call) and we do charge you for directly-related computer research or
illustration at the third-party provider’s standard rate.

6. BILLINGS AND PAYMENTS. Unless otherwise agreed, our invoices will be
rendered on a monthly basis, and payment is due in full upon receipt. Like other businesses, we
may be required to borrow money if our accounts are not paid promptly. Therefore, we will add
a service charge to account balances not paid within thirty days of the invoice date equal to
9% per annum (i.e., 0.75% per month). If an account becomes delinquent, we will pursue
appropriate and prudent collection remedies. You agree to pay all fees and costs (including
attorney fees) we may incur in collecting any amounts owed on your account. Fees and expenses
are always due and payable without regard to the consummation of any proposed transaction or
the outcome of any matter.

7. TERMINATION OF SERVICES. We retain the right to cease performing legal
services and to terminate our legal representation for any reason consistent with applicable
ethical rules, including unanticipated conflicts of interest or unpaid legal fees and expenses.

8. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF DOCUMENTS. Following termination of our
legal representation, any otherwise nonpublic information you have supplied to us which is
retained by us will be kept confidential in accordance with applicable rules of professional
conduct. At your request, your papers and property will be returned to you promptly upon
receipt of payment for outstanding fees and costs. Our own files pertaining to the matter will be
retained by us. All documents retained in our files will be administered consistent with our
records retention program. For various reasons, including the minimization of unnecessary
storage expenses, we reserve the right to destroy or otherwise dispose of our files, including all
documents or other materials retained in those files, within a reasonable time after the
termination of our representation.

9. CLIENT SERVICE. It has aways been, and will continue to be, Ater Wynne's goal
to provide lega services to you in the most cost effective and time efficient manner possible. If
at any time you wish to discuss our legal services, billing policies and procedures generally, or a
specific invoice, we encourage you to contact the attorney responsible for your account or our
Director of Finance at (503) 226-1191.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

XILF. Approve authorization to utilize information from the Governmental Services Division-Transit in
regards to Master's program Capstone project

1. Meeting Date Requested: 9 / 9 /[ 15

2. General Information:

Session: Open [] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |[New Business

[] Accept as Information only

Action - please describe:

Approve authorization to utilize information from the Governmental Services Division-Transit in regards to

Master's program Capstone project titled "The Oneida Nation of WI Transit System: Effect of change from a
Demand-Response/Dial-a-Ride service to a Point Deviation Service."

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

Other:
1)Cover memo 3.
2|Problem Statement 4,
[] Business Committee signature required
4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:

Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel

Primary Requestor:

Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

Master's student at UW-Osckosh is requesting to study the Tribe's transit system in the Capstone project for the
program. Ms. Hernandez has met with Governmental Services Division Director and the Program Director for
Transit. All personnel have identified that the policy analysis that will be conducted as part of this capstone
project will provide useful information in the ongoing review for effectiveness and improvements to the

transition system.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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1o AE Hovst. PHD ONEIDA LAW OFFICE

CHIEF COUNSEL N7210 SEMINARY ROAD PATRICIA M. STEVENS GARVEY
JAMES R. BITTORF P.O.BOX 109 CAROYL J. LONG

DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL ONE'DA, WlSCONSlN 54155 KELLY M. MCANDREWS

REBECCA M. WEBSTER, PHD
SENIOR STAFF ATTORNEY

MICHELLE L. MAYS

(920) 869-4327 FAX (920) 869-4065

MEMORANDUM

TO: Oneida Business Committee
FROM: Jo Anne House, Chief Counsel
DATE: September 2, 2015

SUBJECT: Master’s Capstone Project — Hernandez — Study of Tribe’s Transit System.

Renita Hernandez is a student at UW-Oshkosh in the Master’s program. | met with Ms.
Hernandez as part of identifying subjects for her capstone project. She has expressed an interest
in a capstone project that would provide value back to the Tribe. We discussed her interests and
studies to identify subjects that would fit within her capstone project and would also generate
beneficial information to the Tribe regarding the subject being studied. Ms, Hernandez identified
several areas, and | indicated personnel within the Tribe for her to meet with to have further
discussions about the subject and the scope of any potential study.

The Governmental Services Division Director and the program manager for Transit have
indicated that a study of the current system versus a standard bus route would be useful in
providing information to guide future growth. The Transit program has prior studies as well as
information regarding current ridership that will assist in developing this study.

The information that would potentially be needed by the student would involve ridership levels,
times, and locations. In addition, there may be access requested to prior studies and documents,
as well as access to financial information from Transit. There will be no access to personally
identifiable information regarding ridership in the transit system.

If you have further questions, please contact me.



Page 175 of 488

“The Oneida Nation of WI Transit System: Effect of change from a Demand-
Response/Dial-A-Ride service to a Point Deviation Service”.

Renita Hernandez
UW-Oshkosh
Capstone Experience
September — December 2015

Problem Statement

With the current use of a “Demand-Response/Dial-A-Ride” service that the Oneida Nation
Transit Department utilizes, there are at times longer wait periods for pick up, missed or
cancelled pick-ups, and the medical transportation issues. The objective will be to identify the
current service and look at what would be more cost efficient for the Oneida Transit Department
and how will these changes affect their customers.

Executive Summary

The Oneida Nation of Wisconsin consists of about 7,415 enrolled tribal members who
reside on the reservation. The reservation consists of 102.2 square miles and is located just
outside of Green Bay, Wisconsin. The Oneida Nation of Wisconsin currently has a transit
system which services all of the Oneida reservation boundaries and to certain areas in the Green
Bay area. Such transit services outside the reservation boundaries are mainly utilized for
medical appointments only.

The current transportation service used by the Oneida Nation of Wisconsin transit system
is a “Demand-Response/Dial-A-Ride” service. This is where a person would call to be picked up
either on demand or at a certain time of day. The Oneida Transit Department would like to see
how changes to a “point Deviation Service” would affect the overall transport services that they
offer to their current customers. The services will include daily riders and those on the medical
routes as well. Recommendations will show how the current services are compared to a possible
change in how the Oneida Nation Transit system transports their tribal members. This will
include the impact on current prices, wait times for pick up, and medical transportation schedules

for current tribal members.
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Research will be done to look at how price changes will affect those who currently utilize
transit services. The majority of people who currently utilize the Oneida Transit service are
those who are considered to be low income households. What financial impact will that have on
those people and will those people be willing to pay more to keep the current “Demand-
Response/Dial-A-Ride” service?

This paper will take a look at what impact a “Point Deviation” service will have
financially for the Oneida Transit Department. Will a change to this service be more cost
effective to the department? How will this type of transportation service benefit their current
customers? Will their current customers be willing to such a change in how the Oneida Transit
System is wanting to change their current transportation services?

The Oneida Transit Department has previously in the past tested such a route to see if
people would utilize the “Point Deviation” service. It was utilized for a period of one summer
and results have failed. This was more than five years ago. The Oneida Transit System would
like to see if there are people who would be willing to utilize this service now as time has passed.

A thorough research of such a change will include the impact of such a change to the
department, their customers and what recommendations could be offered to the department. This
paper will also take a look at other Tribal Transit systems to compare what types of services they

are offering and why their services are successful or not.
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request
XI.G. Enter E-poll results into record for approval of amended FY '16 Budget meeting packet which includes corporate audits

1. Meeting Date Requested: 09 / 09 / 15

2. General Information:
Session: Open [ ] Executive - See instructions for the applicable laws, then choose one:

Agenda Header: |New Business

[]1 Accept as Information only
Action - please describe:

Motion to enter E-poll results into record for approval of the amended FY 2016 Budget Meeting Packet which
includes corporate audits

3. Supporting Materials
[] Report [] Resolution [] Contract

Other:
1JEmail 3]
2)Corporate Audits 4)

[] Business Committee signature required

4. Budget Information
[] Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [] Budgeted - Grant Funded [] Unbudgeted

5. Submission

Authorized Sponsor / Liaison:  |Lisa Summers, Tribal Secretary

Primary Requestor: April Skenandore, Executive Assistant/BC Support Staff
Your Name, Title / Dept. or Tribal Member

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Additional Requestor:

Name, Title / Dept.

Page 1 of 2
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Oneida Business Committee Agenda Request

6. Cover Memo:
Describe the purpose, background/history, and action requested:

On August 19, 2015 the following e-poll was conducted:

Summary:

Treasurer Trish King is requesting an E-poll for the approval of an amended FY2016 Budget Meeting Packet. The
Treasurer wishes to include the audited financial statements which were inadvertently left out of the FY2015
Semi-Annual Treasurer’s Report. These documents include the audited financial statements of Oneida Golf
Enterprise and as the LPGA is an item on the agenda, it is important that these audited financial statements are
included.

The audited financial statements begin on page 72. The content of remainder of the packet has not changed;
though the Table on Contents has been updated.

An E-poll is necessary as the meeting packet must be submitted to Printing.

Due to the size of the file, we cannot attach it to this email. The document can be found at:

G:\Business Commitee\Meeting_Materials\GTC Meetings

FILE NAME: 2015 09 21 Special GTC FY2016 Budget Meeting_amended FILE FOR PRINTING.pdf

Requested Action:

Approve the amended 2015 FY-2016 Budget Meeting Packet to include audited financial statements
Deadline for Response:

Please submit your response by 12:00 p.m. (NOON) today. Please respond by using the voting button above.
The following is the e-poll results:

Support: Trish King, Fawn Billie, David Jordan, Tehassi Hill, Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Webster

Abstentions: Melinda J. Danforth ~ Melinda abstained from this vote as she did not vote on the original budget
packet.

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2) Print this form as av*.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.

3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Page 2 of 2
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Aeril Skenandore

From: TribalSecretary

Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2015 9:07 AM

To: Brandon L. Yellowbird-Stevens; Cristina S. Danforth; David P. Jordan; Fawn J. Billie;
Jennifer A. Webster; Lisa M. Summers; Melinda J. Danforth; Patricia M. King; Ronald W.

' Hill

Cc: Brian A. Doxtator; Danelle A. Wilson; Dawn M. Moon-Kopetsky; Fawn L. Cottrell; Jessica
L. Wallenfang; Leyne C. Orosco; Lisa A. Liggins; Mary C. Graves; Rhiannon R, Metoxen

Subject: E-poll Request: Approval of amended FY 16 Budget Meeting Packet

Importance: High

Good Morning! | hope your day is going along well.

Summary:

Treasurer Trish King is requesting an E-poll for the approval of an amended FY2016 Budget Meeting Packet. The
Treasurer wishes to include the audited financial statements which were inadvertently left out of the FY2015 Semi-
Annual Treasurer’s Report. These documents include the audited financial statements of Oneida Golf Enterprise and as
the LPGA is an item on the agenda, it is important that these audited financial statements are included.

The audited financial statements begin on page 72. The content of remainder of the packet has not changed; though
the Table on Contents has been updated.

An E-poll is necessary as the meeting packet must be submitted to Printing.
Due to the size of the file, we cannot attach it to this email. The document can be found at:
G:\Business Commitee\Meeting_Materials\GTC Meetings

FILE NAME: 2015 09 21 Special GTC FY2016 Budget Meeting_amended FILE FOR PRINTING.pdf

Requested Action:
Approve the amended 2015 FY-2016 Budget Meeting Packet to include audited financial statements

Deadline for Response:
Please submit your response by 12:00 p.m. (NOON) today. Please respond by using the voting button above.

Please feel free to contact April Skenandore at x4364 should you have problems viewing the file. Thank you.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Contents

Independent Auditor’s Report 3-5
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 6-10
Financial Statements:

Statements of Net Position 11

Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 12

Statements of Cash Flows 13-14
Notes to Financial Statements 15-25
Supplementary Information:

Combining Statement of Net Position 26-27

Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 28-29



Page 184 of 488



Page 185 of 488



Page 186 of 488



Page 187 of 488

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The management of Oneida Seven Generations Corporation (the “Corporation”) provides the
following discussion and analysis to assist financial statement readers in understanding the
Corporation’s financial performance. This information should be read in conjunction with the
Corporation’s financial statements and notes which follow this section.

Financial Statement Overview

This annual report includes three components: management’s discussion and analysis,
independent auditor’s report and basic financial statements. The basic financial statements
include the statement of net position, statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net
position, statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements.

The statement of net position includes all assets and liabilities of the Corporation separated by
current and long-term classification. This statement also includes the balance of net position
separated by net investment in capital assets, and unrestricted net position. This statement can
be used to assess the Corporation’s liquidity.

The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position includes all current year revenue
and expenses. This statement can be used to assess the Corporation’s annual operating results and
profitability.

The statement of cash flows presents all cash receipts and payments resulting from operational,
noncapital financing, financing and investing activities. This statement summarizes the sources
and uses of cash for the current period.

The notes to the financial statements provide detail and further explain information presented in
the financial statements.

The largest change in the Corporation’s financial position was due to the write-off of the energy
project in the amount of $5,684,003. The energy project was halted due to The City of Green Bay
rescinding the Conditional Use Permit.

The Corporation was forced to reclassify all bank notes from long-term liabilities to other
liabilities due to the Tribe’s vote to dissolve the Corporation in December 2013.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Analysis of Financial Results

A summary of the Corporation’s statements of net position is provided to assist in our analysis of
the Corporation’s financial results.

The Corporation’s Statement of Net Position

Dollar Percent
Year ended September 30, 2014 2013 Change Change
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 118,166 $ 134,865 S (16,699) -12.38%
Capital assets 14,440,646 19,773,011 (5,332,365) -26.97%
Total Assets 14,558,812 19,907,876 (5,349,064) -26.87%
Liabilities: ‘
Long-term debt outstanding 1,279,937 4,829,860 (3,549,923) -73.50%
Other liabilities 8,119,926 4,695,552 3,424,374 72.93%
Total Liabilities 9,399,863 9,525,412 (125,549) -1.32%
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 574,801 5,998,357 (5,423,556)  -90.42%
Restricted for investment in
business ventures 5,484,619 4,907,010 577,609 1M1.77%
Unrestricted (900,471) (522,903) (377,568) 72.21%
Total Net Position $ 5,158,949 $ 10,382,464 $ (5,223,515)  -50.31%
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Following is a discussion of the significant changes shown in the condensed statements of net

position.

The Corporation’s Change in Net Position

Dollar Percent
Year ended September 30, 2014 2013 Change Change
Operating revenue:
Rental Income $1,858,820 $ 1,894,702 S (35,882) -1.89%
Equity in net earnings of
business adventures 904,761 874,390 30,371 3.47%
Operating Revenue 2,763,581 2,769,092 (5,511) 1.58%
Operating Expenses 2,055,421 1,804,231 251,190 13.92%
Operating Income 708,160 964,861 (256,701) -26.60%
Nonoperating Expenses (6,160,963) (437,699) 5,723,264 130,75%
Income (Loss) (5,452,803) 527,162 (5,979,965) 111.34%
Member Contribution 229,288 136,208 93,080 68.34%
Change in Net Position (5,223,515) 663,370 (5,886,885) 43.00%
Net Position, beginning of year 10,382,464 9,719,094 663,370 6.83%

Net Position, end of year

$5,158,949 510,382,464

$(5,223,515)  -50.31%

On December 24, 2013, in accordance with the Oneida Business Committee’s (“OBC”) Resolution
#12-24-13-A, Sagestone Management, LLC ("Sagestone”) with its CEQ, Gene A. Keluche, was named
the Managing Agent (“Agent”) of the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin’s (“Oneida”) wholly
owned subsidiary Oneida Seven Generation Corporation (“OSGC”) to provide advisory and

management services described below.

1. Stabilize corporate relationships between tenants, banking, vendors, and business

partnerships;

2. Review the corporate structure in light of OSGC’s revised corporate leasing goals;

3. Make periodic progress reports to Chief Council and OBC of the Tribe;

4, Prepare a report of recommendations to the OBC regarding how to restructure the

Corporation to better achieve its revised goals.

8
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Sagestone Immediately commenced active on-site management as specified above including bi-
weekly visits to OSGC, its tenants, business partners, banking relationships, venders and public
entities in order to accomplish the above objectives. Sagestone was present at Oneida every
other week until June 30, 2014 and continues to actively manage and oversee the activities and
the restructuring of OSGC.

On January 17, 2014, OSGC received a Letter of Default and Forbearance from Wisconsin Bank and
Trust ("WB&T") regarding its approximate $9.0 million in indebtedness secured by approximately
$30.0 million of OSGC real estate related assets. The default letter was issued as a result of the
actions of the Oneida General Tribal Council on December 15, 2013 to approve a resolution to
dissolve OSGC. Sagestone immediately met with WB&T's president and senior commercial lending
officer and commenced a series of bi-weekly meetings to negotiate an extension of the
Forbearance Agreement in order to prevent the demand and foreclosure on the OSGC assets and
to provide time for Sagestone and OSGC to finalize the restructuring. The Forbearance Agreement
and multiple extensions were negotiated between Sagestone as Managing Agent of OSGC and
WBE&T with the current Forbearance Agreement in effect until February 28, 2015.

On February 11, 2014, Sagestone presented to the OBC its overall recommendation to liquidate
0SGC and restructure its real estate assets into a single purpose entity whose sole purpose would
be to own the real estate and collect rental income, lease properties and respond to tenant and
business partners real estate needs. The new entity would be wholly owned by Oneida and all
cash flow would be distributed to Oneida after all debt service, direct expenses and the payment
of a commercially reasonable management fee to an arm's length independent management
contractor under a five year management contract that may be terminated for cause. [t was
recommended that the successor entity to OSGC shall not independently engage in real estate
development activities.

The Sagestone comprehensive restructuring plan would complete the restructuring of the real
estate assets of OSGC into a new single purpose entity that would only own the real estate, would
refinance all debt sufficient to repay all OSGC debt, to pay all legal and issuance expenses and
pay back all funds borrowed and due to Oneida from OSGC. The new debt would not require the
credit support or guarantee of Oneida. The approved restructuring plan was presented to several
financial institutions who indicated a strong interest in financing the resulting single purpose
entity in accordance with the aforementioned terms and conditions.

Sagestone, working with the Oneida Law Office and outside legal counsel, immediately proceeded
forward to implement and close the restructuring which would effectively liquidate OSGC as
mandated by the OBC. On March 7, 2014, OSGC received notice that a complaint was filed in the
Circuit Court of Cook County Illinois against the Oneida Tribe, OSGC and Green Bay Renewable
Energy by ACF, LLC and GCF, LLC relating to the energy project. After extensive legal review,
Oneida recommended that Sagestone delay moving forward with the restructuring until the suit is
settled or dismissed. Sagestone continues to discuss the restructuring with WB&T and interested
funding sources such that immediate action can be commenced to close the OSGC restructuring
once the go-ahead is given by Oneida legal counsel.

Additionally, Sagestone and OSGC’s negotiated the resolution of legal action and forbearance of
the demands for repayment of its debt with Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Sagestone continues to actively support the efforts of the Godfrey Kahn law firm in Oneida’s
litigation regarding the withdrawal of the Conditional Use Permit by the City of Green Bay
regarding the Oneida Energy project. The revocation of the CUP by the City of Green Bay was
overturned by the Wisconsin Court of Appeals and that decision is now being reviewed by the
Wisconsin Supreme Court. Sagestone and Godfrey Kahn are exploring all options and remedies
available to OSGC as a result of this action by the City of Green Bay. Once the Supreme Court
review is concluded, Sagestone will present a comprehensive analysis of these remedies to the
OBC.

Sagestone has met with and actively supports the potential expansion plans of several of OSGC’s
valued tenants and business partners for their planned expansion of their existing facilities on the
Oneida Reservation.

Sagestone continues to analyze and pursue options to profitably sell Oneida Energy assets and
possible tax credits to third parties once the ACF litigation is settled and approval is granted by
legal counsel and the OBC.

As Managing Agent, Sagestone is actively involved in the day to day business activities and
decisions of OSGC. During the past year, operating income and cash flow of OSGC was stable and
the vacancy rate of OSGC real estate assets is approximately 5%. All properties have been
maintained in sound and operable condition.

It is anticipated that the OSGC real estate restructuring will be concluded early in 2015, fulfilling
the mandate of the OBC to Sagestone.

Contacting the Organization’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the Organization’s finances and to demonstrate the Organization’s accountability for
the funds received. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact:

Oneida Seven Generations Corporations

P.0O. Box 257
Oneida, Wisconsin 54155

10
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Financial Statements
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Statements of Net Position

September 30, 2014 2013 September 30, 2014 2013
Assets Liabilities and Net Position
Current Assets: Current Liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 62,477 § 87,981 Line-of-credit $ 250,000 S 250,000
Accounts receivable, net 55,689 46,884 Accounts payable 418,259 261,695
Accrued and other liabilities:
Total Current Assets 118,166 134,865 Interest 56,431 31,09
Real estate taxes 41,175 41,175
Noncurrent Assets: Other 3,735 51,187
Brokerage fees, net of amortization 34,980 30,407 Due to Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin 1,072,664 631,340
Business ventures: Uneamed revenue 43,997 47,056
Babcock 1, LLC 4,205,665 3,682,310 Current maturities of long-term notes payable 6,233,665 3,382,000
Partnership Drive, LLC 1,145,811 1,110,068
North Packerland, LLC 119,490 100,979 Total Current Liabilities 8,119,926 4,695,552
Oneida-Kodiak Construction, LLC 13,653 13,653
Capital assets: Noncurrent Liabilities -
Land 294,526 59,000 Notes payable 1,279,937 4,829,860
Construction in progress - 5,729,130
Buildings and improvements 13,152,851 13,142,310  Total Liabilities $ 9,399,863 § 9,525412
Equipment 59,549 55,529
Less accumulated depreciation (4,585,879)  (4,150,375)  Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 3 574,801 § 5,998,357
Total Noncurrent Assets 14,440,646 19,773,011 Restricted for investment in business ventures 5,484,619 4,907,010
Unrestricted (900,471) (522,903)
Total Assets § 14,558,812 $19,907,876 Total Net Position $ 5,158,949 § 10,382,464

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and
notes to financial statements.

11
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year ended September 30, 2014 2013
Operating Revenue:
Rental income $ 1,858,820 S 1,894,702
Equity in net earnings of business ventures 904,761 874,390
Total Operating Revenue 2,763,581 2,769,092

Operating Expenses:

Contracted services 689,632 210,751
Depreciation 435,504 439,937
Occupancy costs 370,286 422,236
Salaries and benefits 248,318 477,281
Repairs and maintenance 72,321 72,235
Real estate taxes 63,276 62,466
Utilities 54,034 41,931
Bad debt 35,075 -
Insurance 22,117 21,989
Amortization 9,240 4,820
Travel 6,970 9,599
Meeting expense 3,523 12,204
Promotions 1,253 4,336
Donations - 525
Other 43,872 23,921
Total Operating Expenses 2,055,421 1,804,231
Operating Income 708,160 964, 861

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):

Write-off of impaired assets (5,684,003) -
Write-off of note issuance costs (24,347) -
Interest income - 227
Interest expense (456,802) (456,664)
Other income 4,189 18,738
Total Nonoperating Expenses (6,160,963) (437,699)
Income (Loss) (5,452,803) 527,162
Member Contribution 229,288 136,208
Change in Net Position (5,223,515) 663,370
Net Position, beginning of year 10,382,464 9,719,094
Net Position, end of year $ 5,158,949 $ 10,382,464

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and
notes to financial statements.

12
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended September 30, 2014 2013
Operating Activities:

Cash received from customers and business ventures $ 1,850,015 S 1,857,593

Payments to suppliers and employees (1,063,300) (748,815)
Cash Provided by Operating Activities 786,715 1,108,778
Investing Activities:

Capital investment in business ventures (13,000) (2,000)

Proceeds from interest income - 227

Distributions from business ventures 340,152 412,530

Payment of brokerage fees (38,160) -
Cash Provided by Investing Activities 288,992 410,757
Noncapital Financing Activities -

Member contribution ‘ - 136,208

Other income 4,189 18,738
Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 4,189 154,946

Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - 1,172,613
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (204,960) (925, 649)
Principal payments on long-term debt (698,258) (1,564,259)
Interest paid (431,470) (447,918)
Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,334,688) (1,765,213)
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (254,792) (90,732)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 87,981 178,713
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year A ' $ (166,811) S 87,981

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and
notes to financial statements.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended September 30, 2014 2013

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income $ 708,160 $ 964,861
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
cash provided by operating activities:

Equity in net earnings of affiliates (904,761) (874,390)
Depreciation 435,504 439,937
Amortization 9,240 4,820
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 35,075 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (43,880) (37,109)
Prepaid expenses - 5,000
Accounts payable 376,090 111,514
Due to Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin 221,798 413,945
Unearned revenue (3,247) 46,981
Accrued other liabilities (47,452) 33,219
Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 786,527 $ 1,108,778

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and
notes to financial statements.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principal Business Activity

Oneida Seven Generations Corporation (the Corporation) is a holding company for real estate and
other business ventures of the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin (the Tribe). The Corporation is
a component unit of the Tribe.

During 2004, the Corporation established Glory, LLC, as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Corporation, for purposes of real estate holding and rental of a manufacturing and office complex
in Ashwaubenon. Glory, LLC, is a component unit of the Corporation and is reported as if it were
part of the Corporation in the basic financial statements (on a blended basis).

During 2005, the Corporation established Oneida Generations, LLC, as a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Corporation (51%) and the Tribe (49%), for purposes of real estate holding and rental of a
Travel Mart. Oneida Generations, LLC, is a component unit of the Corporation and is reported as if
it were part of the Corporation in the basic financial statements (on a blended basis).

During 2007, the Corporation acquired Oneida Nation Electronics (ONE) as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Corporation, which facilitates a procurement relationship agreement between
International Business Machines (IBM) and Benchmark Electronics (Benchmark). ONE is a
component unit of the Corporation and is reported as if it were part of the Corporation in the
basic financial statements (on a blended basis). The contract between ONE, IBM, and Benchmark
was terminated as of October 31, 2010, after which time ONE is no longer a party to the
procurement relationship. :

During 2010, the Corporation established Oneida Recycling Solutions, LLC, and Oneida Energy,
Inc., as wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation, for purposes of eventual real estate holding
(Solutions) and operation of a waste to energy operation (Energy). During 2011, Oneida Energy,
Inc. established the following component units; Oneida Energy Blocker Corporation and Green Bay
Renewable Energy, LLC (GBRE, LLC). GBRE, LLC had financial activity during 2014, and is
therefore consolidated with Energy and included in the Statements of Net Position and Activities.
During 2010, the Corporation also established IEP Development, LLC, as a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Corporation, for purposes of investing in the waste to energy project (now housed with
Energy). During 2011, the activity of IEP Development, LLC, was terminated and plans are to
dissolve this inactive entity. All three are component units of the Corporation and are reported as
if they were part of the Corporation in the basic financial statements (on a blended basis).

During 2010, the Corporation also established Oneida Manufacturing, LLC, as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Corporation, for purposes of a potential acquisition of a manufacturing
operation. This acquisition did not occur and plans are to dissolve this inactive entity. Oneida
Manufacturing, LLC, is a component unit of the Corporation and is reported as if it were part of
the Corporation in the basic financial statements (on a blended basis).

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The Corporation is a self-supporting entity and follows enterprise fund reporting and, accordingly,
the accompanying financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The Corporation follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) for accounting and financial reporting purposes.

Tax Status

The Corporation is formed under the laws of the Tribe. Accordingly, Oneida Seven Generations
and its wholly owned LLC subsidiaries are not taxable by federal or state taxing authorities.
Oneida Energy, Inc., has elected to be taxed as a C Corporation, eligible for payments for
specified energy property in lieu of tax credits under the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act of 2009 (IRC Section 1603).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that directly affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Corporation expects to collect less an allowance
for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the Corporation evaluates its accounts receivable and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, when deemed necessary, based on its assessment

of the credit history with customers having outstanding balances and current relationships with
them.

Capital Assets

Property and equipment are valued at cost. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense
as incurred. Gains or losses on disposition of property and equipment are reflected in income.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes based on
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The following schedule details the estimated useful lives
used for each class of assets:

Buildings 30 Years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 Years
Equipment 3-5 Years

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Oneida Seven Generations Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements

Unearned Revenue

The Corporation records unearned revenue for rent payments received in advance of the lease
term. This is recognized as income in the period earned.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses.

Net Position

Net position is classified into three components as outlined below:

*+  Net investment in capital assets - Amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
less outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

* Restricted net position - Amount of net position that is subject to restrictions that are imposed
by 1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other

governments or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

* Unrestricted net position - Net position that is neither classified as restricted nor as net
investment in capital assets.

Net position of the Corporation reported on the Statements of Net Position at September 30, 2014
and 2013 include the following:

September 30, 2014 2013
Net Investment in Capital Assets:
Land $ 294,526 S 59,000
Construction in progress - 5,729,130
Buildings and improvements 13,152,851 13,142,310
Equipment 59,549 55,529
Less accumulated depreciation (4,585,879) (4,150,375)
Less debt outstanding (8,346,246) (8,837,237)
Total net investment in capital assets 574,801 5,998,357
Restricted for investment in business ventures 5,484,619 4,907,010
Unrestricted (900,283) (522,903)
Total Net Position $ 5,159,137 S 10,382,464

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Summary of New Accounting Policies

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, was adopted by the
Corporation beginning with its year ending September 30, 2014. One of the effects of Statement
No. 65 was to change the reporting of note issuance costs. In prior years, costs associated with
note issuance were amortized over the term of the note in the entity wide statements. GASB
Statement No. 65 eliminated this treatment by requiring the cost of note issuance to be recorded
as an expense in the first year during which the notes are issued. This change resulted in a write-
off of note issuance costs of approximately $24,000.

2. Cash and Investments

The carrying amount of the Corporation’s restricted and unrestricted cash and investments totaled
$62,477 and $87,981 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Deposits in banks are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for demand
deposits per bank. The Corporation has accounts with three banks making the maximum coverage
available of $750,000.

3. Business Ventures

Babcock 1, Oneida-Kodiak Construction, Partnership Drive, and North Packerland are LLC
investments and are accounted for using the equity method. The investments are carried at cost,
less distributions received, adjusted for the Corporation’s proportionate share of the investments’
earnings. The Corporation is allocated 51% of the income before depreciation expense for its
investments in Babcock [, Oneida-Kodiak Construction, Partnership Drive, and North Packerland.

Following is an aggregate summary of activity for business ventures during 2014:

Equity in Capital Return of Net
Business Venture Earnings Distributions Investment  Capital Change
Babcock I, LLC S 773,255 S (249,900) S -9 - § 523,355
Partnership Drive, LLC 125,995 (90,252) - - 35,743
North Packerland, LLC 5,511 - 13,000 - 18,511
Total $ 904,761 $(340,152) $ 13,000 $ - $577,609

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Following is an aggregate summary of activity for business ventures during 2013:

Equity in Capital Return of Net
Business Venture Earnings Distributions Investment  Capital Change
Babcock I, LLC $ 739,460 S (249,900) $ - S - § 489,560
Oneida-Kodiak Construction, LLC - (60,000) - - (60, 000)
Partnership Drive, LLC 129,330 (102,630) - - 26,700
North Packerland, LLC 5,600 - 2,000 - 7,600
Total $ 874,390 § (412,530) $ 2,000 S - § 463,860

Following is an aggregate summary of the financial position and results of operations for LLC
investments:

September 30, 2014 2013
Assets $15,822,776 $ 17,489,844
Liabilities 15,435,112 17,056,856
Members® Equity 387,664 432,989
Total Liabilities and Members' Equity $15,822,776 $ 17,489,845
Revenues $ 3,048,691 S 5,834,925
Expenses 2,206,321 5,037,217
Net Income $ 842,370 § 797,708

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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4. Summary of Changes in Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets is shown below:

Balance Balance
September 30, Additions/ Deductions/ September 30,
2013 Transfers  Transfers 2014

Capital Assets, not depreciated:

Land S 59,000 $§ 235,526 $ - § 294,526

Construction in progress 5,729,130 190,400 (5,919,530) -
Total Capital Assets, not depreciated $ 5,788,130 S 425,926 § (5,919,530) $§ 294,526
Capital Assets, depreciated:

Buildings and improvements $13,142,310 § 10,541 § - $13,152,851

Equipment 55,529 4,020 - 59,549
Total Capital Assets, depreciated 13,197,839 14,561 - 13,212,400
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and improvements (4,094,845)  (435,504) - (4,530,349)

Equipment (55,530) - - (55,530)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (4,150,375)  (435,504) - (4,585,879)
Net Capital Assets S 9,047,464 S (420,943) S - $ 8,921,047

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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A summary of changes in capital assets is shown below:

Balance Balance
September 30, Additions/ Deductions/ September 30,
2012 Transfers  Transfers 2013

Capital Assets, not depreciated :

Land S 59,000 S - S - S 59,000

Construction in progress 4,815,498 913,632 - 5,729,130
Total Capital Assets, not depreciated $ 4,874,498 § 913,632 § - § 5,788,130
Capital Assets, depreciated:

Buildings and improvements S 13,165,521 $ - S (23,211)  § 13,142,310

Equipment 55,529 - 55,529
Total Capital Assets, depreciated 13,221,050 (23,211) 13,197,839
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and improvements (3,661,496) (433,349) - (4,094, 845)

Equipment (48,943) (6,587) - (55,530)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,710,439) (439,936) - (4,150,375)
Net Capital Assets S 9,510,611 S (439,936) S (23,211) S 9,047,464

5. Line-of-Credit

At September 30, 2014, the Corporation had a $250,000 revolving line-of-credit with a bank.

Borrowings on the line-of-credit are collateralized by a building held by the Corporation, bear
interest at 4.5%, and totaled $250,000 at September 30, 2014.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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6. Long-Term Notes Payable

Long-term notes payable consist of the following:

September 30, 2014 2013

7.6% bank note, secured by building and rent assignments, payable
at $41,389 per month including interest, balance due January,

2014* $ 2,351,962 S 2,653,629

2% note from the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation,
interest-only payments of $3,334 per month until May, 2014;
balance due April, 2019* 2,000,000 2,000,000

5.75% bank note, secured by building and rent assignment, payable
at $11,475 per month including interest, balance due November,

2020 1,279,937 1,342,088

7% bank note, secured by building and rent assignments, payable at
$19,205 per month including interest, balance due October, 2015* 961,616 1,126,768

5.35% bank note, secured by building and rent assignments,
payable at $1,220 per month including interest, balance due May,

2017~ 133,896 141,060

5.33% bank note, secured by building and rent assignments,
payable at $7,736 per month including interest, balance due May,
2017* 443,309 508,425

4,94% bank note, secured by building and rent assignments,
payable at $9,027 per month including interest, balance due May,

2016* 172,882 269,890

5.5% promissory note, secured by membership interest in Babcock
I, LLC, quarterly interest only payments, principal and interest,
balance due on October, 2013* 170,000 170,000

7,513,602 8,211,860
Less current maturities 6,233,665 3,382,000

$ 1,279,937 $ 4,829,860

* The Corporation and its lenders are negotiating extending the terms of the loan agreements. All
- debt agreements have been called due by the respective lenders in light of the December 15, 2013
vote by the Tribe to dissolve the Corporation. As a result, the debt is classified as current on the
Statement of Net Position.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term notes of the Corporation for the year ended
September 30, 2014:

Outstanding Balance
September 30, September 30, Due Within
2013 Issued Retired 2014 One Year
Bank notes S 8,041,860 S - § (698,258) $ 7,343,602 S 7,343,602
Promissory note 170,000 - - 170,000 170,000
S 8,211,860 S - § (698,258) $ 7,513,602 $ 7,513,602

In conjunction with the long-term debt agreements, the Corporation has agreed to meet various
financial covenants. The Corporation is in violation of these financial covenants at September 30,
2014,

7. Leases

The Corporation leases various pieces of land from the Tribe under lease agreements with 15 to 25
year terms. Lease expense on the land was $80,320 and $81,603 for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Corporation also leases office space and buildings from the Tribe under long-term lease
agreements with five to 15 year terms. Lease expense for the office space and buildings was
$74,966 and $61,633 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Minimum future rentals by year and the aggregate under noncancelable operating leases consist of
the following:

2015 S 112,136
2016 112,136
2017 112,136
2018 100,036
2019 98,936
Thereafter 766,126

$ 1,301,506

The Corporation receives lease income for properties it both owns and subleases under
agreements with terms from three to 25 years. Lease income received from these properties was
$1,858,820 and $1,894,702 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Of
this, $904,761 and $874,390 were from the Tribe for the years ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Minimum future rentals by year and in the aggregate under noncancelable operating leases consist
of the following:

2015 $ 1,506,580
2016 ' 1,418,850
2017 1,316,827
2018 1,290,465
2019 889,637
Thereafter 832,670

$ 7,255,029

8. Commitment

According to the Corporation’s Third Amended Corporate Charter, the Corporation shall establish
a cash reserve for debt service set at an amount equal to six monthly debt payments and one-year
working capital. Distributions of earnings or profits may be made at the discretion of the
shareholders, which will be mutually agreed upon at the annual shareholder’s meeting.

The Corporation is guarantor on the notes payable of the business ventures described in Note 3
totaling $10,432,005 and $11,421,647 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The notes
are secured by real estate.

9. Contingencies

From time-to-time, the Corporation is involved in various claims and lawsuits, both for and against
the Corporation, arising in the normal course of business. Management believes that any financial
responsibility that may be incurred in settlement of such claims and lawsuits would not be
material to the Corporation’s financial position, except as discussed below.

On March 6, 2014, ACF Leasing, LLC, ACF Services, LLC, Generation Clean Fuels, LLC (collectively
“ACF”), initiated a lawsuit against the Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin, the Corporation and
Green Bay Renewable Energy, LLC (GBRE) alleging damages in excess of $400 million. The lawsuit
concerns a breach of contract between the above mentioned parties as the Tribe approved
dissolution of the Corporation. On May 2, 2014, both the Tribe and the Corporation moved to
dismiss the complaint on the grounds that the suit is barred by tribal sovereign immunity. On
October 8, 2014, the court dismissed the lawsuit against the Tribe and the Corporation. The court
ruled the case lacked subject matter jurisdiction because of the Tribe’s and the Corporation’s
sovereign immunity. On November 7, 2014, ACF filed a notice of appeal. Chances of recovery
against the Corporation are uncertain due to the appeal, and the value of the damages claimed
has not yet been investigated given the early stage of litigation.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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10. Grant Income and Deposits on Projects in Process

The Corporation obtained a grant from the Wisconsin Department of Commerce on October 28,
2009, for $2,000,000 to be used for the development of a waste to energy facility and related
operations. In addition, the project was awarded a $250,000 grant from the Department of the
Interior Division of Energy and Mineral Development in March, 2010. As of September 30, 2011,
$2,250,000 of this funding had been received by the Corporation.

During 2011, the Corporation obtained a grant from the Tribe for $334,000 for the purpose of
conducting a feasibility study related to the Corporation’s Waste to Energy Project.

Costs incurred through September 30, 2014 totaled $5,684,003, which have been written-off. The
Tribe moved to dissolve the Corporation effective December 15, 2013, and the waste to energy
project has been halted and therefore is not considered to be a viable asset.

11. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated the period from October 1, 2014 to December 12, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available for issuance, for subsequent events requiring recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Combining Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014

Page 210 of 488

Oneida
Seven Oneida Oneida
Generations Generations, Energy,
Corporation Glory, LLC LLC Inc. Total
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ) 18,854 S 30,641 $ 5,617 7,365 $ 62,477
Accounts receivable, net 13,956 - 41,733 - 55,689
Total Current Assets 32,810 30,641 47,350 7,365 118,166
Noncurrent Assets:
Brokerage fees, net of amortization - 34,980 - - 34,980
Business ventures:
Babcock |, LLC 4,205,665 - - - 4,205,665
Partnership Drive, LLC 1,145,811 - - - 1,145,811
North Packerland, LLC 119,490 - - - 119,490
Oneida-Kodiak Construction, LLC 13,653 - - - 13,653
Capital assets:
Land 59,000 - - 235,526 294,526
Buildings and improvements 3,523,743 4,196,060 5,433,048 - 13,152,851
Equipment 59,549 - - - 59,549
Less accumulated depreciation (1,667,393) (1,354,697) (1,563,789) - (4,585,879)
Total Noncurrent Assets 7,459,518 2,876,343 3,869,259 235,526 14,440,646
Total Assets $ 7,492,328 $ 2,906,984 $ 3,916,609 S 242,891 $14,558,812
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Oneida
Seven Oneida Oneida
Generations Generations, Energy,
Corporation Glory, LLC LLC Inc. Total
Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities:

Line-of-credit S 250,000 $ - S - S - S 250,000

Accounts payable 147,651 - - 270,608 418,259

Accrued and other liabilities:

Interest 44,712 1,925 9,794 - 56,431
Real estate taxes 41,175 - - - 41,175
Other 3,540 - - 195 3,735

Due to Oneida Tribe of Indians of Wisconsin 857,068 - 215,596 - 1,072,664

Unearned revenue 1,597 42,400 - - 43,997

Current maturities of long-term notes payable 920,087 961,616 2,351,962 2,000,000 6,233,665
Total Current Liabilities $ 2,265,830 S$ 1,005941 $ 2,577,352 $ 2,270,803 S 8,119,926
Noncurrent Liabilities - )

Notes payable 1,279,937 - - - 1,279,937
Total Liabilities 3,545,767 1,005,941 2,577,352 2,270,803 9,399,863
Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets $ (1,057,769) S 1,879,747 S 1,517,297 S (1,764,474) $ 574,801

Restricted for investments in business ventures 5,484,619 - - - 5,484,619

Unrestricted (480,289) 21,296 (178,040) (263,438) (900,471)
Total Net Position $ 3,946,561 S 1,901,043 S 1,339,257 S (2,027,912) $ 5,158,949

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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Year Ended September 30, 2014

Oneida
Seven Oneida Oneida Oneida
Generations Generations, Nation Energy,
Corporation Glory, LLC LLC Electronics Inc. Total

Operating Revenue:

Rental income $ 819,547 S 481,813 $ 557,460 $ - - $ 1,858,820

Equity in net earnings of affiliates 904,761 - - - - 904,761
Total Operating Revenue 1,724,308 481,813 557,460 - - 2,763,581
Operating Expenses:

Contracted services 518,250 - 65,780 - 105,602 689,632

Depreciation 124,600 139,626 171,278 - - 435,504

Occupancy costs 143,286 215,000 12,000 - - 370,286

Salaries and benefits 239,395 - - - 8,923 248,318

Repairs and maintenance 64,831 4,570 2,920 - - 72,321

Real estate taxes 63,276 - - - - 63,276

Utilities 39,710 - 14,250 - 74 54,034

Bad debt 35,075 - - - - 35,075

Insurance 22,117 - - - - 22,117

Amortization 6,060 3,180 - - - 9,240

Travel 6,970 - - - - 6,970

Meeting expense 3,523 - - - - 3,523

Promotions 253 - 1,000 - - 1,253

Other 43,821 - - - 51 43,872
Total Operating Expenses 1,311,167 362,376 267,228 - 114,650 2,055,421
Operating Income (Loss) 413,141 119,437 290,232 - (114,650) 708,160
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):

Write-off of impaired assets (3,200,119) - - - (2,483,884) (5,684,003)

Write-off of note Issuance costs (24,347) - - - - (24,347)

Interest expense (169,007) (55,178) (192,609) - (40,008) (456,802)

Other income 4,189 - - - - 4,189
Total Nonoperating Expenses (3,389,284) (55,178) (192,609) - (2,523,892) (6,160,963)
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Oneida
Seven Oneida Oneida Oneida
Generations Generations,  Nation Energy,
Corporation Glory, LLC LLC Electronics Inc. Total
Income (loss) $(2,976,143) § 64,259 S§S 97,623 § - $(2,638,542) $(5,452,803)
Member contribution (draw) 64,812 - - (2,002) 166,478 229,288
Change in Net Position (2,911,331) 64,259 97,623 (2,002) (2,472,064) (5,223,515)
Net Position, beginning of year 6,857,892 1,836,784 1,241,634 2,002 444 152 10,382,464
Net Position, end of year $ 3,946,561 S 1,901,043 §$ 1,339,257 § - $(2,027,912) $ 5,158,949

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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]
& GARRISON, P.C,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Native American Bancorporation
Denver; Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Native American Bancorporation
and Subsidiary, which are comprised of the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsiblility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amernica;
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Native American Bancorporation and Subsidiary as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

707/51» ) %cué,w: (e kalichs ¢ Garuae. , PC.

Denver, Colorado
March 25, 2014

1099 18th Street * Suite 2900 » Denver, CO 80202-1929
303/296-6033 « FAX 303/296-8553

Certified Public Accountants » A Professional Corporation
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Native American Bancorporation and Subsidiary

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2013 2012
" ASSETS
Cash.and due from banks $ 1,245,954 1,722,000
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 3,387,660 7,028,429
Cash and cash equivalents 4,633,614 8,750,429
Securities available for sale 3,677,098 5,045,247
Nonmarketable equity securities, at cost 598,152 580,902
Loans, net 48,834,233 45,213,331
Premises and equipment, net 247.649 286,821
Accrued interest receivable 270,937 195,439
Other real estate owned - 62,888
Other assets 198,204 180,705
Goodwill and other intangible assets - 1,345,300
$ 68,459,887 61,661,062
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 13,355,330 19,542,976
Interest-bearing 39,499,957 34,212,004
Total deposits 52,855,287 53,754,980
Accrued interest payable 30,100 21,527
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 284,870 303,206
Total liabilities 53,170,257 54,079,713
Commitments and contingencies (notes E, J and K)
Stockhoiders' equity
Preferred stock - $.01 par value, 40,000 shares
authorized; 6,500 shares issued and outstanding 65 65
Charitable Preferred stock - $.01 par value, 10,000 shares
authorized; 5,000 shares issued and outstanding 50 50
Common stock - Class A, $.01 par vaiue, 160,000 shares
authorized; 41,677 issued and outstanding 417 417
Common stock - Class B, $.01 par value, 25,000 shares
authorized; 17 and 16 shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively - -
Capital surpius 22,996,550 22,995,550
Accumulated deficit (17,697,250) (15,514,919)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (10,202) 100,186
Total stockholders' equity 5,289,630 7,581,348
$ 58,459,887 $ 61,661,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Native American Bancorporation and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income(Loss)

Years ended December 31,

Interest income
Loans, including fees
Debt securities:
Taxable
Federal funds sold and other
Total interest income

Interest expense
Deposits
Federal funds purchased
Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income
Customer service fees
Loss on sale of assets
Other
Total noninterest income

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Impairment of goodwill
Other general and administrative
Total noninterest expense

Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)

Netloss

Other comprehensive loss
Unrealized holding losses on securities available for sale

Total Comprehensive Loss

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012
2438564 $ 2,669,649
97,869 149,798
28,216 30,065
2,564,649 2,849,512
201,934 333,542
904 297
202,838 333,839
2,361,811 2,515,673
2,361,811 2,515,673
482,299 539,087
(44,825) (1,340)
206,240 276,100
643,714 813,847
1,966,601 2,118,663
322,747 313,768

1,345,300 -

1,553,208 1,791,409
5,187,856 4,223,840
(2,182,331) (894,320)
(2,182,331) (894,320)
(110,388) (9,260)
$  (2292719) $  (903,580)




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Native American Bancorporation and Subsidiary

Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Page 218 of 488

Class A Class B Accumulated
Charitable Common Class A Common Class B Other
Preferred Preferred Stock Common Stock Common Capital Accumulated Comprehensive
Stock Stock Shares Stock Shares Stock Surplus Deficit Income (loss) Total
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 65 $ 50 41677 $ 417 15 $ - $22,994550 $ (14620,599) $ 109446 § 8,483,929
Issuance of common stock - - - - 1 - 1,000 - - 1,000
Net loss - - - - - - - (894,320) - (894,320)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - - - - (9,260) (9,260)
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 65 §$ 50 41677 § 417 16 $ - $22,995550 $(15514919) ¢ 100,186 $ 7,581,349
Issuance of common stock - - - - 1 - 1,000 - - 1,000
Net loss - - - - - - - (2,182,331) - (2,182,331)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - - - - (110,388) (110,388)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 65 $ 50 41,677 § 417 17 $ - $22,996,550 $ (17,697,250) - $ (10,202) § 5,289,630
f— b e Rl et ]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Native America Bancorporation and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Net amortization of securities available for sale
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposition of premises of equipment
Write down of other real estate owned
Loss (gain) on sale of other real estate owned
Loss on sale of repossessed assets
Impairment of goodwill
Stock dividend received
Net change in:
Accrued interest and other assets
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Activity in securities available for sale:
Purchases
Maturities, prepayments, and calls
Purchases of nonmarketable equity securities
Redemptions of nonmarketable equity securities
Loan originations and principal collections, net
Additions to premises and equipment
Proceeds from dispositions of fixed assets
Sales of repossessed assets
Sales of other real estate owned

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

2013 2012
(2,182,331) (894,320)
64,450 121,572
61,081 78,085
. 1,340
- 87,640
38,820 (1,405)
6,005 -
1,345,300 -
(1,800) (600)
(91,008) 105,679
(9,763) 54,157
(768,344) (447,852)
(1,016,026) (988,716)
2,209,337 3,708,562
(40,800) -
25,350 27,950
(3,636,898) 7,164,907
(22,809) (91,467)
- 500
8,000 -
24,068 69,465
(2,449,778) 9,891,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Native American Bancorporation and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Years ended December 31,

Cash flows from financing activities
Net decrease in deposits
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash used by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for interest

2013 2012
(899,693) (7,000,351)
1,000 1,000

(898,693) (6,999,351)
(4,116,815) 2,443,998
8,750,429 6,306,431

$ 4633614 8,750,429
$ 194265 337,689

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2013 and 2012
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

Native American Bancorporation (“the Bancorporation") is a bank holding company
which owns 100% of the common stock of Native American Bank, N.A. (“the Bank®).
The entities are collectively referred to as “the Company”. - All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generalily
accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assefs and
liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the
near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the
valuation of other real estate owned, and the fair value of financial instruments.

In connection with the determination of the allowance for loan losses and the
valuation of other real estate owned, management obtains independent appraisals
for significant properties and assesses estimated future cash flows from
borrowers’ operations and the liquidation of loan collateral.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of other
real estate owned are adequate. While management uses available information to
recognize losses on loans and other real estate owned, changes in economic
conditions may necessitate revisions in future years.

Business

The Company is a privately held bank holding company located in Denver,
Colorado. The Company operates a full service branch in Browning, Montana
providing a full range of banking and mortgage services to individual and corporate
customers principally in the northwestern Montana area. The Company also
maintains a loan production office (LPO) in Box Elder, Montana. Its primary

8
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deposit products are transaction and term certificate accounts and its primary
lending products are leasehold mortgages, real estate, commercial and industrial,
and consumer loans.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Despite the location of the Company’s main branch in Montana, the Company has
a broad geographic footprint with loans outstanding in 19 states. At December 31,
2013, the six states with the largest loan concentrations were: Montana 24.2%,
Idaho 11.6%, Arizona 9.9%, Wyoming 9.9%, Alaska 8.4% and North Dakota 5.8%.
Note B discusses the types of securities in which the Company invests. Note D
discusses the types of lending in which the Company engages. A significant
portion of the Company's loans are to leasehold mortgages and real estate
borrowers.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents included cash and balances due from banks, federal funds sold and
overnight deposits, all of which have original maturities of 80 days of less.

Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as “held to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not
classified as held to maturity are classified as “available for sale”, Available for sale
securities are stated at estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.

The amortized cost of debt securities classified as held to maturity or available for
sale is adjusted for amortization of purchase premiums and accretion of purchase
discounts. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the
interest method over the term of the securities. Gains and losses on the sale of
securities are determined using the specific identification method.
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Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI") on
at least a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market conditions
warrant such an evaluation. For securities in an unrealized loss position,
management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss, and the
financial condition and nearterm prospects of the issuer. Management also
assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be
required to sell, a security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its
amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell
is met, the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as
an impairment charge to earnings. For debt securities that do not meet the
aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment is split into two components as
follows: 1) OTTI related to credit loss, which is recognized as an impairment
charge to earnings, and 2) OTTI related to other factors, which is recognized in
other comprehensive income. The credit ioss is defined as the difference between
the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized
cost basis. For equity securities, the entire amount of impairment is recognized
through earnings.

Loans

The Company primarily grants leasehold mortgages, real estate, commercial and
industrial, and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan
portfolio is represented by customers with commercial and real estate loans
diversified throughout the United States. The ability of the Company’s borrowers
to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic
conditions in these areas. ‘

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future
or until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid
principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any
deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the
unpaid principal balance. lLoan origination fees, net of certain direct origination
costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using
the effective yield method.

10
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Past due loans are any loans for which payments of interest, principal or both have
not been received within the timeframes designated by the loan agreements.
Loans with payments in arrears but for which borrowers have resumed making
scheduled payments are considered past due until arrearages are brought current.
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays or payment shortfails generally
are not considered past due. Management determines the significance of payment
delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration
all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record,
and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

The accrual of interest on all loans is discontinued at the time a loan is 90 days
delinquent uniess the loan is well secured and in process of collection.
Additionally, loans are placed on nonaccrual at an earlier date if collection of
principal or interest is considered doubtful. When placing a loan on nonaccrual
status, interest accrued to date is generally reversed and is charged against the
current year's interest income. Payments received on a loan on nonaccrual status
are applied against the balance of the loan. A loan is returned to accrual status
when principal and interest are no longer past due and collectability is no longer
doubtful.

Troubled debt restructurings are loans for which concessions in terms have been
made as a result of the borrower experiencing financial difficulty. Generally,
concessions granted to customers include lower interest rates and modification of
the payment stream to lower or defer payments. Interest on troubled debt
restructurings is accrued under the new terms if the loans are performing and full
collection of principal and interest is expected. However, interest accruals are
discontinued on troubled debt restructurings that meet the Company's nonaccrual
criteria.

Generally, loans are charged off in whole or in part on a loan-by-loan basis after they
become significantly past due and based upon management's review of the
collectability of all or a portion of the loan unless the loan is in the process
restructuring. Charge off amounts are determined based upon the carrying amount
of loans and the amount estimated to be collectible as determined by analyses of
expected future cash flows and the liquidation of loan collateral.

11
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit
losses, and is established through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confined. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are
credited to the allowance.

The allowance consists of specific and general components as follows:

The specific component relates to loans that are considered impaired, and is
comprised of valuation allowances calculated on a loan-by-loan basis. Impaired
loans are all specifically identified loans for which it is probable that the
Company will not collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
whether a loan is impaired include payment status, collateral value, the
borrower’s financial condition and overall loan quality as determined by an
internal loan grading system. Included in impaired loans are all nonaccrual
loans, all accruing troubled debt restructurings. Loans that experience
insignificant payment delays or payment shortfalls generally are not considered
impaired. For impaired loans for which repayment is expected solely from the
collateral, impairment is measured based on the fair value of the collateral. For
other impaired loans, impairment may be measured based on the fair vaiue of
the collateral or on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s original effective interest rate. When the measure of the impaired
loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan, the impairment is recorded
through a valuation allowance.

The general component relates to non-impaired loans, and is based on
historical loss experience adjusted for the effects of qualitative factors that are
likely to cause estimated credit losses as of the evaluation date to differ from
the portfolio’s historical loss experience. Qualitative factors include the
following: economic conditions; industry conditions; changes in lending
policies and procedures; trends in the volume and terms of loans; the
experience, ability and depth of lending staff; levels and trends in
delinquencies; levels and trends in charge-off and recovery activity; levels and
trends of loan quality as determined by an internal loan grading system;
portfolio concentrations.

12
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Although the allowance contains a specific component, the entire allowance is
available for any loan that, in management'’s judgment, should be charged off.

On a quarterly basis, management estimates the allowance balance required using
the criteria identified above in relation to the relevant risks for each of the
Company’'s major loan segments. Significant overall risk factors for both the
Company’s commercial and consumer portfolios include the strength of the real
estate market and the strength of economy in the Company’s lending area.

The quality of the Company's loan portfolio is assessed as a function of the levels
of past due loans and impaired loans, and internal credit quality ratings which are
updated quarterly by management. The ratings on the Company’s internal credit
scale are broadly grouped into the categories “non-classified” and “classified.”
Non-classified loans are those loans with minimal identified credit risk, as well as
loans with potential credit weaknesses which deserve management’s attention but
for which full collection of contractual principal and interest is not significantly at
risk. Classified loans are those loans that have well-defined weakness that put full
collection of contractual principal or interest at risk, and classified loans for which it
is probable that the Company will not collect all contractual principal or interest are
also considered impaired. The credit quality ratings are an important part of the
Company’s overall credit risk management process and are considered in the
determination of the allowance for loan losses.

Determination of the allowance is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that
are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available. In
addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination
process, periodically review the Company's allowance. Such agencies may require
the Company to recognize additional losses based on their judgments about
information available to them at the time of their examination.

Off- Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into off-balance-sheet
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, unused lines of
credit, standby letters of credit and undisbursed loans in process. These financial
instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded.

13
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The Company is exposed to credit risk on its off-balance sheet financial instruments.
In conjunction with the determination of the allowance for loan losses, and using the
same criteria, the Company estimates an allowance for probable incurred credit
losses on off-balance sheet credit exposures. Provisions for the allowance are
recorded as a component of other noninterest expense, and the allowance is carried
as a component of other liabilities.

Premises and Equipment

Land is camied at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization expense are generally
computed on the straight-line method over the useful lives of the asset or the
expected terms of the lease.

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are
initially recorded at fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing
a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed
by management and the assets are carried at the lower of its cost basis or fair value
less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the
valuation allowance are included noninterest expense.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value
of identifiable net assets associated with acquisition transactions. The Company
reviews its infangible assets on an annual basis for impairment. If impairment is
indicated, goodwill is reduced to the remaining estimated value through a charge to
income.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the
assets has been relinquished, and for loan participations sold, incoming cash flows
on the base loan are allocated to all participants on a pro-rata basis. Control over
transferred assets is deemed to be relinquished when the assets have been
isolated from the Company, the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that
constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to -pledge or exchange the

14
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transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain effective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of the transactions reported in the
financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related
primarily to differences between the basis of the allowance for loan losses,
unrealized gains or losses on securities available for sale and accumulated
depreciation. The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return
consequences of those differences, which will be either taxable or deductible when
the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are reflected at income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax
assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or
rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the
provision for income taxes.

The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years
before 2010.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the
measurement date. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair values:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not
active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data.

Level 3 - Signiﬁéant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
an asset or liability.
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Subseguent Events

Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date,
through the date the financial statements are eligible to be issued, to determine
whether the events require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, If
a subsequent event evidences conditions existing at the balance sheet date, the
effects are recognized in the financial statements (recognized subsequent event).
If a subsequent event evidences conditions arising after the balance sheet date,
the effects are not recognized in the financial statements but rather disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements (non-recognized subsequent events). The
effects of subsequent events are only recognized if material, or disclosed if the
financial statements would otherwise be misleading.

With respect to the December 31, 2013 financial statements, Management has
considered subsequent events through March 25, 2014.

Comprehensive Income

Components of comprehensive income are net income and all other non-owner
changes in equity. Other comprehensive income consists of unrealized holding
gains and losses on available for sale securities.

in 2012, the Company adopted new accounting guidance that requires
comprehensive income to be disclosed in a single, continuous statement of
comprehensive income, or in two separate but consecutive statements of income
and comprehensive income. Prior to adopting the new accounting guidance, the
Company disclosed comprehensive income in the statement of stockholders’ equity.
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NOTE B - SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair values of securities, with gross unrealized gains and
losses, follows:

December 31, 2013

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Securities Available for Sale
U.S. Government Agencies $ 301,211 § 7868 $ - $ 309,079
Mortgage-backed 3,386,089 47,837 (65,907) 3,368,019

$ 3687300 $ 55705 $ (65907) $ 3,677,008

December 31, 2012

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Securities Available for Sale
U.S. Government Agencies $ 771,803 $ 14869 $ - $ 786,772
Mortgage-backed 4,173,159 85,642 (326) 4,258,475
$ 4945062 $ 100511 § (326) $ 5,045,247
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The amortization cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at
December 31, 2013 follows: '

Securities available for sale

e ————
f———

Amortized Cost Fair Value
Due less than one year $ - $ -
Due after one year through five years - -
Due after five years through ten years - -
Due after ten years 301,211 309,079
301,211 309,079
Mortgage-backed securities 3,386,089 3,368,019
$ 3,687,300 $ 3.677,008

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have
been in a continuous loss position, follows:

December 31, 2013

Less than 12 months Over 12 months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Securities Available for sale
Mortgage-backed $ 1584654 § (65894 $ 22359 § (13)
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December 31, 2012

Less than 12 months Over 12 months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Securities Available for Sale
Mortgage-backed $ 109,012 $ (326) $ - $ -

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a
quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such
evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects
of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in
the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair
value.

The Company realized no gains or losses on the sale or early redemption of debt
securities during 2013 or 2012. Investment securities with carrying values of
$3,677,098 and $5,045,247 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are
pledged as collateral for public deposits and for other purposes as required or
permitted by law.

NOTE C — NONMARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company, as a member of the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City and the
Federal Home Loan Banks of Seattle and Topeka, is required to maintain an
investment in capital stock of each. The Company also maintains an investment in
the capital stock of Bankers' Bank of the West Bancorp, Inc. No ready market exists
for such stock, and they have no quoted market values. For reporting purposes, this
stock is assumed to have a market value equal to cost. Other stock is carried at cost
as these instruments can only be redeemed by the issuer.
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The Company's investment at December 31 is as follows:

2013 2012

Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City $211,400 $232,350
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle 119,100 123,500
Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka 242,600 200,000
Bankers' Bank of the West Bancorp, Inc. 25,052 25,052

$598,152 $580,902

NOTE D — LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

A summary of the balances of loans as of December 31 follows:

2013 2012
Real estate 14,165,753 $ 14,527,770
Commercial and industrial 9,920,693 12,023,927
Leasehold mortgages 23,753,774 16,613,432
Agriculture 267,823 312,396
Consumer and other 2,056,327 2,957,687
Subtotal 50,164,370 46,435,212
Less: Allowance for loan losses (1,187,591) (1,122,177)
Net deferred loan fees (142,546) (99,704)
Loans, net $ 48,834,233= $ 45,213,331
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An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Commercial ~ Leasehold Consumer
Real Estate and Industrial Mortgages  Agriculture  and Other Total
(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 405 $ 33 $ 134 §$ 4 % 203 $ 1,122
Provision for loan [osses 18 117 43 (28) (150) -
Charge-offs 4) (175) - - (63) (232)
Recoveries 55 136 - 5 102 288

Net (charge-offs) recoveries 51 (39) - 5 49 66

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 474 $ 414 8 177 % 219 % 102 $ 1,188

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Commercial  Leasehold Consumer
Real Estate and industrial Mortgages  Agriculture  and Other Total
(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 303 $ 501 $ 4 $ 1 8 693 $ 1,502
Provision for loan losses 260 212 &) (33) {436) -
Charge-offs (208) (395) - (N (125) (735)
Recoveries 50 18 133 83 71 355

Net (charge-offs) recoveries (158) (377) 133 76 (54) (380)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 405 $ 336 $ 134 % 44 $ 203 $ 1,122

——————TLS st ————— a——————— T —————————
I —— —§——— —— ————_ §____——
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Components of the allowance for loan losses, and the related carrying amount of loans
for which the allowance is determined are as follows:

December 31, 2013

Commercial
and Leasehold Consumer
Real Estate Industrial Mortgages  Agricuiture and Other Total

(in thousands)
Allocation of Allowance To:
Impaired loans -
evaluated individually $ 224 $ 19 % - $ - $ - g 243
Impaired ioans -~
evaluated collectively - - - - - -

Total impaired loans 224 19 - - - 243

Unimpaired loans - evaluated
collectively 250 395 177 21 102 845

) 474  $ 414  § 177§ 21 $ 102§ 1,188

Recorded Investment In:

Impaired loans -

evaluated individually $ 3106 % 690 $ - $ - $ 301 $ 4,097
Impaired loans -

evaluated collectively - - - - - -

Total impaired loans 3,106 690 - - 301 4,097

Unimpaired loans - evaluated
collectively 11,060 9,231 23,753 268 1,765 46,067

$ 141686 § 5,921 $ 23,753 § 268 $ 2056 $ 50,164
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December 31, 2012

Allocation of Allowance To:

Impaired loans -
evaluated individually
Impaired loans -
evaluated collectively

Total impaired loans

Unimpaired loans - evaluated

collectively

Recorded Investment In:

Impaired loans -
evaluated individually
Impaired loans -
evaluated collectively

Total impaired loans

Unimpaired loans - evaluated

collectively

Commercial
and l.easehold Consumer
Real Estate Industrial Mortgages  Agriculture  and Other Total
(in thousands)

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
405 336 134 44 203 1,122
$ 405 $ 336 % 134 § 4 $ 203 § 1,122
$ 1010 $ 1008 - $ - 3 266 $ 2,284
1,010 1,008 - - 266 2,284
13,518 11,016 16,613 313 2,691 44,151
$ 46,435

$ 14528 $ 12024 $ 16613 § 313 § 2,057
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Information relative to impaired loans is as follows:
As of or for the year ended December 31, 2013

Recorded Recorded
Investmentin  Investment!n Commitments
Impaired Impaired Valuation Contractual  To Extend
Loans With No  Loans With A Total Allowance On  Principal Of Credit On Average
Valuation Valuation Impaired Impaired Impaired Impaired Impaired -
Allowance Allowance Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans
(in thousands)
Real Estate $ 457 § 2649 $ 3106 $ 224 § 3248 $ - $ 1,466
Commercial and Industrial 471 219 890 19 1,128 - 1,021
Leasehold Mortgages - - - - - - -
Agricuiture - - - - - - -
Consumer and Other 301 - 301 - 3568 - 310
$ 1228 § 2868 $ 4097 9 243 % 4732 § - $ 2,797
As of or for the year ended December 31, 2012
Recorded Recorded
Investmentin  Investment In Commitments
Impaired Impaired Valuation Contractual To Extend
Loans With No  Loans With A Total Allowance On  Principal Of Credit On Average
Valuation Vaiuation Impaired Impaired impaired Impaired Impaired
Allowance Aliowance Loans Loans Loans Loans Loans
(in thousands)
Real Estate $ 1,010 $ - $ 1010 § - 3 1,010 $ - $ 1,227
Commercial and Industrial 1,008 - 1,008 - 1,008 - 1,447
Leasehold Mortgages - - - - - - -
Agriculture - - - - - - -
Consumer and Other 266 - 266 - 266 - 403
$ 2284 $ - $ 2284 3 - $ 2284 $ - $ 3,077
—_—— ]

Interest earned on impaired loans was not material during 2013 and 2012.
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Information related to troubled debt restructurings as of December 31 is as follows:

December 31, 2013

Portion of Valuation
Allowance on
TDRs - included Impaired Loans
in impaired loans Attributable to TDRs

Real Estate $ 78 3 -
Commercial and industrial 275 19
Leasehold Mortgages - -
Agriculture - -
Consumer and Other 29 -

$ 382 $ 19

December 31, 2012

Portion of Valuation
Allowance on
TDRs - included Impaired Loans
in impaired loans Attributable to TDRs

Real Estate $ 168 3 -
Commercial and Industrial - -
Leasehold Mortgages - -
Agriculture - -
Consumer and Other 82 -

$ 250 § -
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The carrying amount of loans by performance status and credit quality

indicator are as follows:

December 31, 2013

Loans By Past Due and Performance Status

Loang By Credit Quality Indicator

Accruing Loans Classified
30-89 90 Days or
Days Past  More Past  Nonaccrual Total Non-
Current Due Due Loans Loans classified  Unimpaired Impaired
(in thousands)
Real Estate $ 11,033 § 27 - $ 3108 §$ 141668 $ 11060 $ 3,790 $ 3,108
Commercial and Industrial 8,416 34 - 471 8,921 8,231 320 690
Leasehold Mortgages 23,618 135 - - 23,753 23,753 2,832 -
Agriculture 280 8 - - 268 268 - -
Consumer and Other 1,679 78 - 301 2,056 1,755 22 301
$ 46,006 $ 280 - $ 36878 § 50,164

$ 46067 $ 6964 § 4,0